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Closervations
Of the Suopervisory Board

In accordance with the law, the Management Board has presented to the Supervisory Board the consoli-
dated financial statements of the Atos Origin Group and its Management Discussion and Analysis, which
comments on the Group’s activity and results for the period ended December 31¢, 2001, as well as the
Atos Origin S.A. financial statements for the same period.

After review, the Supervisory Board has nc observation on the financial statements and the text of the
resolutions which are to be presented to the Annual General Meseting.

The Supervisory Board would particularly like to thank the Management Board and all Group employees
for their dedication and congratulate them on the results achieved during this fiscal year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCGUSSION AND ANALYSIS \ BRIN

1.1 KEY FIGURES

In order td compare, understand and explain Group trends and perforr 1ance in fiscal year 2001, the Management
Discussion and Analysis shows the figures pertaining to 2000 on a pro ‘orma basis, as they appear in the annual report

of the previous vear.

1. Management Discussion
and Analysis

(In EUR milligns) FY 2000 @ % profitability® % growih
Revenue 2,829.8 +7.3%
Incomeg fru:m operations 261.2 8.6% 176.2 6.2% +49.1%
Net financial expense 19.6) (10.9)
Non-recurring items 2.9 (10.1)
Corporate income tax (84.0) (55.7)
Minority interests (18.4) 9.0)
Net income, before amortization of gaodwill 146.3 4,8% 90.2 3.2% +62.2%
Amortization of goodwill (23.3) (19.7)
Net income 123.0 4.0% 70.5 2.5% +74.5%
EPS, before famortizatr’on of goodwill (euros) 3.34 2.06 +61.5%
EPS, after amartization of goodwill (euros) 2.81 1.61 +73.7%
Working cap‘ital requirements ® 6.4% 9.8%
Return on capital employed 14.4% 10.4%
Net indebtecness to equity ratio 49.1% 34.4%
Average number of employees 27,440 26,442 +3.8%

(a) Figures for; 2000 on a pro forma basis.

(b) Ratio expréssed as a percentage of total Group revenue,

'

The mergér of Atos and Origin took effect on October
1%, 2000. fln order to provide directly comparable
information, the figures for 2000 have been presented
under normal accounting regulations applicable in

France, but on a pro forma basis, which assumes that:

* the merger was effective for a full 12-month period

commending January 1¢, 2000,

* the results of activities sold during that period have

been excluded and

s the resu:|t5 of activities acquired during that period

have been included.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001

1.2

G ROUP ACTIVITY IN FISCAL YEAR 2001

F scal year 2001 was focused on impiementing our
n arger plan. Group operating income rose by nearly
5 1%, thereby exceeding our forecasts in spite of the
e onomic downturn in the second half.

T 1e merger plan involved a number of specific steps.

¢ Activities were reorganized by profit center and operations
w 2re focused on a number of value-added senvices.

¢ The workforce was reduced by over 1,500 (70% in

£ oduction, 30% in functional departments), represent-
ir 3nearly 8% of the entire Group workforce.




1.2.1

This involved a fundamental reengineering of manage- purchasing function has been set up, which has

ment structures following the merger and a shift to clear enabled the company to negotiate significant cost

profit center responsibility. It also involved extensive reductions on a Group basis.

restructuring to bring our operations in the US, Brazil, * Lastly, we have paid considerable attention to indirect,
UK and Germany back into profitapility. non-productive charges, which fell by 5% in the course
* Office accommaodation and data processing capacity of the year to 19.8% of revenue, compared with a

have been reorganized. In 2001, 40 out of the 53 sites revenue increase of 7.3% over the same period.
designated for reorganization over a three-year period

were either closed down or consolidated, thereby As a result, the cperating margin increased from 6.2% in
achieving enhanced operating efficiency. 2000 to 8.6% in 2001, showing steady improvement

¢ Clear cost control measures have been imposed throughout the year, rising from 7.2% in the final quarter
throughout the organization. At the same time, a global of 2000, to 9.0% in the last quarter of 2001.

Activily by Quarter

(in EUR milfions) at Qz a3 Q4 Fif 201
Revenue 757.0 761.0 722.8 796.8 3,037.6
% growth® +6.5% +10.1% +6.2% +6.6% +7.3%
Income from operations 62.1 66.7 61.0 71.4 261.2
% profitability 8.2% 8.8% 8.4% 9.0% 8.6%

(@) Figures for 2000 on a pro forma basis.

Annual revenue per production employee rose from EUR 114,000 at the beginning of fiscal year 2001 to EUR 124,000 at year-end,
an increase in productivity of 8%. Our reorganization, optimization and restructuring plans chiefly concerned two service lines:
Consulting and Systems Integration and Managed Services.

in On-line Services, the Group disposed of its customer call centers in France (revenue of EUR 82 million for the 11 months to
November 30", 2001), which showed good organic growth but no profitabllity, due to the weak Telecom sector. Overall, we have
disposed of businesses generating annual revenues of approximately EUR 130 million since the merger, out of a planned total

of EUR 200 million that we targeted within two years of the merger date.

In addition, Atos Origin has met its objective of producing a profit in every country in which it operates, despite the unfavorable
economic situation in a number of areas, including the US, Asia-Pacific, Brazit and Germany.

Net income before amortization of goodwill reached EUR 146 million, up 62% on the previous year. Earnings per share after
ameortization of goodwill jumped 74% in the period, generating an accretion of over 18% compared to Atos’ earnings per share at
September 307, 2000, prior to the merger with Crigin.

The Group maintained its solid financial structure owing to strong operating cash flow of EUR 397 million (13.1% of revenue)
including strict control over capital employed. The rate of return on capital employed rose from 10.4% to 14.4% and this
enabled the Group to cover a significant part of its restructuring and reorganization expenses (EUR 209 million), internal cap-
ital expenditures (EUR 128 million) and net financial investment (EUR 179 million). Net indebtedness rose to EUR 235 million
at the year-end, vielding a net indebtedness to equity ratio of 49%.

Our clients have provided further proof that the merger was justified. Through an active policy aimed at developing major accounts,
Atos Crigin signed large-scale contracts, thereby increasing operating visibility and consolidating long-term ties with
customers. The Group’s 42 Global Clients accounted for over 55% of revenue, up by more than 15% on the preceding year.

The Group’s order book rose from EUR 3.5 billion at December 31, 2000 to EUR 4.9 billion at December 31%, 2001, representing
the equivalent of 1.6 years' revenue. Order-book growth was strongest in the area of Managed Services especially in view of the
KPN contract win. Recurring business in On-line Services, Managed Services and Applications Maintenance in Systems
Integration accounted for 55% of Group revenue, while achieving a 15% growth rate for the year, higher than in all other areas.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001 5
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MAMNAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS \

1.2.2 Activity by Ssrvics Lins

Revenue Growth by Service Line

Consolidaﬁed revenue for the period from January 1¢ to December 319, : 001 reached EUR 3,038 million, up 7.3% on the
precedingiyear, At constant exchange rates, growth for the period was 7 7%. The figures by service line were as follows:

(in EUR millipns) 7 ec FY 2000@ % growlh
Consulting & Systems Integration 1,489.5 49% 1,483.9 +0.4%
Managed Services 1,119.8 37% 941.9 +18.9%
On-line Services 428.3 14% 404.0 +6.0%
TOTAL 3,037.6 _ 100% 2,829.8 +7.3%

(a) Figures forlQOOO on a pro forma basis.

Despite a modest increase in revenue in the first half of 2001, Consult. 1g & Systems Integration recorded a decline of 4%
during the}second half, owing to the economic downturn. A number of projects have been postponed, although activity in
enterpriseésolutions remained solid. In spite of this, growth remained st ong in France (+12%) and the Netherlands (+8%),
while slowing down in the second half. There was a decline in revenue n both the US and Asia-Pacific regions as a resuit of
both weak local market conditions and deliberate internal action to res ucture those operations. Operations in 2 number of
other countries like the UK, Germany, Spain and ltaly have also been fc zused on reorganizing and restructuring.

Managed%Services revenue showed a 19% increase in 2001, with 28' 5 growth in France and 32% in the Netherlands.
These countries generate 70% of Group revenue within this service line  Critical mass has given us access to large-scale
contracts i:ncluding KPN Datacenter in the Netherlands as well as Euro iext, Vivarte (Group André) and many extensions of
our existing customer base in France. Elsewhere, the Group has contir 1ed to refocus on high added-value, desktop
services arﬁd ERP outsourcing.

On-line Sérvices produced a modest revenue increase of 6% in 2001 There was an increase in transaction processing
services of close to 12% thanks to solid business activity in France anc an expanding market share in Germany, both in
merchant processing and cardholder management. The customer relat onship management business, however, showed

a 3% decrease following disposal of our customer contact centers at tt e end of November 2001, The multimedia business
achieved more modest 6% revenue growth, reflecting a 15% increase i1 e-business processing, offset by a 13% decrease
in Minitel and Audiotext content management activity (passthrough witl no margin).

Atos Or‘\giﬁ Annual Report 2001




Income from Operations by Service Linge

In 2001, our principal target was to increase operating margin from 6.2% in 2000 to 8% in 2001, based on revenue

growth of 10%. Although revenue growth was only 7.3%, margins reached 8.6% and the absolute level of income from
operations was EUR 261 million compared with our original target of EUR 250 million. Income from operations rose by 49%,
from EUR 175 million in 2000 to EUR 261 million in 2001, The increase of EUR 86 million may be analyzed as follows:

{in EUR millions) Profitin Profit on Related
FY 2031 full-year basis restructuring costs

Income from operations 2000 175

Economic slowdown / discontinued operations (19) 13

Business increase 27

Staff reorganization . 51 83 89

Real estate rationalization 12 15 16

Cost cutting / purchasing actions 15 22

Total 86 98 140

Income from operations 2001 261

(a) Figures for 2000 on a pro forma basis.

* The economic downturn in 2001 led to flat revenues in parts of Europe and an absolute decline of 23% in our business in

North and South America, along with a 14% drop in the Asia-Pacific region. Furthermore, the Group decided to discontinue,
as of the end of 2000, a number of operations in which critical mass was lacking. The overall outcome is an estimated EUR

100 million decline in revenue, which reduced income from operations by approximately EUR 19 million.

* Business growth, excluding the impact of the economic downturn and termination of certain operations, was more than 10%,
representing a contribution of some EUR 27 million, chiefly in Managed Services.

¢ Merger reorganization and restructuring activities generated EUR 51 million in cost savings, accounting for over half the
improvement achieved in the period. On a full-year basis, the figure would be EUR 83 million. The restructuring costs

of EUR 89 million will therefore show a payback in one year. Just over 1,500 staff reductions or redeployments had been
carried out by December 31%, 2001, representing 6% of the total Group workforce. These measures were not restricted to
the countries hardest hit by the economic downturn — already perceptible prior to the merger — notably the US, Germany
and the Asia-Pacific countries. They were also applied in countries {(sometimes the same ones) with loss-making operations
before the merger. Two thirds of redeployment efforts in 2001 involved production staff, and one-third functional staff.

The program for 2002 will affect both categories in equal measure.

* The rationalization of office premises and data processing centers is vital both for reducing cost and raising productivity,
by grouping appropriate staff in new facilities better suited to the Group’s needs. A total of 40 sites out of the three-year
target of 53 have already been restructured. As a consequence, the cost of site management declined by 10% during 2001,
This made it possible over the period to save EUR 12 million in on-going annual operating costs, compared with one-time
restructuring charges of EUR 16 miliion.

* Other cost saving initiatives, including the formation of a Group purchasing department, together contributed
EUR 15 million to the improved results for the period.

Atos Crigin Annual Report 2001 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.2,

Profitabilifty in the different service lines improved as a result of these ¢ stions as follows:

(in EUR millions) FY FY % %

‘ 2c2t 2000@ profitability growth
Consutting & Systems Integration 1337 9.0% 116.1 7.8% +15%
Managed Services 1279 11.4% 99.6 10.6% +28%
On-line Ser]v\/ices 44.8 10.5% 43.7 12.1% -8%
Corporate® (45.2) -1.5% (89.3) -3.2% +49%
TOTAL 261.2 8.6% 175.2 6.2% +49%

(a) Figures fojr 2000 on a pro forma basis.
(b} Rate expréssed as a percentage of total Group revenue.

In Consu]ting & Systems Integration, revenue growth was minimal t it there was a 15% improvement in income from
operations stemming mainly from staff redeployment and downsizing, shether aimed at stepping up utilization rate, as in the
Netherlari‘ds, the UK and Germany, or at responding to a sharp falloff 1 business, as in the US, where a 256% drop in busi-
ness prompted a 35% cutback in the workforce. The average numbel of employees thus decreased by 4% in this service
line, while revenue remained stable. As a result, the operating margin  »se from 7.8% in 2000 to 8.0% in 2001.

In Managed Services, over two thirds of the 28% improvement in in¢ sme from operations may be attributed to expanding
business activity. As a result of our efforts at restructuring and raising | roductivity, the average number of employees
increased more moderately (+ 15%) than revenue (+ 19%). Conseque tly the operating margin rose from 10.6% in 2000 to
11.4% in2001.

On-line Services recorded an 8% decrease in income from operations ver the period resulting in a 10.5% operating

margin. The decline was largely due to the lack of profitability at our cus >mer contact centers in France, which were sold to
SNT in November 2001. At the same time, the Group invested heavily ir equipping our check processing centers in France to
handle new electronic processing for checks in euros. The main activitie : within this service line — bankcard processing and
multimedié - once again showed an ability to generate profit margins at e the Group average. Following disposal of the cus-
tomer cor:wtact centers in November 2001, the Group expects margins it On-line Services to increase significantly in 2002.

Lastly, asiof January 1%, 2001, corporate costs were reduced to half 7eir previous size through the redepioyment of some
employees into the mainstream business activities and through refocu ing on Group-wide projects like our recruitment cam-
paign, managing the Group’s leading 500 executives, deploying IT sys ems and global procurement. Corporate costs

(as a percentage of Group revenue) declined from 3.2% in 2000 to 1.£ % in 2001.

Activity by Geographical Area

Revenue Growth by Geographical Area

(in EUR millions) FY % g% 2051 FY %

; 220 civchiict 2000@ growin
France 1,088.2 36% 9515 +14.5%
The Netherlands 797.4 26% 668.7 +18.2%
EMEA 877.3 29% 864.0 +1.5%
Americas 207.5 7% 268.4 -22.7%
Asia-Pacific' 66.2 2% 77.2 -14.4%
TOTAL 3,037.6 100% 2,829.8 +1.3%

1
(@) Figures for, 2000 on a pro forma basis.
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In France, revenue rose by almost 15%, due largely to good on-going demand for Managed Services (+28%), and despite
modest growth in the second half in Consulting & Systems Integration services, which grew by 12% for the year as a whole.

In the Netherlands, cur second most important country, revenue was up by an impressive 19%, in spite of the fact that
conditions in the high-tech and telecommunications markets were unfavorable. This performance, accomplished in spite

of a 3% decrease in revenue from Philips, was mainly attributable to Managed Services, which recorded a 32% surge in
revenue due to the expanding activities of Atos Euronext and the Datacenter contract with KPN, which commenced in
Quarter 4. Revenue from Consulting & Systems Integration rose by 8%, due to new contracts secured in process and other
industries.

Revenue in other European countries and the Middle-East remained stable over the year, showing a modest 1.5% increase.
Although the contract with Cooperative Retail was terminated early in 2001, we maintained our business in the UK at its
previous level, owing to strong demand for systems integration, with major contracts signed with clients like Vantico, Unig
and United Biscuits. In Germany, Spain and Italy, revenue was flat or marginally lower with our units there focusing chiefly on
boosting productivity and reorganizing their sales forces and customer portfolios. Our business in the Middle East recorded
an 82% increase in revenue, based on several important contracts with clients in the oil and petrochemical industry.

Our business in the US and Asia-Pacific regions, much of which supports the extended activities of global clients based in
Europe, has been particularly affected by the economic downturn. The same goes for South America, which was also
impacted by the recession in Argentina and an unfavorable exchange rate in Brazil.

L

Income from Operations by Geographical Area

{in EUR millions) Fy % FY % %

2001 erofitalility 2005@ profitabifity growth
France 107.2 9.8% 105.4 1.1% +2%
The Netherlands 117.0 14.7% 88.2 13.2% +33%
EMEA 75.8 8.7% 75.2 8.7% +1%
Americas 5.4 2.5% (11.1) -4.1% +149%
Asia-Pacific 1.0 1.5% 6.8 8.8% -85%
Corporate® (45.2) -1.5% (89.3) -3.2% +49%
TOTAL 261.2 8.6% 175.2 6.2% +49%

(a) Data for 2000 on a pro forma basls.
(b) Rate expressed as a percentage of total Group revenue.

The Group achieved profitability in all countries in which it operates.

1.2.4 Activily by Seclor

SISATYNY CNVY NOISSNIOSIO LNINIDWNYIA

{in EUR millions) FY % of FY %

280t 2301 revanues 2Q00@ growth
Financial Services 792.2 26% 654.3 +21%
Process Industries 764.8 25% 641.2 +18%
High-Tech 600.7 20% 6759 1%
Telecoms 463.1 15% 4499 +3%
Retail of CPG 209.3 7% 215.9 -3%
Public Sector and Others 217.5 7% 192.6 +13%
TOTAL 3,037.6 100% 2,829.8 +7.3%

(a) Figures for 2000 on a pro forma basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Growth was brisk in Financial Services in 2001, partly
due to our developing partnership with Euronext, which
resulted from the merger of the Paris, Amsterdarm and
Brusselsistock exchanges. During the period, this
alliance was strengthened by the extension of our
services in the Netherlands and Belgium. There was
renewed{market investment especially in the bankecard
and cheék processing areas.

In Proce’jss Industries, which includes Process and Life
Sciences, we benefited from the development of our oil-
related bpsiness and the deepening of our relations with
clients such as Aramco, Shell, Exxon Mobil and
TotalFinaElf,

In High-Tech, the results were directly impacted by
the decréase in our business with Philips, which
amounted to some 11% in the period, particularly in
the US ahd Asia Pacific.

After experiencing only modest demand affecting
telecom éarriers, our Telecommunications businsss
bouncediback towards the end of the year, as we signed
a numbef of new contracts, including the Datacenter
contract with KPN.

In the Retail market, the slowdown experienced by
some of our American clients like Procter & Gamble
affected performance, although this trend was partly
offset by the strong growth recorded with other clients
in the se¢ton particularly in France and the UK.

The Grolp’s 42 Global Clients accounted for

over 55% of revenue, marking a 15% increase on the
preceding year. Excluding Philips, revenue from these
major accounts rose by more than 25%, thereby
demonstrating the ability of Atos Origin to assist its
leading clients in their growth strategies.

Revenueé with Philips amounted to EUR 519 million,
down 11% on the previous yaar. Philips now represents
17% of total Group revenue. Excluding Philips, Group
sales grew by 12% in the period.

Apart from Philips and Euronext (7%), no other client
generated more than 3% of total revenue.

The Group‘s top 5 clients in fiscal year 2001 accounted
for 31% of Group revenue.

i
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1.3

he Group’s leading clients are: ABN Amro, Acordis,
kzo Nobel, Alstom, ANPE, Asmi, Auchan, Axa, Banca
‘ommerciale ltaliana, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria,
\anco Santander, Banque de France, Berliner Bank,
"MW, BNIP Paribas, Caisses d’Epargne, Casino,
‘ommerz Bank, Crédit Agricole-indosuez, Crédit
vonnais, Crédit Mutuel-CIC, Deutsche Bank, Dutch
nvironment Ministry, Dresdner Bank, DSM, EDF, ENI,
st & Young, Euronext, Exxon Mobil, Fiat, Flextronics,
ort James, Fortis, France Télécom, HSBC-CCF, IC),
ifineon, ING, KPN, La Poste, Lucent, Novartis,

hilip Morris, Philips, Pinault-Printemps-Redoute,
rocter & Gamble, Rabobank, Peugeot, Repsol,
enault, RS Components, Sabic, Saud| Aramco, Shell,
NCF, Société Générale, Swisscom, Telefénica,

" slecom Mtalia, TotalFinaElf, Unilever, Union Européenne,
\ adafone, Wolters Kluwer.

{ UTLOOK FOR THE COMING YEAR

/ lthough market conditions appear uncertain,

11e Group's top priority in 2002 is to raise its operating
riargin to 10%.

[ eriving over 55% of revenue from recurring business,
11e Group plans to achieve revenue growth of between
% and 9%. Based on the most recent contracts

v ‘e have signed, a large part of this increase will come

f om Managed Services and On-line Services.

\ /e expect to achieve higher profitability in 2002 for two
r:asons. First of all, the recrganization and restructuring
¢ arried out in the past fiscal year will by then be pro-

¢ Jcing positive results on a full-year basis. Secondly,

v & will be intensifying a number of programs for raising
r ‘oductivity, including global purchasing management,
r duced subcontractors, reengineering of functional

¢ 2partments and optimization of our internal IT systems.
[ uring the year, we will alsc be considering ways of fine-
t ning our allocation of resources and skills in the event

t at market conditions are less than favorable.

1 1e development of our market and solutions expertise
v ill enable Atos Origin to generate new areas of growth
it 2002.




1.4 INCOME STATEMENT

1.4.1 Mgt lncome

(in EUR millions) FY % FY % %
2001 Trofitatiity 2000® profitability growth

Income from operations 261.2 8.6% 175.2 6.2% +49%

Net financial expense 9.6 (10.1)

Non-recurring items 2.9 (10.1)

Corporate income tax (84.0) 33.8% (55.7) 36.0%®

Minority interests (18.4) 9.0)

Amortization of goodwill (23.3) (19.7)

NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 123.0 41% 70.5 2.5% +74%

1.4.2

(@) Figures for 2000 on a pro forma basis.
(b) Réte expressed as a percentage of income before taxes.

Met Financial Expense

For fiscal year 2001, the Group recorded net financial
expenses of EUR 9.6 million, comprising EUR 6.4 mil-

to the euro (EUR 3.2 million), provisions for contingen-
cies and losses (EUR 2.6 million), mainly employee-
related, and impairment of assets (EUR 1.1 million).

lion in interest expense and EUR 3.2 million in invest- 1.4.4 Gorporaie Income Tan
ment securities depreciation. The average debt level
was EUR 184 million, with average interest rates down Net income for the fiscal year 2001 included a provision z
t0 5.2% from 5.5% in 2000. of EUR 84 million for corporate income taxes. %
Group debt rose from EUR 114 miillion at the close of The notional tax rate was 33.8% of pre-tax income, »
fiscal year 2000 to EUR 235 million at the close of fiscal down from 36.0% the preceding year. The decrease %
year 2001 as a result of assets acquired under is mainly attributable to the Group's decision to file %
the terms of the Datacenter contract with KPN. consolidated tax retums. %
g
1.4.3 Non-recurring items 1.4.5 Minority Interests @
g
Net non-recurring expenses of EUR 2.8 million, Minority interests rose to EUR 18.4 million, compared C’mﬁ
included the following: to EUR 9.0 million in the preceding year. g
* EUR 19 million integraticn and rationalization and The increase was due to the success of the joint B
reorganization costs including EUR 9 million provisions venture with Euronext in the Netherlands and Belgium g
to cover restructuring planned for 2002, as well as to the success of our integration business »
* net capital gains of EUR 23 million realized on the dis- in the Middle East. %
posal of assets, including minority, non-core businesses 5
such as Attol in France and Securteam in italy, and 1.4.6 Dividends %

the disposal of the customer contact centers in France
to SNT,

* other charges reported in fiscal year 2001 were
incurred in connection with plans for changeover

The Company has not distributed any dividends in the
last five years and does not plan to distribute a dividend
in respect of fiscal year 2001.

Atos Crigin Annual Report 2001 1




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T.8.7

1.4.8

12

el ncome and Zarnings Per Share

(in BUR mit;iions) 5y 202t FY 2000 % growth
Net income, before amortization of goodwill 146.3 90.2 +62%
Net incomeé, after amortization of goodwill 123.0 70.5 +74%
impact of conversion of dilutive securities 1.3 7.5

Net income, before amortization of goodwill ™ 157.5 97.6

Net income, after amortization of goodwill® 134.2 778

Number ofishares atyear end (in thousands) 43,854 43,764

Weighted-average number of shares (in thousands) 43,807 43,697

Average number of shares, diluted (in thousands) 53,801 52,195

Basic EPS,|before amortization of goodwill (in euros) 334 2.06 +62%
Basic EPS,Jafter amortization of goodwill (in euros) 2.81 1.61 +74%
Dituted EPS, before amortization of goodwill {in euros)® 2.93 1.87 +56%
Diluted EPS, after amortization of goodwill (in eurosy® 2.49 1.49 +67%
(a) Figures ff}r 2000 on a pro forma basis.

{0} Includinglimpact of conversion of dilutive securities.

Net incorne before amortization of goodwill was EUR 146.3 million, 62 % higher than the preceding year. Net income after
amortizaﬁion of goodwill shows a substantial 74% rise to EUR 123.0 v llion.

Net incor'ne was equal to 4.0% of revenue at December 31, 2001, up ‘om 2.5% at December 31, 2000.

AtEUR 2;.81, net earnings per Atos Origin share in 2001 an accretion >f over 18% in relation to Atos’ earnings per share at
Septembfer 30", 200C, pricr to the merger with Origin.

Reszarch and Innovation

During FY 2001, the Group reorganized its Research and Development n accordance with ICA {International Competencies
& Alliances) for Consulting & Systems Integration activities and MS Glot al (Managed Services) for Qutsourcing solutions.
Atos Origjn‘s aim is both to foresee new client requirements in order to « ffer them the most appropriate and innovative
e-busineés and information technologies, and to integrate a global deliv :ry organization.

To offer tﬁese services, it conducts research and development in the fol swing areas:

» commercial research by ICA and MS Global departments, and localiz: d within the specific businesses of On-line Services
(MultimedJa, Card Transactions and CRM). Key Account Manager team . and Market Directors support the sales forces;

. teohnolbglcal research through a Group-wide program (“E-focus”) anc through technological centers of excellence.

R&D expénditure, which is fully expensed within opsrating costs, repres nts around 3% of consolidated revenue.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001



1.5

BALANGE SHEET

1.2.1 Caplia) Employed

1.8.2

{in EUR millions) Jec. 31, 2337 Bec. 317, 2003@
Gooawill (gross valug) 503.1 386.2
Other intangible fixed assets 229 41.3
Tangible fixed assets 303.9 194.8
Investments - 395 26.5
Total fixed assets . 869.4 648.8
Working capital requirements 193.3 275.8
Capital employed 1,062.7 924.6
Revenue 3,037.6 2,829.8
CAPITAL EMPLOYED AS A PERCENTAGE OF REVENUE 35% 33%

() Figures for 2000 on a pro forma basis,
The ratio of capital employed to revenue, at 35%, remained stable in relation to the previous year.

The EUR 138 million increase on the previous year was primarily due to a EUR 117 million increase in goodwill (EUR 50 mil-
lion in connection with Atos Euronext in the Netherlands and Belgium, and EUR 67 million from the acquisition of KPN's
Datacenter business). The net increase of EUR 91 million in tangible and intangible fixed assets comprises EUR 128 million
of net internal capital investment, together with EUR 86 million mainly due to the KPN Datacenter contract, less EUR 133 mil-
lion in amortization and depreciation charges. This was offset by a decrease in working capital requirements of EUR 83 mil-
lion (30%) over the period.

Working capital at December 31, 2001 was EUR 193 million or 6.4% of revenue, down from 8.8% in the preceding year.
As a result of the action plans implemented throughout the Group including the systematic tracking of accounts receivable,
we were able to keep the receivables ratios stable in a period of payment pressure. The average collection period was

79 days at December 31%, 2001.

The improvement in working capital requirements may primarily be attributed to the rise in liabilities, particularly trade
accounts payable, reflecting the optimization of purchase conditions, and to the increase in employee liabilities relating to the
variable component of compensation, based on company results.

Return on Capital Employed

(in EUR millions) Dee. 31, 200¢ Cee. 31, 2000
Income from operations 261.2 1752
Net income for the period 123.0 70.5
Add-back of interest expense, net of tax 7.1 6.5
Add-back of goodwil! amortization 233 197
Net income before interest and goodwill amortization 153.4 96.7
Capital employed 1,062.7 924.6
RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED 14.4% 10.4%

Return on capital employed rose to 14.4%, mainly due to the increase in net income, and in spite of a 15% increase in capi-
tal employed.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001 13
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1.6 COMMON STOCK

1.7

The Company’s common stock is traded on the Paris
Euronext!Premier Market. Royal Philips Electronics,
the Iargeét registered shareholder, held 48.6% of the
commonistock at December 319, 2001, The other
main shareholders at this date were BNP Paribas
{4.8% of common stock) and Caisse des Dépdts et
Consignations (C.D.C.) (2.1%).

At December 31%, 2001, the Company’s common
stock cor:nprised 43,853,704 fully paid-up shares with
a par value of EUR 1 each.

Voting rights are held in the same proportion of shares.
However,;’ Royal Philips Electronics has agreed, except
in certainispecific circumstances, to limit its voting
rights to 35% of the total number of shares preserit

or represénted at Atos Origin shareholder meetings.

At Deceriber 31%, 2001, the common stock held

Dy Compfany employees through employee sharefiolder

PROVIgIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND LOSSES

i

~

wvnership plans such as mutual funds and Corporate
¢ avings Plans amounted to 311,161 shares, represent-
9 0.7% of total common stock and voting rights.

e potential future dilution of common stock is not
exceed 9,994,499 new shares, or 18.6% of common

ock after dilution. Of this total, 38% take the form of

ock subscription options granted to employees
779,172), 14% of convertible bonds and 48% of

ock subscription warrants, classes A and B, granted
Royal Philips Electronics.

n T~ o —~+ 1

—

(]

Jring fiscal year 2001, the Management Board utilized
tl e authorization given to it by the Annual General
eeting to repurchase Company shares on the stock
arket. At December 31¢, 2001, the Company directly
i1d 199,300 shares, or 0.45 % of total issued capital,
ir treasury stock repurchased pursuant to the above-

n entioned authorization.

= v a3 =

{in EUR millions) Dec. 319, Jeo. 379, Change Scos adj. FVA  Restruc. Restruc.  Cperations

23000 20T eh: 1gss cash cash cash
, 2201 2301 2002

Fair value a@justment QOrigin 129.0 75.2 (53.8) 15.2 (69.0)

Merger / Integration 159.5 24.7 (134.8) 0.4 (121.0) (13.4)

Operations 60.1 58.2 (1.9) 6.6 9.5) 1.0

Pensions 56.4 93.0 36.6 286 8.0

TOTAL | 405.0 251.1 (153.9) 50.0 (69.0) {130.5) (13.4) 9.0

i

On Octobjer 1%, 2000, the Company made a number of
fair value éccounting adjustments to the opening balance
sheet of Origin. Provisions were charged against equity
to cover \dng—term software license commitments for
which therﬁe was No corresponding business, commercial
disputes, Iitigation and claims as well as previously identi-
fied empldyee—re\ated and tax contingencies and l0s3es
to completion on fixed-price contracts. These provisions
were increased by a further EUR 15 million in 2001,
based on our final assessment of those contingencies.
EUR 69 Million was charged against these provisions

in the period. At December 31¢, 2001, the mgjortty of

the EUR 75 million balance related to commitments to pur-
chase excéss software licenses over a residual 5-year period
andto employee and tax contingencies vet to be settled.

¢

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001

r November 2000, at the time of the Atos Origin merger,

© Jvision was also made against the opening equity of

C igin to cover the cost of implementing a restructuring

p 1n, including significant staff reductions, the rationalization
o premises and data processing facilities, and discontinu-
ir yor disposing of a number of loss-making and non-core
a tivities. In 2001, EUR 121 million was charged against

1t 3se provisions to finance the cost of restructuring in the

p riod, while EUR 14 million of restructuring provisions was
a counted for as operating activities to cover restructuring
G sts in 2002. At December 31, 2001, there remained

E IR 25 million to cover restructuring actions and we

& pect this to be utiized during the first half of 2002.

C »erating provisions relate routinely to commercial

d sputes, convertible bond redemption premiums, along



1.8

with miscellaneous contingencies and losses. They also
include restructuring unrelated to the Atos Origin
merger. Such provisions remained stable over the
period.

The increase in retirement provisions is due primarily to
retirement commitments for KPN employees, which the
Group took on in connection with the acquisition of
KPN'’s Datacenter business.

NET INDEBTEDNESS

(in EUR millions) Dec. 31¢, 2001

Net debt at beginning of period (113.9)
Changes in cash from operating activities 396.6
Changes in cash from operating investments (127.6)
Cash flow from current operations 269.0
Reorganization and restructuring (140.3)
Origin apening balance sheet {69.0)
Disposal of assets 33.6
Investments (212.9)
Changes in other assets and liabilities 2.0)
NET DEBT AT END QF PERIOD (235.1)

In fiscal year 2001, operating activity generated EUR 397 mil-
lionin cash flow, representing 13% of consolidated revenue.

Internal capital investment was EUR 128 milion, or 4.2%
of revenue. In fiscal year 2001, a larger share of investment
(60%) went to specific measures aimed at client-focused
development and higher productivity. 13% of investrment
was devoted to upgrading premises and equipment.
Three quarters of such expenditures involved purchasing
computer hardware and software from outside sources.
France and the Netherlands, where business grew more
briskly than elsewhere in 2001, accounted for 80% of total
investment in the period. The aim was to meet the follow-
ing challenges:

¢ growth in Managed Services, with rising volume as well as
the signing of new contracts and renewal of existing ones,
¢ greater volume in the Multimedia field and the need

for computer equipment suited to the products

in this service line (Web-services, M-Commerce, efc.

¢ achieving critical mass production efficiency at Atos
Crigin, while staying abreast of current technological
trends, notably network migration toward IP architectures,
o further simplification of organizational structures and
consolidation of homogeneous activities within a single

1.9

1.10

1.10.1

senvice line and the rationalization of premises in new sites
more appropriate to Group’s needs.

Restructuring payments included EUR 121 milion released
from Atos Crigin merger provisions. A further EUR 9 million
was released from operating provisions and restructuring
charges of EUR 10 miflion were recorded as non-recurring
items in the period.

Payments made in connection with merger fair value
adjustment provisions amounted to EUR 63 million.

The Group made significant external investrments amount-
ing to EUR 213 million during the year including the acqui-
sition of the Atos Euronext subsidiaries in Belgium and the
Netherlands (EUR 27 milllion) and KPN'’s Data center busi-
ness (EUR 163 million).

Based on closing net indebtedness of EUR 235 million

at December 319, 2001, the Group’s net indebtedness

to equity ratio stood at 49%.

COVERAGE OF POTENTIAL RISKS

Information pertaining to risks facing the Company, espe-
cially as regards the employee-related and environmental
impact of its business, may be found in Paragraph 2.3.5
of the notes to the consolidated statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group Workiores
Changes in the Group Workforce

The workiorce at Atos Origin decreased by about 2%
between January 1%, 2001 and December 31, 2001,
from 26,916 to 26,278. Leaving aside the disposal of
our call center business (2,608 employees at the begin-
ning of the pericd) and the 1,040 employees taken on
in connection with the new contract with KPN,

the workforce grew by 4% in the period. Atos Origin
recruited close to 6,000 people in fiscal year 2001,
including almost 5,000 experienced information tech-
nology engineers.

The workforce in France experienced particularly strong
growth, in line with revenue growth. In contrast,
restructuring plans, which led to downsizing or higher
productivity from existing resources, impacted our
operations in a number of countries.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001 15
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Workforce Breakdown by Geographical Area

Employees Gz ge Average Sheangs
Das. 30, employees
2000 oo 2000
France” 9,732 - 3% 10,319 8,757 +18%
Ngtherlands | 6,093 + 7% 6,259 6,230 0%
EMEA : 7,961 1% 7,848 7,967 -1%
Americas 1,881 - 3% 1,740 2,197 -21%
Asia-Pacific . 1,088 - 3% 1,149 1,125 +2%
Corporate 161 - 2% 125 168 -26%
TOTAL 26,916 2% 27,440 26,442 +4%
(") Change in {he workforce at end of period 2001: +18% excluding call center business.
Workforce Breakdown by Service Line
Employeas Chaige Averzge Change
Dz, 31%, cmployess
e 203¢ 2003
Consulting & Systems Intagration 14,931 14,767 - 1% 14607 15,226 -4%
Managed Services 8,185 6,630 + 3% 7,313 6,384 +15%
On-line Services" 3,052 5,358 - 3% 5,395 4,665 +16%
Corporate 110 161 - 2% 125 168 -26%
TOTAL 26,278 26,916 2% 27,440 26,442 +4%

{*) Change in t‘he workforce at end of period 2001: +11% excluding call center business.

J

P

Yuman Resources Polley

In its pursdit of excellence, Atos Origin considers its
employees of vital impertance to Group success.

The humab resources program spans the full range of
Atos Origin’s commitments to its people: recruitment,
integration, evaluation, career opportunities, develap-
ment and contributing to Group growth.

. Recruitment, through a Group-wide campaign rolled
out on-lingé and in over 20 publications around the
world, bacfked up by various forms of recruitment on a
local level! These include partnerships with major engi-
neering scﬁhoois {the “Job Train”, organized in collabo-
ration with the newspaper “Le Monde”}, selection from
within theGroup of “Campus Managers” in charge of
strengthening alumni ties to such schools, and key
public events such as the Atos Origin Technology
Forum and the Atos Qrigin Open House Days.

. Integrafion, by organizing Campus Days that give all
new hires the opportunity to attend an orlentation semi-
nar in whi(f:h senior management is involved.

In the assjociated “graduating class” programs,

young sal?s and non-IT engineers receive several

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001

m Hnths of training from Atos Origin before taking up

tF sir positions.

¢ Ivaluation, through regularly scheduled performance
3 praisal interviews for reviewing objectives and pin-
P inting skills required in the future.

* Jroviding career opportunities by encouraging job
st ifts via our Intranet portal, where vacancies in the

G oup are posted before being made public, and by

el couraging occupational and geographical mobility in
o' 2r 30 countrigs, through short-term (6-12 months)
al dlong-term (1-5 years) assignments abroad.

Tl e active involvement of Management Board mem-
b rs and fine directors in assisting executives at all

¢ mpany levels is key 1o the success of the process.

» Jevelopment, through our ongoing GOLD Program
(C obal Organizational Leadership Development) set up
fc - top-caliber employees, through ongoing training of
si les and consulting staff and through a new program
el titled the Atos Origin University, to be rolled out in

tr 3 second half of 2002. The program includes semi-
n. rs (in collaboration with the Institute of Management
D welopment in Lausanne and INSEAD in Paris),

a. e-Learning and Atos Origin international discussion




forum on the Group’s Intranet. The goal is to forge
global expert teams committed to sharing knowledge
and best practices.

¢ Contributing to Group growth by means of the
employee stock purchase plan described below.

1.10.3 Employee Turnover

Thanks to the Group's loyalty policy, and despite
recruitment pressures in the high technology sector,
employee turnover increased only slightly during
the first half of 2001 to 15.2%. In the second half,

the events of September 11th had the effect of relieving

these pressures. Thus, by maintaining its policy,
the Group managed to reduce employee turnover to
10.3% at pericd end.

1.710.4 Ermployze Steck Purchase Plan

In 1998, Atos (pre merger) set up an employee stock
purchase plan for its workforce in France, based on a
corporate savings plan (PEE) managed in a fund
invested 80% in Atos stock and frozen for 5 years.

in 2000, the plan was extended to encompass employ-
ees of German and Spanish subsidiaries.

An extension of this scheme - the new "AOwner” plan -
directed at Atos Origin Group employees will enable

in 2002 our employees to purchase Atcs Origin stock
(or shares in a fund invested in Atos Origin stock, in
accordance with the relevant local legislation) at a 20%
discount in relation to the market price. Employees will
also receive one stock subscription option for each lot
of four shares purchased, provided a share and option
embargo period. This plan should be offered to Atos Origin
employees every year, That program should not create
share dilution of more than 1% of the common stock.
During the last four years, three common stock issues
have represented an increase in capital of close to
EUR 17 million.

1.10.5 Stock Subscription Opiions

in December 2001, 646,750 stock subscription options
were allotted to Group employees. With 1,296 benefici-
aries, the number of employees receiving such options
marked a 50% increase over the previous year.

During 2001, 89,308 stock subscription options have
been exercized.

At December 31, 2001, a total of 3,779,172 stock
subscription options had been allotted to Group
employees, representing about 8.6% of total undiluted
common stock.

1.10.6 Direclors’ GCompensation

Total compensation of EUR 3.6 million was paid to
members of the Atos Crigin Management Board and
Supervisory Board (14 individuals) in fiscal year 2001,
including EUR 0.15 million in directors’ fees.

The summary table below presents information on total
compensation (which includes salaries, bonuses and
fringe benefits, director’s fees) paid to the six members
of the Management Board and the eight members of
the Supervisory Board.

Direclers Compensatien of which,
2001 director’s fees

Dominique Bazy €18,672 €18,672

Cor Boonstra €18,672 £18672

Bernard Bourigeaud €1,141 479

Hervé Couffin €15624 €15,624

Dominique Ferrero €12,576 €12,576

Eric Guilhou €410,484

Jan Hommen €21,720 €21720

Dominique lllien €706,840

Wilbert Kighoom €333,953

Timothy G. Lomax €326,826

Henri Pascaud €232,340 €21,720

Jean-Frangois Théodore €21,720 €21,720

Jans Tielman £€248,485

Arie Westerlaken €21,720 €21,720
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FINANCGIAL BEPORT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Report

Auditors’ Report? on the Consolidated Firancial Statamen

(s

In accordance with our appointment as auditors by your Annual Gener
statementé of Atos Qrigin, drawn up in euros, for the year ended Dece

The consclidated financial statements have been approved by the Mar

these financial statements, based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards ap
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whei
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, e\
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the account|
by managément, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement p

! . W
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opiniion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fai
liabilities of the Group as of December 31, 2001 and the resuits of its
with accouinting principles generally accepted in France.

We have a{lso verified the Group financial information given in the repor
in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We he
of this information nor its consistency with the consolidated financial st

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, Me

Amyot Exco Grant Thornton

Member of Grant Thornton International

Daniel Kurkdjian
i Gilles Hengoat

The Auditors,

I Meeting, we have audited the consolidated financial
Aber 31+, 2001, presented on pages 21 to 46.

agement Board. Our role is to express an opinion on

licable in France. Those standards require that we
1er the consolidated financial statements are free of
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
ig principles used and significant estimates made
asentation. We believe that our audit provides a

view of the financial position and the assets and
perations for the year then ended in accordance

entitled Management Discussion and Analysis,
‘e no comment to make as to the fair presentation
tements.

ch 12", 2002

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Jean-Paul Picard
Jean-Marc Lumet

i (This is a free translation of the original French te: : for information purposes only.)

Atos Origih Annual Report 2001




2.1.2 Consolidated Income Statement

(in EUR mitiions) Peried ended Perigd ended Period ended
Dec. 31+, 2001 Dec. 31¢, 2000 Sept. 30", 1283
Notes (12 moniits) (15 months) ™ 12 months) ™
Revenue 3,037.6 1,913.7 1,083.4
Operating costs and expenses 23.243) (1,227.9) (818.8) (500.9)
Personnel expenses 2.3.2.0) (1,548.5) {933.9) (478.8)
Total operating expenses (2,776.4) (1,752.7) (979.7)
Income from operations 261.2 161.0 103.7
% of revenue 8.6% 8.4% 9.6%
Net financial expense 2.3.2.0 9.6) (5.8) (2.6)
Net income on ordinary activities 251.6 155.2 1011 —
|
Non-recurring items 2.3.2.4) 2.9) (42.1) 8.4) !
Corporate income tax 2.3.2.8) (84.0) (33.9) (26.4) ‘
Net income before equity affiliates, )
minority interests and amortization of goodwill 164.7 79.2 66.3 4‘
Share in income of equity affiliates 0.1 0.3) 0.2
Minority interests 2.3.2.9) {(18.3) (11.2) 4.3)
Net income before amortization of goodwill 146.3 67.7 62.2 %
% of revenue 4.8% 3.5% 5.7% %
Q
Amortization of goodwill 2.3.4.9) 233 (19.2) (14.7) 52
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ~ GROUP SHARE 123.0 43.5 415 b,
% of revenue 4.0% 2.5% 4.4% g
X
NET EARNINGS PER SHARE =

{based on weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period)

Weighted average number of shares ™™ 43,806,925 26,064,573 21,230,098
Earnings per share before amortization of goodwill {in euros) 3.34 2.60 ’ 293
Basic earnings per share (in euros) 281 186 2.24
Diluted average number of shares 53,801,424 34,562,790 24,048,019
Earnings per share before amortization of goodwill (in euros) 2.93 2.10 2.69
Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 2.49 1.62 2.10

() See Notes to the consolidated financial statements (2.3.2).

(**) Fiscal year ended December 31*, 2000: Atos 15-month period, Origin 3-month period.
Fiscal year ended September 30, 1999: Atos 12-month period.

{"**) The 21.9 million new shares issued at the time of the Origin merger came into circulation on October 31¢, 2000.
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22

(in EUR milions) Notes* 2z 37,2007 Dec. 31+, 2000 Sept. 30,1833
ASSETS

Goodwill - 2.3.4.3) 405.4 3100 232.2
Other intadgib\e fixed assets 2.3.4b) 22.9 413 21.3
Tangible fi>;<ed assets 2.3.4.0) 303.8 1948 82.5
Investments 2.3.4.4) 39.5 26.5 9.3
Total fixed assets 7M.7 572.6 345.3
Accounts sajnd notes receivable, trade 2.3.4.€) 970.8 856.3 363.3
Other recejvables, prepayments and accrued income 2341 260.1 244 4 89.8
Transferabie securities 2.3.4.) 83.2 495 973
Cash at bank and in hand 2.3.4) 933 80.8 52.6
Total curr:ent assets 1,407.5 1,231.0 603.0
TOTAL ASSETS 2,179.2 1,803.6 948.3

1

{in EUR miflions) Noles* I35 87,2000 Dec. 31,2000 Sept. 30,1838
LIABLE is AND SHAREHOLDEZRS' EQUITY

Common stock 2.34.9) 439 438 214
Additionat pald-in capital 35.2 329 24.0
Consolidated reserves 226.0 180.3 149.6
Transbation} adjustments 7.1 5.0 .
Net incomé for the period 123.0 485 475
Shareholdérs’ equity - Group share 435.2 3105 242.4
Minority inferests 2.3.4.0) 43.5 194 14.9
Total shareholders’ equity 478.7 3299 257.3
Provisions for contingencies and losses 2.3.4.0) 251.1 405.0 59.9
Barrowings 2.3.4)) 4117 2438 199.9
Accounts payable — trads 234 423.2 335.1 154.6
Other Habiﬁties, accruals and deferred income 2.3.4.m) 614.5 489.8 276.6
Total liabilities 1,449.4 1,068.7 631.1
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2,179.2 1,803.6 948.3

i
(7) See Notes to the consolidated financial statements (2.3.4)
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2.1.4 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(in EUR millions) Pzriod ended Period ended Pericd ended
Cec. 31, 2001 Dec. 31, 2083 Sept. 30", 1858@

Net Income before equity affiliates, minority interests

and amortization of goodwill 164.7 79.2 66.3
Depreciation, amortization and provisions 156.3 107.5 26.6
Exceptional depreciation, amortization and provisions (198.8) (33.2) (30.6)
Net (gains)/losses on disposals of fixed assets (20.1) (1.1 (16.8)
Deferred taxes 36.8 156.6 9.1
Net cash from operations before changes in working capital 138.8 168.0 546
Changes in working capital 489 (42.1) (19.2)
Net cash from operating activities 187.8 125.9 354
Purchases of tangible and intangible fixed assets (139.3) (118.7) 63.7)
Proceeds from disposals of tangible and intangible fixed assets 1.7 1.7 22.2
Net operating investments ' (127.6) (107.0) (41.5)
Purchases of financial investments (207.8) 80.2) (35.4)
Proceeds from disposals of financial investments 336 21.8 177
Net cash and cash equivalents of companies purchased 2
or sold during the year 42 97.9 129
Net financial investments (170.0) 39.5 4.8
Net cash used in investing activities (297.6) {67.5) (46.3)
T
Comman stock issues 24 , 9.0 8.6 §
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries 4.4) 6.7) (1.3) g
New loans 1912 35.3 1773 B
Repayments of long- and medium-term borrowings (35.1) (114.0) (26.2) ;
Net cash from financing activities 154.1 (76.4) 158.4 %
9
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 443 (18.0) 1475 =
Opening cash and cash equivalents 130.3 149.9 2.4
increase {Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 443 (18.0) 147.5
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations 1.9 (1.6
Closing cash and cash equivalents 176.5 130.3 149.9
Opening net debt (113.5) (50.0) (41.5)
Opening lease finance liabilities (30.0)
New loans (191.2) (35.3) (177.3)
Repayments of long- and medium-term borrowings 35.1 114.0 26.2
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivatents 44.3 (18.0) 147.5
Other movements® . 9.9 (94.2) 4.9
Closing net debt (235.2) (113.5) (50.0)

(1) Fiscal year ended December 31%, 2000: Atos 15 months, Grigin 3 months.
(2) Fiscal year ended September 30", 1999: Atos 12 months.

() "Other movements” include the net long and medium-term debt of companies purchased or sold during the year, the impact of foreign exchange rates on net debt and
profit-sharing amounts payable to French employees transferred to debt.
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2.1.8 G@m@m}aﬁe@] Statement of Changes in Sharcholders’ Zquity

2.1.6
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{in EUR m.llions) Numberof Commen Addit. Consolideted Transiafions Ket Equily, WMingrily  Tolal
: shares et Stock rpald-in reserves  Adiusiments incomezfer CGroup Inferesis  equity
peried end capital the period  shere
September 30, 1999 21,366,235 214 241 149.6 0.2) 475 2424 149 2573
Commen stock issues 05 8.8 9.3 9.3
Transfer of Origin Shares to Atos 219 1806 202.5 202.5
Goodwilt cparged to paid-in capital (180.6) (180.6) {180.5)
Translation adjustments 52 52 0.1 51
Appropriaiion of prior period
net incomg 475 (47.5) 0.0 0.0
Net Incormie for the period 485 485 112 597
Lease finance adjustments (2.7 (2.7 (2.7
Treasury sjtock (14.1) (14.1) (14.1)
Redemption of common stock 0.0 @8 (3.6)
Dividends{paid 0.0 30 (30
December 31%, 2000 43,764,396 438 329 180.3 5.0 485 3105 19.4 3299
Common étock issues for cash 01 2.3 2.4 24
Translatiorj adjustments 2.1 2.1 4.2 4.2
Appropriaiion of prior period net income 485 (48.5) 0.0 0.0
Net Incom:e for the period 1230 1230 183 1413
Treasury stock 4.9 4.9 (4.9)
Changes in Group structure 0.0 10.0 10.0
Dividendspaid 0.0 @2 (4.2
December 31*, 2001 43,853,704 439 352 226.0 71 1230 4352 435 4787
Segment Infermaiicn
Informa:tion by Service Line
(in EUR m‘illions) Consutting & Maraged On-line Corporate Group
1 Systems Services Sarvices
[nfegration
Period ended Dec. 31%, 2001
Revenue - 1,489.5 1,119.8 428.3 3,037.6
Income from operations 1337 127.9 44.8 (45.2) 261.2
Fixed assets 48.3 226.4 457 6.4 326.8
Year-end number of employees 14,931 8,185 3,052 110 26,278
Period eﬁded Dec. 31, 2000"
Revenue - ) 1,483.9 941.9 404.0 2,829.8
Income frcj)m operations ‘ 116.1 996 48.7 (89.3) 175.2
Year-end humber of employees 14,767 6,630 5,358 161 26,916

("} Pro forrﬁa figures (see note 2.3.3)

Atos Orlgin Annual Report 2001




2.2

Information by Geographical Area

{in EUR millions} France The EEA™ Americas®  Asia Pacific® Corporate Greup
Metherlands

Period ended Dec. 31%, 2001

Revenue 1,089.2 797.4 877.3 207.5 66.2 3,037.6
Income from operations 107.2 117.0 75.8 5.4 1.0 45.2) 261.2
Fixed assets 1416 132.8 30.6 7.4 8.0 6.4 326.8
Year-end number of employees 8,419 7,114 7,971 1,517 1,147 110 26,278
Period ended Dec. 31%, 2000

Revenue 951.5 668.7 864.0 268.4 77.2 2,829.8
Income from operations 1054 88.2 752 (1.1 5.8 (89.3) 175.2
Year-end number of employees 9,732 6,093 7,961 1,881 1,088 161 26,916

(1) Europe, Middie-East, Africa: Germany, Switzertand, ltaly, Spain, Portugal, Andarra, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom, Poland, Austria, Hungary, Czech Republic,

Saudi Arabia.
(2) United States, Canada, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Peru.

(3) Australia, China, Hong-Kong, India, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan, Thailand, The Philippines.

() Pro forma figures (see note 2.3.3)

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Major changes to the scope of consolidation during the
period were as follows:

Acquisilions

January 2001: The company strengthened its partner-
ship with Euronext through the acquisition by Atos
Euronext of the entire common stock of the Dutch
company AEX-information Technology B.V, renamed
Atos Euronext Netherlands, for a consideration of
EUR 22.5 million, and of the Belgian company Atos
Euronext Belgium, for a consideration of EUR 4 million.
Both companies were placed under the operating and
financial management of Atos Euronext on January 1¢,
2001 and are fully consolidated from this date.

March 2001: Atos Crigin increased its interest in Atos
Cdyssée from 79% to 86% in accordance with the
progressive stock purchase agreement. This additional
interest was purchased for a consideration of

EUR 1.6 million. Atos Odyssée is a French company
included in the Consulting and Systems Integration
Division.

2.2.2.

April 2001: Atos Origin acquired the French company
Inexis Conseil (Integration of SAP software packages)
for a consideration of EUR 1.3 million.

October 2001: Atos Origin acquired the datacenter
operations of KPN for a consideration of

EUR 163 million. The company was renamed Atos
Crigin Telco Services.

Disposals

March 2001: The Group disposed of its 33% interest
in Atto! (France — Systems Integration). This disposal
does not impact Group revenue as Attol was equity
accounted.

May 2001: The Group disposd of its 80% interest

in Securteam (Systems Integration). This company
generated revenue of EUR 0.7 million during the period
1o May 2001.

November 2001: The Group disposed of its customer
contact center business to SNT. These activities gener-
ated revenue of EUR 82 milion during the

11-month period to November 2001.
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2.3 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting Policies

With effect from January 19, 2001, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the f‘nevv accounting rules and methods applicable
to consalidated financial statements” approved by the
Order ofidune 22%, 1999, implementing the Accounting
Standards Committee Regulation CRC 99-02.

These aéoounting policies do not differ from those
previously adopted by the Group and detailed in the
Notes 10 the consolidated financial statements
presentéd in the 2000 annual report.

In accordance with the option offered by Regulation

99-02, Atos Origin has not retroactively adjusted invest-

ment and divestment transactions performed prior to
January 1%, 2001.

With eﬁéct from January 1%, 2002, the Group will adopt
CRG Regulation 00-06 regarding liabilities. Application
of this regulation will not have a material impact on
openingishareholders’ equity of the next fiscal period.

Gonsolidation Rules

a) Methcds of consolidation

The finar{mcial statements of companies over which Atos
Origin {hareinafter referred to as “the Company”)
exerciseé exclusive control, whether directly or
indirectly, are fully consolidated.

The financial statements of companies in which voting
rights aré split between the Company and another
shareholder are consolidated as follows:

. companies over which the Company has effective
control df their business operations are fully consoli-
dated;

. compajnies over which the Company exercises signifi-
cant infilience are accounted for using the equity
method.;Significant influence is assumed to exist where
more than 20% of voting rights are held.

Investments satisfying the above criteria but which are
not intedded to be held on a long-term basis or which
are not nﬁateriai have not been consolidated.

Atos Orr‘fgim Annual Report 2001

b) Basis of consolidation

All companies are consolidated on the basis of financial
statements or accounts drawn up to December 315 and
adjusted, where necessary, in accordance with Group
accounting policies.

¢) Foreign companies

The balance sheets of subsidiaries which do not use
the single European currency are translated into euros
at year-end rates of exchange and their income state-
ments are translated at average exchange rates for the
year. The impact of exchange rate movements on the
balance sheet and net income for the year is taken to
shareholders’ equity under “Translation adjustments”.

d) Goodwill

Goodwill represents that portion of the difference
between the cost of an investment and the Group’s
share in the adjusted net assets of the company
acquired as of the date of acquisition, not allocated to
fair value adjustments. Goodwill is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated period of benefit,
not exceeding 20 years. The net value of goodwill

is regularly reviewed taking into account any
circumstances which may have significantly affected its
fair value.

€) Origin goodwill

Atos signed a Transfer and Subscription Agreement on
August 27", 2000 under which Royal Phifips
Electronics transferred 98.2% of Origin common stock
to Atos, in consideration for the issue of 19,532,732
Atos shares and 2,387,836 Atos shares each with two
stock subscription warrants attached (ABSA).

The ABSA were divided immediately after issue into
2,387,836 shares and 4,775,672 stock subscription
warrants.

On October 1%, 2000, following the fair value adjust-
ment of Origin’s assets and liabilities, the resulting
goodwill was deducted from additional paid-in capital
recognized at the time of the transfer, up to the amount
thereof, in accordance with COB monthly bulletin No. 210
of January 1988. The residual balance was recorded

in assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The warrants will be recorded in the accounts on
exercise. Additional goodwill shall be recognized

and deducted from the corresponding additional
paid-in capital.




Origin is included in the scope of consolidation

from October 1%, 2000. The shareholders’ meeting

to approve the business transfer was held on October
31%, 2000, while the executive management bodies of the
new Group came into effect on October 1%, 2000.
Notional annual amortization of EUR 9.0 million would
have been recorded in respect of the Origin goodwill
had this not been partially offset against additional
paid-in capital in fiscal year 2000.

7) Effective date of acquisitions and disposals

Net income of companies acquired or sold during the
course of the fiscal year is recorded in the consolidated
income statement with effect from the date control is
acquired or up to the date of disposal respectively.

g) Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure in respect of
specific applications or products is expensed in the
period incurred.

h) Other intangible fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets primarily comprise
software acquired by the Group and amortized on a
straight-line basis over periods specific to each acquisi-
tion, subject to a maximum of five years. The cost of
software developed for internal or commercial use is
generally expensed in the period incurred.

It may however be capitalized within intangible fixed
assets where the following conditions are satisfied:
 the project is clearly identified and the corresponding
costs are itemized and monitored in a reliable manner;
* the technical design feasibility of the software is
demonstrated;

¢ the Group intends to produce, commercialize or use
the software internally;

* a potential market exists for software intended for
rental, sale or marketing in any other form and the utility
of the software to the Group has been approved in the
case of internal use;

» sufficient resources exist to carry the project through
to commercialization or internal use;

* the Group possesses the management and monitor-
ing tools necessary to satisfy these conditions.

Only costs incurred during the software production
phase are capitalized, with costs incurred during
design, user configuration and follow-up phases
expensed in the period.

The Group holds a number of patents but has not
granted any licenses in respect thereof. The Group
incurs license fees in respect of licenses granted to it.

These fees are recorded in the income statement under
“Operating costs and expenses”.

i) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded at acquisition cost
net of any interest expenses.

They are depreciated on a straight-line or reducing-
balance basis over the following expected useful lives:

e Buildings: ... ... oo 20 years

e Fixtures and fittings:  ............ 5to 10 years
e Computer hardware: . ........... 3to 5vyears
sVehicles: ........ ... ... . ... 4 years

o Office furniture and equipment: . 5to 10 vyears
Assets acquired under operating lease contracts are
not capitalized.

Assets acquired under finance lease contacts are
capitalized and the corresponding borrowing recorded
in liabilities in the balance sheet.

The accounting policy adopted by the Group is consis-
tent with IAS 17 “Leases”.

j) Investments

Non-consolidated participating interests are stated at
the lower of acquisition cost and fair value.

Fair value corresponds to fair value to the Group, taking
into account the Group’s share in adjusted net worth
and the future profitability prospects of the Company.

A provision for impairment is recorded where the fair
value of an investment falls below its acquisition cost.

k) Operating receivables

Cperating receivables are recorded at nominal value.
They are assessed individually and, where appropriate,
a provision is raised to take likely recovery problems
into account.

) Transferable securities

Transferable securities are recorded in the balance
sheet at the lower of acquisition cost and market value.
For listed securities, market value is equal to the stock
market price at the fiscal year-end. SICAV units are
recorded at net asset value. Unrealized capital gains
are not recognized.

my) Provisions for contingencies and losses

Atos Origin merger provisions

These provisions concern the Atos Origin merger and
break down as follows:

o fair value adjustment Origin: initially established to
cover long-term commitments to purchase software
licenses for which there was no corresponding
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businessj, disputes, litigation and claims as well as previ-
ously idéntiﬁed employee-related and tax contingencies
and \ossﬁes to completion on fixed-price contracts, and
merger-integration:

* provisions for discontinued operations,

. provisi‘fons for reorganization (employee costs),

. provisibns for real estate end data center rationalization
(closure of business sites, regrouping, optimization, etc.).

Provisions for retirement benefits and similar
commitfments

The Group valuation policy for retirement benefits and
simitar cbmmitments complies with IAS 19.

In accordance with the recommendations detailed in
this standard, a periodic valuation of these commit-
ments is performed by independent actuarial experts
using the projected unit credit method. This actuarial
method ‘;notably involves a number of assumptions
regarding employee turnover, salary increases and the
expected future return on plan assets. The discounted
present value of these commitments is then calculated
using a discount rate taking account of the financial
environnﬁent in the different countries concerned and
multip\ieb by a coefficient reflecting the remaining
workingilife of employess before payment of the
benefits|provided by the different regimes.

The assets allocated to finance these employee
commitments are recorded at fair value and the
expected yield on plan assets is determined taking into
accountfthe make-up of investments.

Actuariall differences resulting from changes in assump-
tions, plan amendments or differences between actual
and expécted returns on plan assets, are amortized
over the@aotivity period or the expected remaining life of
beneﬂcié;ries, in so far as they exceed the 10% “corridor”
provided for by IAS 19,

Charges relating to defined benefit plans are expensed
as incurred.

n) Debt issuance costs and bond redemption
premiums

Debt issuance costs are included in deferred charges

and refeased to the income statement on a straight-line

basis over the life of the loan.

Bonds efre recorded in liabilities in an amount corre-

spondiné to the issue proceeds and a provision raised

over theélife of the loan to cover the net-of-tax amount

of the re:Iated premiums.

i

i
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o) Financial instrumenis

The Group uses various financial instruments to hedge
against foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

All hedging instruments are traded with leading
counterparties.

Foreign exchange risks are hedged using forward
contracts and currency swaps and interest rate risks
using standard interest rate swap agreements.

Hedging gains and losses are matched against the loss
or gain on the hedged item.

p) Revenue

Revenue corresponds to the proceeds from sales of
services and equipment carried out by fully consoli-
dated companies in the normal course of business.
Consulting & Systems Integration Division revenue from
fixed-price contracts is recognized in line with the
technical completion of projects. When income from
fixed-price contracts'to develop individual applications
or integrated systems is recorded over the course of
several fiscal years, it is recognized using the percent-
age completion method. The excess of costs over
billings is recorded in the balance sheet under
“Accounts and notes receivable - trade” and the
excess of billings over costs under “Deferred income”.
Managed Services Division revenue is generally deter-
mined based on a fixed-price and/or a number of

IT work units.

On-line services Division revenue largely corresponds
to transaction volumes and IT services rendered.

g) Net income on ordinary activities

Net income on ordinary activities comprises the results
of operations and financing transactions of the various
Group business lines and any write-downs of non-
consolidated participating interests.

r) Non-recurring items

Non-recurring income and expenses relate to events
and operations clearly outside the crdinary activities of
the Group, which are neither frequent nor regular in
occurrence.

s) Corporate income tax

The tax charge recorded in the Income Statement is the
total of the current and deferred tax charge. The Group
accounts for deferred tax using the liability method on all
temporary differences between the book value and tax
base of assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet, with the exception of goodwill and the
undistributed earnings of consolidated companies.




2.3.2

The deferred tax charge is not discounted to present
value. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted off
at taxable entity level,

Deferred tax assets corresponding to temporary differ-
ences and tax loss carryforwards are recognized in the
accounts and a provision raised where the likelihood of
realization of taxable profits at tax entity level is consid-
ered low based on available historical and forecast
information.

The accounting policy adopted by the Group is consis-
tent with IAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

Noles to e Consolidated Income Statement

a) Operating Costs and Expenses

1) Earnings per share

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) is calculated by
dividing net income before or after amortization of
gocdwill by:

* the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the period (basic earnings per share),

¢ the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the period, plus the number of shares that could
be issued as a result of the exercise in full of all convert-
ible securities outstanding (diluted earnings per share).

{in EUR millions)

Period ended
Sept. 30", 1889
(12 menths

Period ended
Dec. 31, 2060
(15 menths) ©

Pericd ended
Cec. 37, 2C07
{12 months)

)
Equipment, supplies and sub-contracting costs (425.9) (307.5) (223.0)
Royalties paid to content providers (50.3) (58.4) (41.9)
Real-estate operating costs (112.9) (65.4) (33.7)
Equipment costs and maintenance (149.2) (86.1) (69.5)
Travel and entertainment (102.2) {59.6) 29.1)
Telecommunications (114.4) (68.0) @419
Depreciation and amortization {136.5) (88.7) (36.9)
Net charge to operating provisions (14.4) (16.2) 104
Taxes other than corporate income tax 25.1) (12.0) (13.3)
Other operating costs and expenses 97.4) (46.9) (22.0)
TOTAL (1,227.9) (818.8) (500.9)

{*) The 2000 final period covers an exceptional period of 15 months for Atos and 3 months for Origin: period 2001 and 2000 are not comparable.
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b) Personnel Expenses

Analysisiof personnel expenses

{in ELR miflions)

Pzriod ended
Dac, 31%, 28300

Periot ended
Sept. 30", 1839

‘ s} (15 months) {12 montrs)
Wages and salaries (1 187 O) (678.7) (338.8)
Social secﬁjrity contributions (353.4) (251.3) (136.9)

. (1,540.4) (930.0) (475.7)
Employee brofit-sharing (France only) 8.1) (3.9 3.1
TOTAL ' (1,548.5) (933.9) (478.8)
() The 200[51 finaf period covers an exceptional period of 15 manths for Atos and 3 months for Origin: period 2001 and 2000 are not comparable.

1
Breakdo'wn of employee numbers by geographice! region
Gaograprical region Numier of Change Average Change

‘ emplovess number ¢f

: Dec. 37 ¢, 2000 mployees

j 2090
France 8,419 9,732 -13%* 8,757 +18%
The Netherlands 7,114 6,098 +17% 6,230 0%
EMEA | 7,971 7,961 0% 7,067 1%
Americas | 1517 1,881 -19% 2,197 -21%
Asia - Pagific 1,147 1,088 +5% 1,125 +2%
Corporate: 110 161 -32% 168 -26%
TOTAL . 26,278 26,916 -2% 26,442 +4%

() 18% increase in employee numbers, excluding call center activities.

Management compensaiion

Total compensation allocated between January 1%, 2001 and December 31%, 2001 to members of the Atos Origin S.A.

Management Board and the Chairman of the Supervisory Board (7 individuals) amounted to EUR 4,590,000.

Members of the Atos Origin S.A. Supervisory Board received directors’ fees of EUR 152,424 during the same period.

i
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c) Net Financial Expense

Analysis of net financial expense

{in EUR miitions) lmoome Exnense Pericd enzed Period ended Period ended
Dec. 31%,200%  Dec. 31,2002 Sept. 30", 1923
{:2moniks) (I5 monihs)™ (12 months)
Convertible bond issues*™ (3.9 (3.9 4.7 0.5)
Long and medium-term borrowings (3.5 (3.5) (1.3) (1.9)
Lease financing 7 (1.7 (1.8) *
Short-term horrowings - 0.4) 2.2
Net interest expense 9.1) (9.1) (8.2) (4.6)
Exchange gains and losses 6.1 (5.7) 0.4 2.9 06
Financial provisions ™ 0.3 (3.5) (3.2) 0.2) 0.2)
Other financial income and expense 8.1 (5.8) 2.3 5.0 16
TOTAL 14.5 (24.1) {9.6) (5.8) (2.6) —

{*) The 1999 net interest expense is EUR 6 miltion after adjustment of the net expense for financial costs on lease finance contracts (EUR 1.4 million), following the change
in method adopted by the Group with effect from October 1%, 1999.

(**) The 2000 final period covers an exceptional period of 15 months for Atos and 3 months for Qrigin: period 2001 and 2000 are not comparable.

("} Charges to financial provisions included in the net financial expense 2001 total EUR 5.4 million:
- EUR 3.2 million in respect of non-consolidated participating interests
- EUR 2.2 million charged to the convertible bonds redemption premium provision,

Interest rate information

Average Group borrowings increased from approximately EUR 104 million in fiscal year 2000 to EUR 184 million in fiscal
year 2001. The cost of borrowings fell to 5.2% from 5.5% last year.

d) Non-Recurring ltems

Net non-recurring expenses of EUR 2.9 million, included the following:

* EUR 19 million integration and rationalization and reorganization costs including EUR 9 million provisions to cover restruc-
turing planned in 2002,

* net capital gains of EUR 23 million realized on the disposal of assets, including minority, non-core businesses such as Attol
in France and Securteam in Italy, and the disposal of the customer contact centers in France to SNT;

* other charges reported in fiscal year 2001 were incurred in connection with plans for changeover to the euro

(EUR 3.2 million), provisions for contingencies and losses (EUR 2.6 million), notably employee-related, and impairment

of assets (EUR 1.1 million,.

1O IVIONTNIZ / “\3)

e) Gorporate Income Tax

Current and deferred taxes

(in EUR millions) Peried ended Des, 3¢, 2001 Period ended Dac. 31%, 2050 Pariod ended Sept. 30", 1989
{(“2 montis) (15 months) {{2 menths)

France inlernalional Tolal France International Total Frence International Tolal

Current taxes (24.9) 22.3) (47.2) (15.0) (3.4) (18.4) 9.5) (7.8) (17.3)
Deferred taxes (0.6) {36.2) (36.8) (3.3) (12.2) (15.5) (7.0) 2.1 9.1)
TOTAL (25.5) (58.5) (84.0) (18.3) (15.6) (33.9) (16.5) (9.9) {26.4)

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001 31




The corpbrate income tax charge for the period ended December 31¢, 2001 was EUR 84.0 million, representing a notional
group tax rate of 33.8% of income before tax and amortization of goodwill.

Pericd entled
Jec. 31%, 2030

i
{in EUR milfions)

. 1 . s
Net income on ordinary activities

155.2
Non-recurring items (42.1)
NET INCOME BEFORE TAX AND AMORTIZATIGN OF GOODWILL 113.1

Effestive raie of tax
The difference between the standard French corporate income tax rate and the effective tax rate breaks down as foliows:
I

Period ended

(in EUR millions)
; Dec. 31, 2380

Net income; before tax but after amortization of goodwill

93.6
; French standard tax rate 36.4% 37.7%
! Theorsticalltax charge at French standard rate (82.0) (35.2)
r Impact of dermaﬂent differences (8.6) (7.2)
) Foreign incbme taxed at different rates 2.7 2.5
2 i Unrecognized deferred tax assets 58 6.2
' Other 1.9 0.2)
/ Group tax|charge (84.0) (33.9)
. Effective tax rate 37.3% 36.2%
5 Net incomé before tax and amortization of goodwill 2487 113.1
o Group tax charge (84.0) (33.9)
@I Notional Qroup tax rate 33.8% 30.0%
< ;
%) Breakdovan of deferred tax assets by type and origin:
=z

% (in EUR milfians) Gross valig Provisicn g
Tax losses carried forward ' 61.8 (46.3) 15.5
Temporary ;differences, adjustments and provisions 89.1 (26.9) 62.2

TOTAL 150.9 (73.2) 71.7

Deferred tax assets not provided represent profits recognized in the accounts, by tax unit, in respect of probable future tax
savings. Such savings are restricted to the ability of each tax unit to recover these assets in the near future.

Deferred ?[ax assets are not discounted to present value as the impact of discounting is not material at individual tax unit
level andfcertain tax units are unable to produce a reliable reversatl schedule.

The counitries with the largest tax losses available for carry forward are the United States (EUR 44.1 million), Germany
(EUR 30.9 million) and Brazil (EUR 17.3 million).
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Tax losses carried forward are as follows:

{in EUR miltions) atoes. 309, at Jec, 31¢, 2t Sept. 30M,
ZC07 2033 1823

Ordinary tax losses carried forward 69.8 61.1 25.1

2001 - - 12

2002 14 1.6 24

2003 26 9.1 6.4

2004 41 111 15.1

2005 17 13.0

2006 53

Tax losses available for carryforward more than 5 years 54.7 26.3

Evergreen tax losses carried forward 63.2 69.9 21.3

TOTAL TAX LOSSES CARRIED FORWARD 133.0 131.0 46.4

f) Minority Interests r

The minority interest share in net income is EUR 18.3 million.
The most significant balances concern:

¢ Diamis, Astria, Bourse Connect and Atos Euronext, companies in partnership with Euronext, for EUR 10.8 million; 5 9

* Atos Processing Services (APS), a German payment services specialist, for EUR 2.2 million; T

¢ Softtech, now Atos Origin Middle East, a Consulting and System Integration specialist in Saudi Arabia, for EUR 3.5 million. \

g) Net Income and Earnings Per Share for the Last 3 Fiscal Periods =
Weighted zverage Net income Per share 2
numzer of shares {in EUR millions) {in EUR) gg

12/31/01 (12 months) i

Net income on ordinary activities before tax 2516 574 %

Net income on ordinary activities after tax 167.6 383 0

Net income (Group share) befare amortization of goodwill 43,806,925 146.3 3.34 %ﬁ

Net income before tax - Group share 207.0 473

Net income - Group share 123.0 2.81

12/31/00 (15 months)

Net income on ordinary activities before tax 155.2 5.96

Net income on ordinary activities after tax 121.3 4.66

Net income (Group share) before amortization of goodwill 26,064,573 67.7 2.60

Net income before tax - Group share 824 3.16

Net income - Group share 48.5 1.86

09/30/99 (12 months)

Net income on ordinary activities before tax 101.1 4,76

Net income on ordinary activities after tax 747 3.52

Net income (Group share) before amortization of goodwill 21,230,098 62.2 2.93

Net income before tax - Group share 739 3.48

Net income - Group share 47.5 2.24
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h) Earniﬁgs Per Share

The Grod:p applies the earnings per share calculation rules described in Note 2.3.1.1). Under this method it is assumed that
funds refceived on the date of exercise of rights are invested at either the money market rate or the Group internal rate of

return.

Basic an:d diluted earnings per share may be reconciled as follows:

Period endsd

Dec. 31, 2001
($2 months)

Period endad
Des. 31%, 200D
{15 months)

Peried ended
Sept. 30, 1889
(12 meonths)

Net incom;e - Group share (a 123.0 485 47.5
Impact of the conversion of dilutive instruments 1.3 74 3.0
Diluted nbt income - Group share [b] 134.3 55.9 50.5
Weighted-average number of shares outstandings [c] 43,806,925 26,064,573 21,230,098
Impact of dilutive instriments;
« Convertible bonds (OCEANE) 1,440,501 1,440,501 1,440,501
 Philips étock subscription warrants 4,774,826 4,774,826 -
e Stock subscription option plans 3,779,172 2,282,890 1,377,420
Diluted aVerage number of shares outstandings [d] 53,801,424 34,562,790 24,048,019
Earnings per share in EUR [a}/[c] 2.81 1.86 2.24
‘ 249 162 210

Diluted earnings per share in EUR [b]/[d]

Pro Formz Income Statement
i

General|Principles

Pro forrﬁa financial statements for fiscal years 1999 and 2000 have been prepared in order to present the financial position
of the Agos Origin Group on a comparable basis, in accordance with the recommendations detailed in COB Bulletin No. 341

of Deceinber 1999.

The ﬂnahcial statements have been drawn up in accordance with Atos consolidation methods for the period ended
December 31%, 2000 (15 months) and adjusted to reflect the new fiscal year of the Atos Crigin Group (January 1% —

Decembfer 31%). Control of Crigin by Atos is considered effective from January 1%, 1999,

I
The Ato$ Origin pro forma consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with French generally
accepted accounting principles and the accouniing policies presented in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

¢
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2.3.4

Pro Forma Consolidated Income Statement

{in EUR millions)

Period ended
Dec. 31%, 2000

Period ended
Dec. 31%, 1989

Period anded
Dee. 37+, 2001

Revenue 3,037.6 2,829.8 2,726.7
Income from operations 261.2 175.2 229.3
% of revenue 8.6% 6.2% 8.4%
Net income for the period 123.0 70.5 107.2
% of revenue 4.0% 2.5% 3.9%
Weighted average number of shares 43,806,925 43,697,291 43,342,128
Earnings per share before amortization of goodwill (eurcs) 334 2.06 2.90
Basic earnings per share (euros) 2.81 1.61 2.47
Neotes to the Conselidated Balance Sheet
a) Goodwill
(in EUR millions) Sept. 30",  Acquisitions  Disposals/ Dec 31¥,  Acquisitions Dispesals/ Cec 314,
1883 Charge Reversat 2000 Charge Reversal 2000
Gross value 290.5 104.2 (8.5) 386.2 123.4 (6.5) 503.1 1 2
Amortization (58.3) (19.2) 1.3 (76.2) (23.3) 1.8 (97.7) ‘
NET BOOK VALUE 2322 85.0 (7.2) 310.0 100.1 4.7) 405.4

Goodwilt net book value totaled EUR 232.2 million as of Septemiber 30", 1839, including EUR 95.6 million in respect of
Sligos and EUR 47.8 million in respect of GSI. The EUR 104.2 million increase in goodwill gross value during the period to
December 31, 2000 primarity comprised EUR 71.2 million in respect of Atos Origin, EUR 17.9 million in respect of the joint
venture created with Euronext and EUR 9.0 million in respect of the acquisition of Odyssée.

Goodwill was reduced by EUR 7.2 million, following the disposal of Phonepermanence and Managed Services contracts in

the United Kingdom.

Goodwill movements between December 31¢, 2000
and 2001 were as follows:

{in EUR milligns)

Net book value at Dec. 31, 2000 310.0
Atos/Origin merger (7.5)
Acquisitions

* Atos Euronext® 498
* Atos Origin Telco Services™ 66.5
o Other 14.6
Disposals

o Customer contact centers 4.7)
Amortization of goodwill (23.3)
Net boak value at Dec. 31%, 2001 405.4

(a) Expansion of the partnership in the Netherlands and Belgium
(b) KPN Datacenter

LHOAIY TVIONYNIA

Origin goodwill as at December 31, 2001 totaled

EUR 83.7 million. This represents the definitive goodwill
balance in accordance with French GAAP.

A number of adjustments were made to Origin goodwill
during 2001 reducing it by EUR 7.5 million, as follows:
e FUR 15.9 million reduction following the recognition
of deferred tax assets in respect of consolidated
entities presenting an improved likelihood of recovery
of tax losses in coming years,

* FUR 8.4 million increase, net of tax, following

a EUR 15.8 million increase in provisions.
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b) Other Intangible Fixed Assets

{in EUR mi:hons} Gress velue Amorization Net value

Septembér 30,1999 51.2 (29.9) 21.3
Additions, ¢charges 18.0 21.4) (3.4)
Disposals, reversals (11.5) 114 ©.1)
QOther movéments®” 40.0 (16.5) 235
December 31, 2000 97.7 (56.4) 41.3
Additions, éharges 10.7 (18.2) (7.5)
Disposals, reversals 2.6) 1.5 (1.1)
Other moveéments® (12.8) 3.0 9.8)
Decembe?~ 31+, 2001 93.0 (70.1) 229

|
() The “Other movements” line corresponds to changes in Group structure and translation differences.

- c) Tangible Fixed Assets
‘ {in EUR mil?ions) Land Buildings Computer Clher assels Fixed assels Payments Gress
; J‘ herdware in grogress ©n accoyunt vaiue
Y | Gross valjﬁe
Z ! at Sept. 30", 1999 1.7 54.4 100.2 .7 2.0 0.2 200.2
= Additions 139 68.5 12.9 1.3 08 974
/ Disposals (10.3) (40.2) (29.3) 0.3 (80.1)
Other movements 1.1 33.0 211.7 115.7 (1.6) 0.2 359.7
= Gross value
g at Dec. 31f', 2000 2.8 91.0 340.2 141.0 1.4 0.8 577.2
% Additions | 0.7 17.9 82.6 208 53 05 127.8
o Disposals ! (0.5) (19.8) (33.2) (32.0) {0.6) (86.1)
g Other movfements“’ 2.3 320 114.5 59 (1.1 0.1 153.7
Z Gross value
§ at Dec. 31%, 2001 5.3 1211 504.1 135.7 5.6 0.8 772.6
o, i
Accumuléted depreciation
at Sept. 30", 1999 (26.7) (63.9) (27.1) (17.7)
Charge ¢ (8.8 (55.0) (14.7) (78.5)
Release 7.1 338 27.4 68.3
Other movements (15.64 (148.0) (89.6) 0.3) (254.5)
Accumulated depreciation
at Dec. 31%, 2000 (44.0) (234.1) (104.0) 0.0 0.3) (382.4)
Charge | 9.5 (84.9 (19.9) (114.3)
Release 12.9 24.3 30.1 0.2 675
Other movements " (1.6) 32.1) (5.8) (39.5)
Accumulated depreciation
at Dec, 31%, 2001 (42.2) (326.8) (99.6) 0.0 {0.1) (468.7)
Net book value
at Dec. 31, 2001 53 789 177.3 36.1 5.6 0.7 303.9

(} The “Oth“er movements” line primarily corresponds to finance lease adjustments and changes in Group structure.
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d)' Investments

Investments comprise investments in equity affiliates
and non-consolidated participating interests, loans and
guarantee deposits.

Investments in equity affiliates total EUR 1.1million and
consist of the Group’s 35% interest in the Japanese
company TIS & Origin Consulting.

Investments in non-consolidated participating interests
total EUR 21.1 million and break down as follows:

¢ unlisted securities of EUR 17.9 million, comprising the
Group’s 12.4% interest in the German company B+S
Card Services (EUR 1.6 million);

* securities to be listed in the future of EUR 15.2 million
representing a 14.20% interest in the Dutch company
SNT received in exchange for the sale of the Group’s

¢) Accounts and Notes Receivable, Trade

customer contact center activities. The price of SNT's
shares on the Amsterdam Euronext market on
December 31, 2001 was EUR 8.76 (Euronext code:
38390), giving an investment value of EUR 13.5 million.
The 1,543,624 shares held comprise two tranches. The
first tranche of 843,624 shares may not be sold before
July 1¢, 2002 and the second tranche (700,000 securities)
not before March 31¢, 2004;

¢ listed securities of EUR 1.3 million representing the
Group’s 0.03% interest in the US company Rational
Software received in exchange for the sale of our inter-
est in Attol; the market value of this interest as of
December 31st is EUR 1.3 million (Nasdag code:
75409P202).

Loans and guarantee deposits total EUR 17.3 million.

(in EUR millions) Dec. 31°, Dec. 317, Sept. 30",

2021 20007 1989
Gross value 1,007.7 872.9 368.5
Provisions (36.8) (16.6) (5.2)
Net book value 970.9 856.3 363.3
Payments on account and advances received (87.8) (47.6) (52.0)
Deferred income and amount due to customers (incl. VAT) (67.5) (66.8) 41.7)
Discounted notes not yet matured 1.8
Accounts receivable (inc!, VAT) 815.6 .9 2714
Revenue (inct. VAT) 3,668.3 870.5 1,277.8
Number of days revenue outstandings 79 77 76

(") The average customer turnover period in fiscal year 2000 was determined based an revenues for the months October to December 2000.

f) Other Receivables, Prepayments and Accrued Income

(in EUR mitlions) Dee. 31%, Dec. 31¢, Sept. 307,

207 2000 1988
Recoverable VAT 41.0 43.0 229
Tax-related assets (carry back, minimum tax charge, tax credits)” 341 53.2 11.1
Deferred tax assets 90.0 75.1 6.9
Amounts receivable on disposals of tangible assets and investments)™ 17.5 1.0 10.5
Other receivables 307 36.0 16.9
Prepayments and accrued income 46.8 36.1 21.5
TOTAL 260.1 2444 89.8

(") Deferred tax assets are down EUR 13.1 million as a result of their utilization during 2001.

{**) Amounts receivable on asset disposals as of December 31%, 2001 comprise that portion of the customer contact center activities consideration receivable in 2002

and 2003.
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g) Cumnjmn Stock

' Commen stock Commen steck Commion sieck
(in EUR thausands) at Sept. 30", 1983 at Dec. 31, 20007 et Des, 31, 2001
Number ofjshares 21,366,235 43,764,396 43,853,704
Par value | EUR 1 EUR 1 EUR 1
TOTAL 21,366.2 43,764.4 43,853.7

() Issue of 21 .9 million shares on October 31%, 2000 as a result of the merger with Origin.

The following common stock issues were carried out in fiscal year 2001:

(in EUR thousands)

Date of Ménagemem Description Number of shares Impact on Impact on additional
Board megting issued COMMON SI0CK paid-in capital
December§31 #2001 Exercise of stock options 89,308 89.3 22777
TOTAL 89,308 89.3 2,277.7

h) Minority Interests

Minority irfﬂerests in shareholders' equity total EUR 43.5 million. The most significant balances concemn:
s Atos EQronext 5%, Bourse Connect and companies in partnership with Euronext: EUR 32.5 million,

¢ Atos Processing Services (APS), a German payment specialist company: EUR 4.7 milion,

* Atos Ofigin Middle-East: EUR 3.7 million.

i) Provisions for Contingencies and Losses

{in EUR mmic}ns) Sept. 307, Dec. 31%, Dag, 314,

i 1939 Other® Charge  Release 2000 Qther® Charge Relsese 2931
Fair value édjustmem Origin 0.0 1730 (44.0) 129.0 15.2 69.0) 75.2
Merger integration 0.0 1649 19.0 (24.4) 159.5 0.4 07 (1351) 24.7
Operating provisions 43.2 20.6 32.2 (35.9) 60.1 6.5 36.2 (44.6) 58.2
Pensions - 16.7 36.1 8.8 (5.2) 56.4 28.6 9.8 (1.8 93.0
TOTAL 59.9 394.6 60.0 (109.5) 405.0 499 467 (250.5) 2511

) The “Other” column comprises adjustments to the opening balance sheet, changes in Group structure and translation differences.

On Octotf)er 1, 2000, the company made a number of fair value accounting adjustments to the opening balance sheet

of Origin.; Provisions were charged against equity to cover long-term software license commitments for which there was

no correspending business, commercial disputes, litigation and claims as well as previously identified employee-related

and tax contingencies and losses to completion on fixed-price contracts. These provisions were increased by a further

EUR 15 million in 2001, based on our final assessment of those contingencies. EUR 69 million was charged against these
prov‘rsionjs in the period. At December 31, 2001, the majority of the EUR 75 million balance related to commitments

to purchase excess software licenses over a residual 5-year pericd and to employee and tax contingencies yet to be settled.

i
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Merger integration

(in EUR millions) Sep?. 30", Changesin Charge Release Dec. 31, Changes in  Charge  Release Dec. 317,
1999 Group 2000 Group 2009

structure & structure &

translation translation

differences difterences

Merger integration

Discontinued operations 0.0 20.9 (13.7) 7.2 6.7 {13.9) 0.0
Reorganization 0.0 125.2 (10.2) 115.0 (3.6) ©81.2) 20.2
Rationalization 0.0 19.4 0.0 0.3) 19.1 1.9 (14.1) 31
Integration costs 0.0 0.6) 19.0 0.2) 18.2 (1.6} 0.7 (15.9) 1.4
TOTAL 0.0 164.9 19.0 (24.4) 159.5 (0.9) 0.7 (135.1) 247

In Novermber 2000, the Atos Origin merger provision was also made against the opening equity of Origin to cover the cost of
implementing a restructuring plan, including significant staff reductions, the rationalization of premises and data processing
facilities, and discontinuing or disposing of a number of loss-making and non-core activities. in 2001, EUR 121 milion was
charged against these provisions to finance the cost of restructuring in the period, while EUR 14 million of restructuring
provisions was accounted for as operating activities to cover restructuring in 2002. At December 31, 2001, there remained
EUR 25 million to cover restructuring actions and we expect this to be utilized during the first half of 2002.

Operating provisions

(in EUR milions) Sept. 30", Changesin Charge Release Dec. 31, Cihenges in Charge Relzase Des, 31,
1832 Group 20060 Group 2081
struclure & struchure &
transtation {translation
differences differences
Provisions for
project commitments 6.9 6.9 10.9 8.1) 16.6 0.1 13 (10.5) 18.1
Euro &Y2K 5.2 3.3 341 (8.6) 3.1 (3.1) 0.0
Other 311 10.4 18.1 (19.2) 40.4 6.4 19.6 {26.3) 401
TOTAL 43.2 20.6 321 (35.9) 60.1 6.5 315 (39.9) 58.2

Operating provisions relate routinely to commercial disputes, convertible bond redemption premiums, along with
miscellaneous contingencies and losses. They also include restructuring unrelated to the Atos Origin merger.
Such provisions remained stable over the pericd.

Pensions
{in EUR millions) Sept. 30", Changesin Charge Release Dec. 31%, Changesin  Charge Rzleass Dze. 319,
1999 Group 2000 Group oot
structure & structure &
transiation translation
differences differences
TOTAL 16.7 36.1 8.8 5.2 56.4 286 9.8 (1.8) 93.0

The increase in retirement provisions is due primarily to retirement commitments for KPN employees, which the Group took
on in connection with the acquisition of KPN's Data center business.

The Atos Origin Group offers its employees several post-retirement benefits and benefits contingent on the accumulation of a
number of years service within the Group. These include defined benefit pension schemes and retirement termination payments.
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The terins and conditions of these schemes (services, financing and asset investment policy) vary according to applicable legis-
lation and regulations within each country.

The largest commitments concern entities located in the United Kingdom and the Netherlands, where Group employee
pensions are primarily assured by separate legal entity pension funds, jointly administered by employees and management.
Commitments are funded by employer and employee contributions and the return obtained on plan assets, is generally
investe@j in shares and bonds. The solvency of the fund is monitored by local regulators and is reviewed as part of pericdic
actuarial valuations aimed at ensuring that contribution levels are suificient to cover pension benefits.

Certain@other Group entities, primarily in France and Germany, offer complementary pension schemes aimed at increasing
expected pension benefits provided by mandatory schemes, together with retirement termination payments and long-
service bonuses provided for by industry-wide callective bargaining agreements.

The principal assumptions incorporated in the ectuarial valuations, performed in accordance with IAS 19 recommendations,
are as follows:

Uniled iingdom Tae Netherlands Other Euroland countries
Rate of salary increase 45% 2.5% 210 3%
Expected{retum on plan assets 6.5% 7.0% n/a
Discount frate 5.8% 6.0% 5.8% t06.0%

As the rjnost significant defined benefit scheme commitments primarily concern entities purchased during fiscal year 2000,
pricr year comparative figures are of little relevance.

j) Net Debt

Bzc. 31%, Sept. 30",
202D 1632
Lyszrs Bysers Total Total

{in EUR rritfions)

Bonds (173.0) 0.5) (172.5

) (173.00  (173.0)
Finance léases (27.1) (14.2) (10.0) (2.4) 0.2) 0.3 (32.3) ")
Long-term borrowings (181.3) 2.0) (10.0) 2.1) 2.1) (165.1) (26.0) (21.6)
Other borfowings (30.3) 9.1) 2.2) (2.5) (3.2) (13.3) (12.5) (5.3)
Total borgrowings (411.7) (25.8) (22.2) (179.5) (5.5) (178.7) (243.8) (199.9)
Transfera;b\e securities 33.2 83.2 495 97.3
Cash at bank and in hand 93.3 93.3 80.8 52.6
Total cash and cash equivalents 176.5 176.5 130.3 149.9
TOTAL NET DEBT (235.2) 150.7 (222)  (179.5) (5.5) (178.7) (113.5) (50.0)

* Finance Iéase adjustments increased pro forma net debt by EUR &0 million in 1999.

Fixed- and floating-rate borrowings break down Fixed-rate borrowings primarily consist of convertible

as foHovys: bonds and finance lease contracts. Floating-rate borrow-
‘ ings primarily consist of the syndicated loan and credit
facilities and overdrafts used occasionally by Group

{in EUR mllions) Zes. &7, Dec. 379, Sepl 30"

! oA 2003 18228 companies. All borrowings are denominated in euros.
Fixed—ratd borrowings (178.8) (217.0) (177.7)
Floating-rate borrowings (232.9) (26.8) (22.2)

Total horrowings 411.7)  (243.8) (199.9)
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Convertible bonds (1889-2004)

In June 1999 Atos canied out a EUR 172.5 milion convert-
ible bond issue, represented by 1,440,501 bonds with

a nominal value of EUR 119.8.The bonds pay interest at
1% per year.They are redeemable on October 1%, 2004

at a price of EUR 131.4, representing a yield to maturity

of 2.75%, or at any time as from October 19, 2002

at the issuer's initiative, with a premium.

The bonds may be converted at any time as from

July 6", 1998, on the basis of one share per bond.

Syndicated loan (2001-2008)

On December 20", 2001, Atos Origin secured a syndi-
cated loan for an initial amount of EUR 250 million, in
order to finance the acquisition of the KPN data centers
and other future growth operations.

The principal characteristics of this syndicated loan are
as follows:

» 5 year revolving credit facility,

* Expiry date: September 26", 20086,

¢ Floating rate interest indexed to Euribor.

As of December 31%, 2001, this facility had been drawn
down in the amount of EUR 163 million.

An interest rate swap fixing the rate payable was
entered into in respect of the syndicated loan.

The syndicated loan contract does not provide for

a security over the Group’s assets.

k) Financial Instruments

Market value of financial instruments

Cash at bank and in hand, short-term deposits,
trade accounts receivable, bank facilities and trade
accounts payable

Given the short-term nature of these instruments, the
Group considers their book value to represent a
reasonable approximation of their market value as of
December 31¢, 2001,

Medium- and long-term borrowings

The market value of medium- and long-term
borrowings as of December 31%, 2001 is estimated at
EUR 343.6 million based on:

*» the book value of the syndicated loan,

¢ the market value of the convertible bonds.

The net book value of the syndicated loan and the
convertible bonds as of December 31, 2001
represent an amount of EUR 336.0 million.

Derivatives

The Group uses standard interest rate swap contracts
entered into with leading bank counterparties in the
management of its borrowings. As of December 31,
2001, Atos Origin held a hedge contract in the amount
of EUR 163 million, covering that part of the syndicated
loan drawn down at this date.

The average fixed rate of interest guaranteed by swaps
entered into during fiscal year 2001 exceeds that avail-
able on financial markets as of December 31, 2001.
The discounted present value of the interest rate differ-
ential applied to the residual terms of the swap
contracts is estimated at EUR 6.2 million.

This valuation only concerns derivatives with a period to
maturity in excess of one year.

Management of counterparty risks

The Group has a strict policy of analyzing counterparty risks.
The Group manages the counterparty risks relating to its
commercial activities by maintaining a diversified customer
portfolio and using risk monitoring instruments. The Group
controls the counterparty risk relating to its investments and
market transactions by rigorously selecting a range of
leading, diversified bank counterparties. As such, the Group
considers its exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

Exposure to market risk

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group's monetary assets comprise loans and
borrowings, transferable securities and cash at bank and
in hand. Monetary liabilities comprise borrowings, operat-
ing and other liabilities. A large part of Group commercial
and financial transactions are euro-denominated.

The Group has implemented a foreign exchange
management policy covering positions resulting from
commercial and financial transactions performed in
currencies other than the euro. The Group is primarily
exposed to movements in the GBP and USD.

This policy involves the hedging of all foreign currency
invoices once the transaction commitment becomes
firm. The Group uses forward contracts and foreign
exchange swaps for hedging purposes.
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Exposure to interest rate risk

Exposur_é to interest rate risk encompasses two types
of risk: *

e a price risk in risk of fixed-rate financial assets and
Iiabilities.{ For example, by contracting a fixed-rate liabil-
ity, the Gompany is exposed to opportunity risk should
interest fiates fall. A change in interest rates would
impact the market value of fixed-rate financial assets

I) Accounts and Notes Payable, Trade

and liabilities but would not impact financial income and
expenses and, as such, future net income of the
Company up to maturity of these assets and liabilities;

* a cash-flow risk in risk of floating-rate financial assets
and liabilities. The Group does not believe that a change
in interest rates would have a material impact on the
value of floating-rate financial assets and liabilities.

{in EUR ml‘llions)

Dac. 317, 2008 Sept. 30", 1888

Deg. 37¢, 2007

Trade payables 403.2 326.0 142.8
Amounts payable on assets 20.0 9.1 11.8
TOTAL 4232 335.1 154.6

The incréase in trade payables as of December 21¢, 2001 reflects the alignment of Origin supplier settlement terms and

conditions with those practiced by Atos.

m) Other Liabilities, Accruals and Deferred Income

(in EUR miftions)

Dec. 37, 2301 Dec. 317, 2600 Sept. 30", 1299

Paymentsion account received on orders 87.8 47.6 52.0
Employee:related liabilities 189.8¢ 123.70 48.0
Social sec;urity and other employee welfare liabilities 1115 99.0 43.0
VAT payable 95.3 91.7 54.4
Corporatefincome tax payable 35.2 27.4 13.4
Deferred ﬁax liabilities 12.3 12.2 7.0
Liabilities on acquisitions of participating interests 5.0 4.1 9.9
Miscellaneous creditors and other operating liabilities 32.0 379 19.0
Accruals and deferred income 45.6 46.2 319
TOTAL 6145 489.8 276.6

() The imcréase In Employee-related liabilities is partly due to the introduction of results-based remuneration systems within the entities: 2001 financial performance impacts directly on
remuneration. In addition, the year-end bonuses payable to Atos Group companies cover the full 12 months of 2001, compared to only 3 months as of December 31%, 2000.

2.3.5 @W»Bad@m@ Shee! Commitments

Finance! Lease Commitments

(in EUR millions)

Dec. 31+, 202t Dec. 314, 2000 Sept. 30", 1889

Minimum future lease payments due in

1 year 14.2 16.4 16.8
2years 100 9.9 119
3years 2.4 5.2 41
4 years 0.2 05 1.2
5 years 02 02 0.3
More than 5 years 0.1 0.2 05
TOTAL 27.1 324 34.8

42 Atos Orfgin Annual Report 2001




Other Financial Commitments

(in EUR millions)

Dec. 377, 20

Dec. 31%, 2000

Sepl. 30", 1989

Commitments given

Pledges, securities, guarantees 1493 56.0 30.3
Discounted notes not yet matures - - 1.8
Commitments received

Pledges, securities, guarantees - - 3.2
Other commitments

Retirement commitments not funded by provisions 37 39 2.0

Pledges, securities and guarantees given in the amount of EUR 148.3 million break down as follows:

(in EUR millions) Dec. 31, 2807 Dec. 31¢, 2000 Sept. 30", 1888
Supplier warranties 152 - -
Customer warranties” 97.0 210 56
Seller warranties 0.5 1.0 12.2
Premises 17.4 250 7.8
Taxation and other 191 89 47
TOTAL 149.3 56.0 30.3

(") a commitment was given to KPN pursuant to the acquisition of its End User Services business, in order to guarantee the proper completion of service contracts.
A warranty equal to 15% of the total annual value of the contract, subject to a maximum annual amount of EUR 13.5 million (EUR 80 million aver the term of the contract)

was granted.

Other Commitments

Atos QCrigin undertook to issue common stock on the
exercise of the unattached stock subscription warrants
allotted to Royal Philips Electronics in consideration for
the transfer of Origin stock.

The warrants fall into two categories, conferring entitle-
ment to subscribe for one Atos QOrigin share where the
following conditions are satisfied:

e category one (class A warrants): the weighted
average stock market price of the Atos Origin share
over 12 consecutive stock market sessions during a
period ending June 30th, 2002 exceeds EUR 156;

® category two (class B warrants): the weighted
average stock market price of the Atos Origin share
over 12 consecutive stock market sessions during a
period ending June 30th, 2003 exceeds EUR 208;
Since the effective realization of the stock transfer on
October 312, 2000, the weighted average stock
market price over any 12 consecutive stock market
sessions has not enabled the warrant exercise thresh-
old to be reached.

Claims and Litigation

In recent years, certain Group companies have been
subject to tax audits in the normal course of business.
The Group considers that it has sound arguments to
successfully contest the proposed reassessments.

The subsidiary Atos Origin Brazil has also been the
subject, since 1998, of several actions by employee-
protection bodies, regarding contributions payable and
the number of employees concerned.

Management is not aware of any claims or litigation
likely to have a material impact on the consolidated
results or assets of the Group, that are not adequately
coverad by provisions recorded in the balance sheet as
of December 31, 2001, At this date, provisions
recorded by the Group to cover identified disputes total
EUR 32.9 million.

Other Risks
Industrial and environmeniai risks

As the Group is a service provider it is not exposed to any
material environmental risks.
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2.4

Coverage of risks to which the Company

may beiexposed

The Cohpany holds a number of policies with
reputable international insurance companies, providing
third party and professional liability coverage. The
coverage provided by these policies is adeguate given
the activities of the Group and the insurance excess
thresholds are relatively low.

In addition, the Company has an asset insurance policy
encompassing operating losses and covering, inter alia,
all activi;ties of the Company in the principal countries

where it operates.

Fraud and IT malicious acts are specifically insurad,

including within the Operating loss clause.

l

Other specific risks

Suppliers

Atos Origin is not, in its opinion, dependent on one or
more suppliers. However, global industrial agreements
and technological alliances have been entered into with
certain suppliers.

Customers

The five fargest customers in fiscal year 2001 generated
31% of Group revenue. The Group’s 42 largest customer
accounts represent more than 55% of revenue. Excluding
Philips, which now represents 17% of revenue and
Euronext, 7%, no single customer generated more than
3% of total Atos Origin revenue in 2001.

Employee-related risks

Employee management within the Group is a priority for
the Management Board. The close attention paid to
human resource issues limits considerably any
employee-related risks.

SCOP? OF CONSOLIDATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

i

t

Percenfage  Consolidation Percentage Address
: interest melhed® conlrel
HOLDING GOMPANY
Atos QOrigin SA Consolidating parent company 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Origin International SAS 100 FC 100 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Origih BV 100 FC 100 Polarisaveneue 97, 2132 JH Hoofddorp
Atos Origin International BY 100 FC 100 Polarisaveneue 97, 2132 JH Hoofddorp
France
A2B { 51 FC 51 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Astria - 50 FC 50 18, avenue d'Alsace — 92400 Courbevoie
Atos Euroinext 50 FC 50 Palais de la Bourse, Place de la Bourse — 75002 Paris
Atos Origin Formation 100 FC 100 7/13, rue de Bucarest — 75008 Paris
Atos Origfn Infogérance 100 FC 100 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Origin Intégration 100 FC 100 18, avenue d'Alsace — 92400 Courbevoie
Atos Origi:n Multimédia 100 FC 100 3, place de fa Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Origfn Enterprise Services 100 FC 100 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Origin Services 100 FC 100 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos TPI 51 FC 51 3, place de fa Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux
Atos Odyésée 86 FC 86 372, rue Saint-Honoré — 75001 Paris
Bourse Connect 59 FC 59 4, rue de la Bourse - 75002 Paris
Diamis ! 30 FC 30 18, avenue d'Alsace — 92400 Courbevoie
Mantis 100 FC 100 24, rue des Jedneurs - 75002 Paris
100 FC 100 3, place de la Pyramide — 92800 Puteaux

Monémag

|
'
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Percentage  Consolidation Percentage Address
interest method " conirel
The Netherlands
Atos Euronext (Netherlands) 50 FC 50 Beursplein S, 1012 JW Amsterdam
Atos Origin IT Nederland B.V. 100 FC 100 Koningin Wilhelminalaan 3, 3527 LA Utrecht
Atos Origin IT Systems
Management Nederland BY 100 FC 100 Groenewoudseweg 1, 5621 BA Eindhoven
Atos Origin Telco Services 100 FC 100 Henri Dunantlaan 2, 9728 HD Groningen
EMEA
Austria
Atos Origin Information Technology GmbH 100 FC 100 Triester Strasse 66, Postfach 289, A-1101 Vienna
Belgium
Atos Euronext (Belgium) 50 FC 50  Place de la Bourse, Palais de la Bourse, 1000 Bruxelles
Atos Origin Belgium N.V. 100 FC 100 Minervastraat 7, B 1930 Zaventem
Origin International Competencies
and Alliances (ICA) 100 FC 100 Imperiastraat 12, B 1930 Zaventem
Germany
Atos Qrigin GmbH 100 FC 100 CuriestraBe 5 - D70563 Stuttgart
Atos Origin Processing Services GmbH 52 FC 52 HahnstraBe 25, 60528 Frankfurt
Hungary
Atos Origin Information Technology Kft 100 FC 100 Fehérvari ut, 84 A, H-1119 Budapest
Italy
Atos Origin Multimedia 100 FC 100 Via F. Gonin 56 — 20147 Milano
Atos Qrigin SpA 100 FC 100 Piazza IV Novembre 3 — 20124 Milano
Luxembourg
Atos Origin Luxembourg S.A. 100 FC 100 ZA Bourmicht - L 8070 Bertrange
Poland
Atos Origin Sp.z.0.0. 100 FC 100 Al. Jerozolimskie 195 b 02-222 Warszawa
Portugal
Atos Origin Portuguesa
(Tecnologias de Informagao), LDA 100 FC 100  Taguspark, Ed. Inovagao Ill, no. 512, 2780-920 Porto Salvo
Saudi Arabia
Origin Softtech 75 FC 75 Po Box 30862 — Al Khobar 31952 — Saudi Arabia
Spain
Atos QDS Origin 98 FC 98 Calle Sardenya 521/523 - 08024 Barcelona
Twinsoft (Espagne) 50 FC 50 Clcerro del castena 72, 28034 Madrid
Switzerland
Atos Origin (Schweiz) AG 100 FC 100 Industriestrasse 18 — 8304 Walliselien
United Kingdom
Atos Origin UK Limited 100 FC 100 Whyteleafe Business Village, Whyteleafe Hill,
Whyteleafe, Surrey CR3 OAT
Atos Origin Compower Limited 100 FC 100 Whyteleafe Business Village, Whyteleafe Hill,
Whyteleafe, Surrey CR3 0AT
ASIA PACIFIC
Australia
Atos Origin Australia Pty Limited 100 FC 100 Philips House Level 16 - 15 Blue Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
China
Atos Origin Information Technology Room 1103-B4 -Pu Dong Software Park
(Shangai) Co. Ltd. 100 FC 100 498 Guo Shou Jing Road Zhang Jiang Hi-Tech.
Zone - Shangai 201203, PR.
Atos Origin Hong Kong Ltd. 100 FC 100 43/F Hopewell Centre, 17 Kennedy Road

17 Kennedy Road, Wanchai
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Percentage  Consclidation Percentage Address
interest methed control
India
Atos Origin India Private Limited 100 FC 100 Unit No. 126/127, SDF IV, SEEPZ, Andheri (East),
5 Mumbai - 400 096
Malaysia
Atos Origin (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 100 FC 100 5th Floor, Menara Merais, No.1, Jalan 19/3,
! 46300 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
! West Malaysia
Singapore
Atos Origin (Singapore) Pte 100 FC 100 8 Temasek Boulevard, # 07-01 Suntec Tower Three,
: Singapore 038988
Taiwan |
Atos Origin Taiwan Ltd. 100 FC 100 9F., No.117, Sec 3, Ming Sheng E. Rd.,
: Taipei 105, Taiwan
Thailand|
Atos Origin IT (Thailand) Limited 100 FC 100 200 Moo 4, 25th Floor, Jasmine international Tower,
! Room No. 2502, Chaengwattana Road, Pakkret,
: Nonthaburi 11120, Thaitand
NORTH AND SOUTH AMERICA
Argentina
Atos Origih Argentina S.A. 100 FC 100 Vedia 3892 PB., capital federal, C1430 DAL
. Buenos Aires, Argentina
Brazil
Atos Origin Brasil Ltda, 100 FC 100 Rua itapaiuna, 2434 - 2° andar- Parte, Santo Amaro,
: Sao Paulo
Mexico
Atos Origin Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 100 FC 100 Mariano Escobedo n°510 PH, Colonia Anzures
CP 11589 Mexico DF
Peru
Atos ODS' 100 FC 100 Avenue Ricardo Rivira — Navarrete 765 — Lima 27
United States of America
Atos Origin Inc. 100 FC 100 430, Mountain Avenue — Murray Hill NJ 0797

{*) FC: full consolidation

i
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2.5 PARENT COMPANY SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nota Bene

The Atos Origin financial statements present only a partial picture of the financial position of the Atos Origin Group as a
whole. This overall picture is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements secticn of the Annual Report. The following
information, presented in the form of the Atos Origin parent company financial statements, provides a summary of the most
material figures and information of greatest interest to readers.

Comparability

Fiscal year 2001, 2000 and 1999 financial data is not comparable because:

* the 2000 fiscal period covers an exceptional period of 15 months to December 31 and takes account of the consolidation
of Origin,

* fiscal year 1999 relates solely to Atos and covers a 12 month period to September 30™.

The following Company financial statements have been audited by the statutory auditors and a clean audit report issued.
The Auditor’s report is available on request at the Company’s registered office.

i

2.5.1 ncome Statement

N

{in EUR millions) Pericd ended Period ended Period ended
Jec. 37, 2007 Dec. 31%, 2023 Sept. 30", 1938
(t5 months) (12 months)
Revenue 23.8 16.4 13.0 i}
Other income 0.0 0.0 2.3 §,
Total operating income 23.8 16.4 15.3 %
B
Cost of sales 2.8 (1.4) 3.0 ;
Taxes and duties other than CIT 0.1 0.1) 0.2) %
Personne! expenses 0.2) 0.3) 0.2) %
Other expenses 3.2 2.9 2.1 -
Depreciation, amortization and provisions (2.6) (0.6) 0.2)
Total operating expenses (8.9) (5.3) (5.7)
Income from operations 14.9 141 9.6
Net financial income 43 16.1 27.0
Net income on ordinary activities 19.2 27.3 36.6
Non-recurring items 0.7) 26 (14.9)
Corporate income tax 1.9 15
Net income for the period 204 29.9 23.2
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(in EUR milllons)
ASSETS

gt omms

Dec. 31%, 200D

Sept. 30", 1629

230, 3%, 2331

Intangible ffxed assets - 6.1 6.6 7.2
Tangible fixed assets 1.2 03 0.5
Participating nterests 515.2 4713 199.8
Other investments 181.7 15.4 1.8
Total fixed assets 704.3 493.7 209.3
Accounts aﬁd notes receivable, trade 3.0 33 3.4
Other receivables * 154.5 102.2 57.4
Transferable securities 0.0 491 96.8
Cash at bajk and in hand 396 01 27.0
Total current assets 197.1 154.7 184.6
TOTAL ASSETS 901.4 648.4 393.9
~ of which inter-company accounts 1302 N7 48.6
fin EUR millons)

»LEABLWE@ AXD SHARZKOLIERS' ZQUITY 233,319, 2370 Des. 31,2620 Segt. 307, 1282
Common stock 439 438 21.4
Additional gaid-in capital 219.6 217.4 28.2
Legal reserves 4.4 2.1 1.7
Other reserves and Retained eamings 916 64.0 411
Net income for the period 20.4 29.9 23.2
Shareholders' equity 3799 357.1 115.6
Provisions for contingencies and losses 14.0 9.2 14.3
Borrowings| 382.0 199.5 191.4
Accounts payable, trade 121 19.9 0.6
Other liabilities * 113.4 62.6 72.0
Total Iiabiiities 507.5 282.0 264.0
TOTAL LIAbILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 901.4 648.4 3939
* of which iﬁter-company accounts 96.8 61.2 69.7
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2.5.3 Subsidizries and (nvestments

Company Gross Net value % Common Raserves Quistanding Guaraniees  Cec.37%, Bec. 37",  Dividends
at Dec. 31, atDec. 31", interest stoclk/ and loans and given 2301 i received
2007 2007 Additional retained advances by the  Revenuss 2t during
paid-in earnings  granfed by Company ircgmz  the period
(in EUR thousands) capital Aios Crigin

DETAILED INFORMATION (in EUR thousands)
A - Subsidiaries (50% or more of common stock)

France

Atos Origin Services 23,2726 23,272.6 100 15,112 3,399 227,634 6,702

Mantis 67221  6,722.1 100 40 3,927 16,056 1,597 1,809
Vowmiseasd emsd i mEes T i 2ae e

Sogn bl 857 sees 00 Ee o s0
Seginimmobis 0.7 0.7 w0 1 o o 108 {76)

Immobiliers Industrielle ‘ o ‘ ‘ ‘

Faidnerbe 152 0 100 15.0 0 254 (140)

AtosOrigin ‘ ’ o

Multimédia 36969  3,69.9 100 3,600 561 118,844 7,924 6,669
Mesorgn RIS : . .

Infogérance 47,0144 47,0144 93 23348 3119 13417 280,980 7,640

AlsTPl 3163 316.3 5177 1508 21,949 1202 204 2
Atos Origin Formation 18 18 100 436 58 12,099 876 544

s righ on o te e . . v

intégration 36,4002 36,400.2 97 13,941 5810 214,444 11,097 715

Atos Odyssée 90441 90441 86 40 960 4275 21,030 2,892

Atos Ewronext 33,8539 33,8539 15 57,189 (230) 262,991 6,442 220 i
Origin France 30,300 30,156 100 15235 (15970) ‘ 951 {144) ;
Atos Origin+~~ o ' ' %
Enterprises Services ‘ 1,000 » 177.4 2 9,Q94 (728) 64,506 1,023 5
Atos Origin -
International 2.378.2 577.2 100 1,003 (205) 2818  (155) 2
Italy 8
Atos Multimédia 67.5 67.5 100 51 237 4,004 260 563 3
Atos SPA 542186  47,399.8 100 47,000 5,740 172,054  (8.367) 2,688 =
Benelux

Atos Service NV 0 0 100 334 (478) 0 (54)

Spain - Portugal

Atos-0DS Origin 18,7986 187986  98.2 639 17,463 67,391 2,367

GTl 7216 7216 100 31 597 1,425 101

Germany

Aftos Origin GMBH ~~ 40,750.2  40,750.2 100 41,926 (430) 162,753 4,384

Netherlands

Atos Origin

Engenering BV 1,116.9 847 100 108 312 6,489 29)

Atos Origin BY 202,5595 202,559.5 100 59,354 247,611 312 60,109

B - Investments (less than 50% of common stock)

Twinsoft 1905 1905 50 240 901 8,300 591

SUMMARY INFORMATIONS

Other investments 786.1 662.5

TOTAL 525,475 515,243 14,237
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{in EUR miljlions)

; AR 20000 19299 1928 1897
l- COmmbn stock at period end
Common s\‘tock 43.9 43.8 214 16.2 15.9
Number offshares outstanding 43,853,704 43,764,396 21,366,235 10,603,627 10,426,443
Maximum number of shares that may be created by:
. conversbn of convertible bonds 1,440,501 1,440,501 1,440,501
. exerciseiof stock subscription aptions 8,553,998 7,057,716 1,377,420 502,240 510,822
II - Income for the period
Revenue, net 238 16.4 13.0 7.1 100.2
Net incomeja before tax, employee profit-sharing and incentive
schemes, erreciation, amortization and provisions 234 277 14.6 41.2) 109
Corporate income tax 1.9 0.0 (1.5) 3.1 2.2
Net incomé after tax, employee profit-sharing, depreciation,
amomzatidn and provisions 204 29.9 23.1 394 (40.5)
Dividend distribution
It - Per share data (in EUR)
Net incomé after tax and employee profit-sharing
but before depreciation, amartization and provisions 0.58 0.63 N.A. NA. 0.64
Net mcom¢ after tax, employee profit-sharing, depreciation,
amortization and provisions 0.47 0.68 1.08 3.72 (3.88)
Dividend per share -
IV - Employees
Average number of employees during the period 0 0 0 0 3
Total payrolll for the period 0.161 0.3 0.1 02 19.9

0 0 0 0 8.0

Employee social security and welfare payments

() Fiscal yea{r 2000 figures are not comparable with those of prior periods (cf. Note Bene and Comparability paragraphs).

(™) Fiscal yeér 1997 figures are not comparable with those of subsequent periods, This 15-month period was marked by the merger of Axime and Stigos on January 1%, 1997,
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2.5.5 Auditors’ Special Report on Agreements Invelving Direclors

In accordance with our appointment as auditors of your Company, we hereby report on the agreements involving Directors
of the Company.

The terms of our engagement do not require us to identify such other agreements, if any, but to communicate to you, based
on information provided to us, the principal terms and conditions of those agreements brought to our attention, without
expressing an opinion on their usefulness and appropriateness. It is your responsibility, pursuant to article 117 of the decree
of March 237, 1967, to assess the interest involved in respect of the conclusion of these agreements for the purpose of
approving them.

Agreements entered into during the fiscal year
We hereby inform you that no agreement entered into during the year to which Article L. 225-88 of the Commercial Code
would be applicable has been brought to our attention.

W

Agreements approved in prior years with continuing effect
In addition, pursuant to the decree of March 237, 1967, we have been advised that the following agreements entered into
and approved in previous years have had continuing effect during the year.

1) Agreement with Atos SpA (ltaly) (formerly Atos SpA): (Director/Management Board member concerned:

Mr. Dominique Hlien)

As authorized by the Supervisory Board of December 8", 1998, Atos Origin SA issued a letter of intent to BNP to guarantee
aloan in an amount of € 12.4 milion (of which €4.6 million subscribed in 19939 and € 7.8 million in 2000) granted at the rate
of Euribor + 0,20% to Atos SpA, to finance the acquisition of shares in Sesam. As of December 31, 2001, the balance
outstanding on the loan was € 10.3 million. Atos receives no remuneration in exchange for the guarantee.

N

2) Agreement with Atos Origin Infogérance (Directors/Management Board members concerned up to the transforma-
tion of Atos Origin Infogérance into a simplified joint stock company on June 29™, 2001: Atos Origin and Mr Dominique
Illien) As authorized by the Supervisory Board on January 11", 2000, a lease continuation commitment in the amount of

€ 0.8 million was granted by Atos Origin SA in respect of IT hardware financed by leasing by Cisco. Similarly, as authorized
by the Supervisory Board on March 28", 2000, another lease continuation commitment in the amount of € 10 miflion was
granted by Atos Origin in respect of IT hardware financed by leasing. As of December 31¢, 2001, these two financings had
been used in the amount of € 4.1 million.

LHOdIE TWIONVNIZ

We conducted our procedures in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those standards require that
we agree the information provided to us with the relevant source documents.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, March 12", 2002

The Auditors,
Amyot Exco Grant Thornton Delcitte Touche Tohmatsu
Member of Grant Thornton International
Daniel Kurkdjian Jean-Paul Picard
Gilles Hengoat Jean-Marc Lumet

(This is a free translation of the original text in French for information purposes only. It should be understood that the agreements reported on
are only those provided by the Commercial code and that the report does not apply to those related party transactions described in IAS 24 or
other equivalent accounting standards).
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INVESTOR INFORNMATION

3. Investor Information

3.1 SHARE|PERFORMANCE

The number of shares outstanding as of December 31, 2001 was 43,853,704.
Atos Origin shares are traded on the Paris Euronext Premier Marché, under Euroclear code 5173, where they are included
in the SBF 120 and Euronext 100 indices. They are not listed on any other stock market. Atos Qrigin SA is the only listed
companyiin the Group.

3.1.1 Market (@a@ﬁ'&aﬂﬁzaﬁﬁ@m Qver The Last Five Vears

[ AR GACTHAEATIE
Capital 5
(in EUR
e 4 /\/\/
3 /A‘\J
paN =
2 NS o~
1 /
Dec. March June Sept. Dec. March June Sept. Dec. March June Sept. Dec. March June Sept. Dec. March June Sept. Dec. March Dates
96 g7 97 97 97 98 98 98 98 93 99 93 99 00 00 OO0 00 O1 01 01 01 02

Source: Les Echos

Market cépitalization at December 31, 2001 was EUR 3,225.4 million.

3.0.2 Share F?emrmame during 2001

Atos Origin share performance during 2001 compared with the SBF 120 index and the IT CAC 50 index (base index 100).

120
110
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: %0
)

SHAREIREREORMANCEIDURINGE2004]

Atos Origin
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wmo

IT CAG 50 \\ P
60 \ /
50 v
December 2000 March 2001 June 2001 September 2001 December 2001 March 2002

Source: LeslEchos
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Monthly and quarterly trading volumes gver the last 18 months

High Low Weighted Trading Trating
(in EUR per share) average price volume volume
{in EUR) (in thousands {in EUR thousands)
of shares)
2000
October 114.3 90.4 105.7 1,623 171,446
November 107.0 69.3 97.2 2,605 253,298
December 82.9 70.8 77.4 2,699 208,930
4" quarter 6,926 633,674
% of capital traded during the period: 16%
2001
January 106.0 68.1 9.3 3,976 362,930
February 1127 93.6 1056.1 3,357 352,660
March 111.0 748 90.6 4,454 403,624 |
1* quarter 11,788 1,119,214 %
Agril 98.5 69.1 86.5 2,075 179,598 !
May 104.5 901 96.3 2,347 226,041 ‘ @
June 99,5 76.5 86.0 2,588 222,659 N
2" quarter 7,011 628,298
July 90.6 72.0 794 1,976 156,899
August 947 82.3 89.1 1,541 137,325
September 86.0 56.2 741 3,456 256,080 5
3 quarter 6,973 550,283 @
October 84.7 68.6 77.8 3,338 259,802 6’
November 87.2 75.3 80.4 4,973 400,015 3
December 841 70.7 76.2 2,075 158,032 %
4" quarter 10,386 817,849 g
Total 2001 36,157 3,115,644 2
% of capital traded during the period: 82% 5
3]
2002 2
January 87.3 71.2 80.9 2,685 217,283
February 86.6 774 82.6 1,960 161,837
March 94.4 83.0 89.1 2,519 224,513
1% quarter 7,164 606,633

% of capital traded during the period: 16%

Source : Les Echos
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Trading y}lolumes over the last six quarters (in thousands of shares traded)

TS AR VLU GUE TiE LS 87 QU

Octg—Dec, 00 | | 6,825
Jan.-iMarchm m 1 11,788 [i
Apré-Junem | 7o ‘
JuIy.?-Sept. o1 | | 6573 }
Oct-Dec. 01 [ | 10,38

; Jan.-jMarch 02 [ | 7184

u |

[ZZ]

F Purneses

s

Share Wa]w foz French Weallh Tax (40

i
* Closing price on December 31, 20011 . .. oot EUR 73.55
* Average closing price over the last 30 stock market trading days in 20071: .. ... oL EUR 77.10

Prrchage or Sale by Uhe Company of s Cwn Shares

The Company purchased 65,000 shares during the year in order to stabilize the market price. These purchases were made
pursuantf to the resolution adopted by the Annual General Meeting of February 24, 2000. As of December 31%, 2001, the
Company held 139,300 shares in treasury stock, representing 0.45% of the common stock.

1

Atos Origin Corvariidle Bonds

The Atos? Crigin 1%- 2004 convertible bond has traded on the Paris Euronext market (Euroclear code 18081) since its issue
on July 67, 1999,

o NUMDEr Of DONAS . .o e 1,440,501
. Closingj price on December 315, 2001 .. EUR 125.40

Quarterlj trading volumes over the last 18 months

“ High Low Weichted Treding Tragding
{in EUR per bond) 2verage orice volume volumae
(in EUR) (in thousands) {in EUR thousands)
2000
4r quarteri 140.0 112.0 121.6 92 11,212
2001 :
1 quarter" 139.7 1121 126.7 104 13,193
2% quarter | 132.4 114.0 124.3 18 2,229
3¢ quarter | 135.0 106.0 118.3 21 2,449
4" quarter J 136.0 115.0 124.8 233 29,074
Total 2001 376 46,946
2002 i
1¢ quarter 1275 114.0 125.5 66 8,280

Source: Les jEchos
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3.2 COMMON STOCK

2

3.2.1 Changes in Commaon Stock

Common stock as of December 31, 2001

Transaction New shares Par vaiue of Acditional Total
issued new shares peid-in capital

(in EUR millions) (in EUR miltions) {in EUR miliions)

As of Dec. 31¢, 2000 43,764,396 438 3741 80.9

Exercise of stock options 89,308 0.1 2.3 2.4

Total as of Dec. 31, 2001 N 43,853,704 439 394 833

All shares are of EUR 1 par value each and fully paid-up.

Changes in common stock over the last five years |

Year Changes in commen stogk Shares issued for cash New common Total nurnber
stock of shares .
Additional e
(in EUR millions) Par value paid-in capitat =
1997 Exercise of stock options 0.2 1.9 8.2 5,355,730 \
Sligos share exchange bid 76 7.4 15.8 10,326,678
Sligos merger 0.1 - 15.9 10,426,443 2
1998 Sligos merger 00 - 15.9 10,460,785 ﬁ‘ﬁ
Exercise of stock options 02 35 16.2 10,603,667 @
1999 Stock split - - 21,207,314 %
Shares issued to Employees Savings plan 3
and exercise of stack options 0.1 8.6 16.3 21,366,235 5
Conversion into euras 5.1 51) 214 21,366,235 8
2000 Shares issued to Employees Savings plan §
and exercise of stock options 0.2 89 215 21,552,748 =
Shares issued in consideration for Euronext 03 - 21.8 21,847,703 g
Atos Origin merger 219 - 43.8 43,764,396
2001 Exercise of stock options 0.1 2.3 439 43,853,704
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3.2.2 Share @wmm@trsﬁﬂﬁ@

Main shareholders

To the bést of the Management Board’s knowledge, changes in share ownership over the last three years were as follows:

Dec. 3¢, 2001

Dec. 31¢, 2000 Sept. 30", 1938

, Shares % Shares % Shares %
Philips 21,321,585 48.6% 21,323,766 48.7% - 0.0%
BNP Paribés 2,157,500 4.9% 2,726,928 6.2% 2,730,384 12.8%
Janus ! - 0.0% 1,204,106 2.8% 1,747,978 8.2%
CDC.o 941,824 2.1% 759,938 1.7% . - 0.0%
Employees 311,161 0.7% 251427 0.6% 337,200 1.6%
Treasury stock 199,300 0.5% 134,300 0.3% - 0.0%
Public 18,922,334 43.2% 17,363,931 39.7% 16,550,673 77.4%
Total ' 43,853,704 100% 43,764,396 100% 21,366,235 100%

(") Calsse des Dépdts et Consignations.

Disclosure of interests

|

1

|
During fiscal year 2001, the Company was notified of
two char@ges in shareholder interests, disclosed
pursuanﬁ to Article L233-13 of the French Commercial
Code. Datails of the interests in question are as follows:

Dateof  Numberof % interest
disclosures shares held

CD.C. QOct. 22™ 2001 924,042 2.1%

BNP Paribas Dec. 26", 2001 2,157,500 4.9%

'

i
i
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The Company was notified on February 27", 2002 by
BNP Paribas that it held 2,206,025 shares, represent-
ing 5.03% of the common stock and then on March 1%,
2002 that it held 2,166,299 shares, representing 4.94%
of the commaon stock.

Employee share ownership

As of December 31, 2001 a total of 311,161 shares,
representing 0.7% of the common stock and voting
rights, were held by employees in the form of registered
or bearer shares, or through Employee Savings Plans.




3.2.3 Poteniial Common Stock
Share and share equivalents issued pursuant to shareholder authorizations

Dilutive influence of the issue of share equivalents

Number of shares EUR millions % dilution Weight of dilution
Number of shares at December 31%, 2001 43,853,704
Stock subscription options 2,856,032 215.7 5.3%
Stock subscription warrants — Classes C, D and E 923,140 53.3 1.7%
Total employees 3,779,172 269.0 7.0% 38%
Convertible bonds 1,440,501 180.6 2.7% 14%
Philips stock subscription warrants — Class A 2,387,413 372.4
Philips stock subscription warrants — Class B 2,387,413 496.6
Total Philips 4,774,826 869.0 8.9% 48%
Total dilution excluding Philips 5,219,673 4497 10.6%
Total dilution including Philips 9,994,499 1,318.7 18.6% 100%
Total potential common stock, excluding Philips 49,073,377

Total potential common stock, including Philips 53,848,203

The common stock of the Company could be increased by 9,994,498 new shares, representing 18.6% of the common stock
after dilution, through the exercise of stock subscription options granted to employees (38%), the conversion of convertible
bonds (14%) and the exercise of Class A and B stock subscription warrants granted to Philips (48%).

The exercise of all the options and warrants and the conversion of ali the bonds would have the effect of increasing total
shareholders’ equity by EUR 1,318.7 million and common stock by EUR 10.0 million {or total shareholders’ equity by

EUR 449.7 milion and common stock by EUR 5.2 million excluding the exercise of stock subscription warrants granted to Philips).
The potential dilutive effect of the exercise of the Philips stock subscription warrants has been determined in accordance with
the terms and conditions set forth for the exercise of such warrants (2™ resolution presented to the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Octaber 31¢, 2000).

There are no other types of security granting access to the commen stock of the Company.
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Sfockisubscripticn options (position as of 12/31/20371 and total movemenis)

Date o7 Daie of Numberof - Of which Number of Of which = Numberof ' Opilons Options © Of which : Number . Exercise Exercise - Stiike
SHs' ilanagement options - options opiions options ;  options . cancelled not . options of - periog ’ period :  price
meeting Board initially * granted to ' exercised exercised . exercised - exercised hetd by : benefi- start date end date (in EUR)
meeting granted - members of asof . bymembers | between ' as of members . ciaries : :
- the current © 12/31/01 ofthe = 01/01/01 12/31/01 - ofthe
| Wanag- . current : and ’ current |
; ement _ Wanagement 12/31/01 Manag- -
Board Board ement
i Board :
12016/03 - 09/09/1994 121440 24000 101600 24000 . 2780 13860 | 5980 560 00/09/1999 09/09/2002. 2326
122802 011711996 20000 16800 . 24000 16800 ° 24000 0 S o zma0s oot 2096
1216003 02231996 74000 24000 20800 - 20800 63200 24000 13 02/23/2001 02/23/2004° 33.79
05/28/96!  00/19/1996 402,000 T sl 38278 . 73,020 © 257.102 27 091972001 09/19/2006 2611
0523/%6] L 121111986 588000 29400 ' 0 SBA00 . 20400 2 12112001 1211/2006 4084
12/16/93]  03/07/1997 . 121600 30,000 2500 © 119100 - 30000 53: 03/07/2002 03/07/2005 5275
0B/30/97, 12101997 284200, 37000 . 1,800 31600 250600 | 37000 156, 12/10/2002: 12/10/2007 : 57.29
083007} - 040111998 5100 o si0 - T oaotvaoes . oamiizaes 79.04
05/30/97 101911998 1400 1400 10 10M9/2003° 1019/2008 ¢ 66.45
omoer| Tioaness 600 : 600 ‘ 15 11/022003 110272008 6680
053007 1o/081008 2364000 38,000 500 : 18700 217200 ¢ 36000 192 12/08/2003° 12/08/2008 ° 9480
0B/30/7T 01041999 8000 T Y g0 | ' 10 01/04/2004 | 01/04/2009 . 95.26
08/30/97 | 0571711998 . 3600 - 3600 3% 0572004 05/17/2000 . 7927
o6m007| oemzisee 40 400 15 06/07/2004 | 06/07/2008 . 8404
06/30497 100171993 1,000 . ) o O 1 10072006 10001/2008 12029
08/30/07 | 11/30/1999 250,000 37.500 13400 245600 7500 292 11/30/2004 11/30/2008° 13455
08/30/97 - 0301/2000 1500 _ 150 20 0301/2005 03/01/2010 . 159.94
06130197 | 04/03/2000 300 300 11 04032005 0403/2010 15382
08/30/87 | 06012000 4500 4500 5. 08/01/2004 - 08/01/2010 - 11015
08/30/97 .. 07/01/2000 . 10,000 10000 1 o70t/2004 07/01/2010 10667
063007 . 09012000 25000 2500 ¢ 2 0Y0i/2004 03/01/2010 . 10950
083007 fo0z2000 500 00 1. 10/02/2004 | 10/02/2010 1 11297
08/30/97 © 12/18/2000 942750 441500 3150 - 933600 441500 864 12/18/2003 121872010 78.27
&10/31/06 - | 1012/18/2004 : o
Wae0 L oiAemi . sso0. - T 5500 ¢ 3. 01152004 - 011520110 7623
j 10 01/15/2005 -
wsueo o431 700 T 7.200 | 6T 042302004 04232011 84.33
l : | to 042872005
103100 1 091801 2,200 2200 110812005 1003172011 - 80.74
1031100 | 10/08/01 1,800 1,800 - 3 10/08/200¢ 100082011 . 7406
108100 A0 8000 5000 1 T2 12maott 7236
A0 | 121201 646,750 648,750 1296, 1222006 12122011 7904
: . 10.12/12/2005 '
TOTAL AS | 3233040 676200 . 220578 ° 40800 : 85858 ' 156430 2,856,032 = 635,400
0F 12/31/01 : ‘
2008/01 ¢ 08/11/00 : ) :
‘ Denlgon 19850 | 26000 | 3450 3,450 195140 . 26,000 2. 21200 231203 2813
220601 | 091101 | 236000 . 22000 : 23000 22000 56 260702 5218
OB b 0BA0T 403000 0 42,000 1,000 452000 42000 0 183 29/05/03 72.15
TOTAL AS : .
OF 3112014 927,59 = 90,000 3,450 3450 - 1,000 923,140 = 90,000
TOTAL AS .
4160630 765,200 224,028 40800 . 89308 . 157430 3,779,172 - 725400

OF 31/12/01 !

i
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898,590 stock subscription warrants had been issued as of December 31, 2001 out of an authorized maximum of 927,530.
These stock subscription warrants, which have the same terms and conditions for exercise as Origin BV stock subscription
options, are equivalent to Atos Origin SA stock subscription options. These stock subscription warrants were allocated to
Origin employees in exchange for their Origin BV stock subscription options under the same terms and conditions of
exchange as for Origin BV shares.

Convertible bonds

The authorization granted by the Extraordinary General Meeting of February 257, 1999 was used to issue convertible bonds
in the amount of EUR 172.5 million {traded under Euroclear code 18081). A total of 1,440,501 bonds with a face value of
EUR 119.8 were issued. They are convertible on the basis of one share per bond.

The main characteristics of this bond issue are as follows:

* Face value EUR 119.75

* Coupon EUR 1.20

» Coupon date October 1¢, 2001

* Redemption price EUR 131.40

* Redemption date October 1, 2004

* Amortization bullet

e Parity (bond/share) 1/1.

Philips warrants

In return for the Origin securities transferred to Atos; Royal Philips Electronics received around 21.3 miflion new Atos Origin
shares, representing 48.7% of the Group's common stock. Philips also received two class A and B stock subscription
warrants, each entitling subscription to around 2.4 million Atos Crigin shares under spegcific terms and conditions. One half
of these stock subscription warrants can only be exercised if the Atos Origin share price exceeds EUR 156 before June 30%,
2002 while the other half of the warrants can only be exercised if the share price exceeds EUR 208 before June 30", 2003.

Oiher marketable securities

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of February 25", 1999 (11" and 12" resolutions) the Management Board was authorized
to increase the common stock by 5%, by issuing shares to employees in connection with an Employses Savings Plan.

This authorization was partially used for the purposes of the common stock increase reserved for Atos Employee Saving Plan
mutual funds, which resulted in the creation of 94,513 shares in 2000.

It was our intention, during fiscal year 2001, to extend the employee share ownership plan (ESOP) to encompass alt Group employ-
ees, however the events of September 117, 2001 led the Group to push back the subscription period to the first half of 2002.

This new plan (AOwner) is aimed at Atos Origin Group employees and will enable them to subscribe for Atos Origin shares {or a fund
invested in Atos Origin shares in accordance with local legislation), benefiting from a 20% discount on the share price, and receive
one bonus subscription option for every four shares purchased.
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Unused }authorizations 1o issues shares and share equivalents

|
Authorizations to issue share capital

Autherization Amsunt authorize
’ Par value (in EUR)

Amount utilized
Par value (in EUR)

Amount not utilized
Par value (in EUR)

Authorization
expiry date

EGM 02/25/99
117 /12" resolutions

Common ‘stock increase
reserved for employees

1,066,036

119,441(ESP) in 1999

94,513 (ESP) in 2000

852,082

02/25/2004

EGM 10/31/00
5" resolution

Stock sudscription options
or stock purchase options

3,500,000

1,391,200

2,108,800

10/31/2005

EGM of 10/31/00

7" /8" resolutions

Common stock increase
reserved for employees

(in connegtion with

an Employees Savings Plan)

2,188,219

2,188,219

10/31/2005

EGM 06/22/01
6" reso\ution

Commonistock increase with
retention 'of preferential subscription rights

4,376,439

4,376,439

08/22/2003

EGM 06/22/01

7" resolution

Commonistock increase with

waiver of|preferential subscription rights

4,376,433

4,376,439

08/22/2003

1
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3.4

3.4.1

DIVIDENDS

The Company has not paid any dividends in the last
five years and does not intend to pay a dividend in
respect of fiscal year 2001.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Comtacts

Institutional investors, financial analysts and
individual shareholders may contact the following
for further information:

Director, Investor Relations

John White

Tel.: + 33 (0) 1 49 00 96 64
E-mail: john.white@atosorigin.com

Secretary

Bernadetie Legout

Tel.: + 33 (0) 1 49 00 96 64

Fax: + 33 {0) 14300 95 80

E-malil: bernadette.legout@atosorigin.com

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

Documentation

in addition to the Annual Report, published in English
and French, the following information is available to
shareholders:

¢ an interim report on the first six months,

as published in the Bufletin d’Annonces Légales
Obligatoires;

¢ general, business and financial information about
the Company, available:

- on the Company website (www.atosorigin.com),

- in the GOB press release database.

legal documents relating to the Company (bylaws,
minutes of Shareholder Meetings, Auditors’ reports,
etc.) may be consulted at the Company’s registered
office (Legal Department).

Registrar

The Company’s share registrar and paying agent is
Société Générale.

Financial calendar

¢ Wednesday, May 15", 2002
First quarter resuits
¢ Thursday, May 30", 2002
Annual General Meeting at the Bristol Hotel
¢ Thursday, September 12", 2002
Half-year results
* Wednesday, November 13*, 2002
Third quarter resuits
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LEGAL INFORMATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.

4.1

4,71

£.1.2

Lega
Governance

GROUP HISTORY

Atos Ori@in was formed in October 2000 by the corpo-
rate merger of Atos and Origin.

Atos

On January 1%, 1997, the Axime and Sligos companies
merged 1o create Atos.

Axime dperated in the electronic data processing and
multimedia, engineering, systems integration and
managed services sectors. In December 1995,

the Axime share was listed for the first time on the Paris
Euronext Premier Marché. Paribas then held 88% of
the Group's stock, but reduced its stake to 26% in April
1996 thrbugh two international placements. Sligos was
formed in 1870 from the merger of Cegos Informatique,
a consulf(ing and management systems development
company, and Sliga, Crédit Lyonnais’ data processing
subsidia\ry. Crédit Lyonnais became at this time the
principal%SIigos shareholder. In November 1995, the
Sligos stock held by Credit Lyonnais was transferred to
Consor’(ifum de Réalisation which then held 56.4% of
the common stock.

After theémerger, Atos’ strategy involved the
implementation of a new business structure focused
around féur service lines: Services, Multimedia,
Outsourcing and Systems Integration, each with

an international coverage.

Crigln |

Atthe timfe of the merger with Atos, the company’s rrain
shareholc;ier was Royal Philips Electronics, with 98% of the
comimon stock. Origin B.V.,, a company incorporated under
Dutch law, was formed in 1996 by the merger of Philips
Commudications and Processing Services {‘Philips C&P’)
and BSOf/Ohgin. Philips C&P was a division of Philips
formed in 1891 to house Philips’ IT services, BSO was
founded |n 1976 and operated as an independent [T serv-
ices company prior to its merger with Philios C&P.

Atos Or@m Annual Report 2001

Information and Corporat

Ales Origin

On August 28, 2000, Atos and Royal Philips Electronics
signed an agreement to merge Atos and Origin, thereby
creating a world leader in T and information services,
On October 31%, 2000, the Atos and Crigin merger
received final approval from Atos shareholders.

In consideration for the Crigin shares transferred to Atos,
Philips received around 21.3 million new Atos Crigin
shares, representing 48.7% of the Group’s common
stock. Philips also received two tranches of stock sub-
scription warrants, classes A and B, each conferring enti-
tlement to subscribe for approximately 2.4 milion Atos
Qrigin shares. These warrants may only be exercised

if the Atos Origin share price exceeds EUR 156 prior to
June 30", 2002 for the first tranche and EUR 208 prior
to June 307, 2008 for the second tranche.

Under the terms of the agreement with Atos Origin,
Royal Philips Electronics declared its intention to reduce
its stake in Atos Origin to under 35% within two years of
the merger of the two groups. Royal Philips Electronics
also agreed, except under certain circumstances, to limit
its voting rights to 35% of shares present or represented
at Atos Origin Shareholder Meetings.

Atos Origin is a leading international business and tech-
nology integrator. Its business is turning client visions
into results through the application of Management
Consulting, Enterprise, eBusiness and Qutsourcing
Solutions. The company has annual revenues of more
than EUR 3 billion, operates in more than 30 countries
worldwide and has over 26,000 employees. Atos
Origin's key clients include ABN-Amro, Alstom,

BNP Paribas, Euronext, Fiat, ICl, KPN, Lucent, Philips,
Renault, Saudi Aramco, Shell, Unilever, Vivendi
Universal and Wolters Kiuwer.




Ates Origin
October 31¢, 2000

Atos
1997
Axime Sligos
LEGAL STRUCTURE 4.2.2

Corporale Form and Purpose

Company name: Atos Origin

Legal form: Limited Liability Company (societe
anonyme) with a Management Board and Supervisory
Board, governed by Articles 210-1 et seqg. of the
French Commercial Code.

Nationality: French.

Registered office and principal place of business:
3, Place de Pyramide, Paris La Défense 9 - 92800 Puteaux.
Registration: Registered in Nanterre under Siren
number 323 623 603.

Business identification code (APE code): 7237
Date of incorporation: 1982

Term: up to March 2™, 2081.

Corporate purpose (Article 2 of the bylaws): Information
processing, systems development, technical, consulting
and support services,(...) research, development, produc-
tion and sale of products and services that contribute to
the promotion or development of data autormation and
transmission systems, including the design, application
and installation of software and data processing, online
data transfer and office automation systems.

Fiscal year: January 1% to December 31¢

Common stock as at December 31%, 2001:

The Company’s common stock amounted to
43,853,704 shares with a par value of EUR 1.00 each
at December 31, 2001.

Philips C&P BSO/Crigin

Provisions of the Bylaws
Members of the Supervisory Board

Each member of the Supervisory Board is reguired to
own at least 10 Atos Origin shares.

Shareholder Meetings

All shareholders are entitled to attend Shareholder
Meetings, regardless of the number of shares held.
Meetings are called by means of a notice published in a
newspaper authorized to carry legal announcements in the
département where the Company has its principal place of
business and in the Bulletin des Annonces Legales.

In addition, a notice of meeting is sent directly to all
holders of registered shares.

Shareholders are required to present evidence of owner-
ship of their shares at the time of the meeting. To comply
with this requirement, registered shares must be recorded
in the shareholder’s name in the account maintained by or
on behalf of the Company at least 5 days prior to the
meeting. Holders of bearer shares are required to deposit
with the Company, at least 5 days prior to the meeting,

a certificate issued by their bank or broker confirming that
the shares have been placed in a blocked account up to
the date of the meeting. Shargholder meetings are held
at the Company’s principal place of business or at any
other location specified in the notice of meeting.
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Voting riéhts
{

Each shafe carries one vote.

At December 31¢, 2001, a total of 43,853,704 vating
rights were attached to the Company’s shares.

No shares carry double voting rights.

Income afppropriation (Article 29 of the bylaws)

Net incorﬁe for the year less any losses brought for-
ward from prior years is appropriated as follows:

* 5% to the legal reserve,

* 10 other reserves required by law,

* torevenue reserves, if appropriate,

* to dividends.

Disclosure thresholds provided for
in the Company’s bylaws

The bylaws require disclosure to the Company, within
10 days, of the acquisition (or sale) of 1% of the
Company's common stock or any muitiple therect,
except inicases where the total interest represents less
than 5%. fDisolosure must be made in accordance with
the provis:ions of Article L 233-7 of the Commercial
Code, supject to the sanctions applicable in the event
of non-disclosure (see Article L 233-14 of the
Commer¢ial Code).

These prévisions were adopted by the Extracrdinary
General Meetings of December 16", 1993 and
January 28", 1997.

Information concerning the identity of holders of
bearer shares

The Company is entitled, at any time, 1o request
Euroclear to disclose the identity of holders of bearer
shares.

Cther Commitmants
Shareholder agreements

The Combany has not received copies of any shareholder
agreemerits for filing with the stock exchange authorities
and to the best of the Management Board's knowledge,
no such ajgreements exist.

As part of the framework agreements signed on August
27", 2000 between the Atos and Philios groups, the par-
ties entered into an agreement relating to the manage-
ment of Philips's shareholding in the common stock of

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001

Atos Origin. The terms and conditions of this agresment .
were set forth in section 1.2.1.3 of the document regis-
tered with the Commission des Opérations de Bourse on
October 16", 2000 under the number ECO-519.

The Wanagzmen: Beard
Members

o Cinairman of the Management Board

Bernard Bourigeaud

Elected: 1997

Re-elected: Supervisory Board meeting of October
31%, 2000

Term expires: October 31, 2005

Other directorships:

® Chairman of the Management Board,
Atos Origin B.V. (Netherlands)

® Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
Atos Odyssée (France),
Atos Origin Nederland B.V. (Netherlands)

* Member of the Supervisory Board,
Atos Origin Processing Services GmbH (Germanyy),
SNT Group NV (Netherlands)

» Director, Atos Ods Origin (Spain), Business Objects
SA (France), CCMX Holding (France)

e Permanent representative, Atos Crigin S.A.: member
of the Atos Euronext 5 SA Supervisory Board (France)

o Mamber of the Management Board

Dominigue Hlien

Elected: 1997

Re-elected: Supervisory Board meeting of October
31, 2000

Term expires: October 31, 2005

Other directorships:
¢ Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mantis (France),
Origin France (France), Ates Origin SpA (italy)
¢ Chairman of a Simplified joint stock company,
Atos Origin Intégration (France),
Atos Origin International (France)
* Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
Atos Euronext ¥ SA (France),
* Member of the Supervisory Board,
Atos Origin Processing Services GmbH (Germany)
* Member of the Management Board,
Atos Crigin B.V. (Netherlands)
¢ Director, Atos Origin Entreprise Services (France),
Atos Origin Inexis Conseil (France)




¢ Permanent representative: Atos Origin,
member of the Astria and Diamis Boards of Directors
(France)

o Member of the Management Board

Eric Guilhou

Elected: 2000

Appointed by: Supervisory Board mesting of October
31¢, 2000

Term expires: October 31¢, 2005

Cther directorships:

* Chairman of a Simplified joint stock company,
Atos Investissement 4 (France)

¢ Member of the Supervisory Board, Atos Euronext
SA (France), Atos Odyssée (France}, Atos Origin
Nederland B.V. (Netherlands)

¢ Member of the Management Board,
Atos Origin B.V. (Netherlands)

 Director, Atos Crigin Belgium (Belgium),
Atos Origin SpA (ltaly), PRE-IPO Net (France)

¢ General manager, EURL F. Clamart

* Permanent representative, Atos Origin S.A.: member
of the Boards of Directors of Origin France (France),
Atos Investisserment 5 (France), Statilogie (France),
Mantis (France), Atos Ods Origin (Spain)

o Member of the Management Board

Wilbert Kieboom

Elected: 2000

Appointed by: Supervisory Board meeting of October
31, 2000

Term expires: October 31%, 2005

Other directorships:

« Director, Atos Origin Belgium (Belgium), Atcs Origin
ICA (International Competences & Alliances) (Belgiumy,
Origin SoftTech (Saudi Arabia), Atos Origin U.K. Ltd
{United Kingdom) :

» Member of the Supervisory Board,

Atos Euronext 5% SA (France)

* Member of the Management Board, Atos Origin B.V.
(Netherlands), Atos Origin Nedertand B.V. (Netherlands),
Atos Origin 1.T. Services Nederland B.V. (Netherlands),
Atos Origin |.T. Systems Management Nederland B.V.
(Netherlands), Atos Crigin Telco Services B.V.
{Netherlands)

o Member of the Management Board

Timothy G. Lomax

Elected: 2000

Appointed by: Supervisory Board meeting of October
31, 2000

Term expires: October 31¢, 2005

Other directorships:

* Chairman, Atos Origin Helding Corp. (USA),
Atos Origin Inc. (USA)

¢ Member of the Management Board,

Atos Origin B.V. (Netherlands), Atos Origin I.T.
Services Nederland B.V. (Netherlands), Atos Origin I.T.
Systems Management Nederland B.V. (Netherlands),
Atos Origin Nederland B.V. (Netherlands)

* Director, Atos Origin ICA (International Competences
& Alliances) (Belgium), Atos Origin Luxembourg
(Luxembourg), Origin SoftTech (Saudi Arabia)

* Substitute director, Atos Origin Argentina S.A. (Argentina)

o Member of the Management Board

Jans Tielman

Elected: 2000

Appointed by: Supervisory Board meeting of October
31¢, 2000

Term expires: October 31, 2005

Cther directorships:

* Member of the Management Board,
Atos Origin B.V. (Netherlands)

¢ Member of the Supervisory Board,
Atos Origin Nederland B.V. (Netherlands)

Role of the Management Board

The Management Board is responsible for the general
management of the Company’s business and meets as
frequently as necessary in the Company'’s interests. In the
case of split decisions, the Chairman has the casting vote.
The Management Board has the broadest powers to
represent the Company in its dealings with third parties.
It reports to the Supervisory Board on a quarterly basis
or more frequently if necessary.
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° Chairrrfan and Member of the Supervisory Board
Henri Pascaud

Elected: 1997

Term expires: Annual General Meeting called to
approve ;he fiscal year 2004 financial statements.

o Vice-Chairman and Member of the Supervisory Board
Cor Boohstra

Elected: 2000

Term exp‘ires: Annual General Meeting called to
approve fhe fiscal year 2004 financial statements.

Other diréctorships:
o Chairman of the Supervisory Board Amstelland
* Member of the Supervisory Board,

Hunter Pouglas International

o Member of the Supervisory Board

Dominiqi‘qe Bazy

Elected: 1997

Term expfres: Annual General Meeting called to
approve fhe fiscal year 2004 financial statements

Other directorships:

. Chairmén and Chief Executive,
U.B.S Holding (France} S.A.

. Vice—CHairman of the Supervisory Board,
Grand Vision

¢ Director, Vinci

o Member of the Supervisory Board
Jean-Frahgois Théodore

Elected: 2000

Term expires: Annual General Meeting called to
approve the fiscal year 2004 financial statements

Other diréctorships:

. Chairmajn, Euronext Paris 8.A., SBF Technologies,
Banque‘%Cemra\e de Compensation, Finext,
Marché fde Titres-France (MTS France)

. Chairmén of the Supervisory Board,

Atos Euronext 5

. Director,j La Cote Bleue S.A.,

* Permanent representative of Euronext Paris :
Director!GL Trade, Financiére Montmartre,

La Finadciére du Belon, La Financiére Saint-Jacgues,
Euronext Markets S.A.

* Permanent Representative of SICOVAM Holding:

Director; Euroclear Plc

'
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o Member of the Supervisory Board

Gérard Bauvin

Elected: 2001.

Term expires: Annual General Meeting called to
approve the fiscal year 2004 financial statements

o Member of the Supervisory Board

Jan Hommen

Elected: 2000

Term expires: Annual General Meeting called to
approve the fiscal year 2004 financial statements

Cther directorships:

» Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer,
Royal Philips Electronics

o Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Academic
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approve the fiscal year 2004 financial statements

Other directorships:

¢ Chief Executive, Crédit Lyonnais

¢ Director, Vinci, Crédit Lyonnais Capital Investissement,
Editions Gallimard La Nouvelle Revue




4.3

£.3.1

4.3.2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Supervisory Board

In accordance with the bylaws and internal rules, the Super-
visory Board meets as frequently as necessary in the Com-
pany's interests. A minimum of four meetings is held per year.
It is currently made up of five independent members
and three members nominated by Philips, some of
whom have ties with a banking or financial institution.
The Supervisory Board has set up the following four
committees:

¢ the Audit Committee,

* the Investment Committee,

¢ the Remuneration Committee,

¢ the Nomination Committee.

Members of these committees are appointed by

the Supenvisory Board from among its members.

They do not receive any remuneration for serving on such
committees. The committees’ terms of reference are
specified in the Supervisory Board's internal rules.

They act in a consultative capacity, reporting to the
Supervisory Board.

The Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs. Henri
Pascaud, Arie Westerlaken and Gérard Bauvin.

The Committee is responsible for ensuring that account-
ing policies used to prepare the parent Company and
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
consistently applied, and for monitoring the proper
implementation of internal procedures. it also monitors
the gquality of information given to shareholders.

The Committee holds periodic mestings with general
management, financial management, legal department and
the independent auditors. The Committee meets at least
twice a year in the presence of the independant auditors.
This year it met four times. The Audit Committee
receives copies of the Group reporting packages. It is
regularly informed of the Group’s financial position and
overall financial strategy and is consulted concerning
the terms and conditions of significant financial transac-
tions prior to their realization. The Committee reviews
financial press releases prior to issue and examines the
accounting and financial documents to be submitted to
the Supervisory Board. It also meets with the independ-
ent auditors to discuss the conclusions of their work.

£.3.4

Issues reviewed by the Audit Committee this year
included the work of Financial management on the
Group’s operating information system strategy and

the implementation of internal control monitoring proce-
dures within all Group entities. The Audit Committee
asked for the Origin opening balance sheet and Group
risks 1o be monitored rigorously, as described within the
notes to the consclidated financial statements.

The Investment Commitiee

The Investment Committee is comprised of Messrs.
Henri Pascaud, Cor Boonstra, Dominigue Ferrero,
Jan Hommen and Jean-Frangois Théodore.

The Committee met four times during the year, repre-
senting an average of once per quarter.

The Committee is responsible for reviewing proposed
acquisitions and divestments that are likely to have

a material impact on the Company’s organic develop-
ment and external growth.

The approval of at least four of its five members is
required to perform any ‘Major’ initiative, defined

as any investment or disposal decision by the
Company in excess of EUR 100,000,000.

The Committee reviewed several projects during the
year and, in particular, the strategic partnership opera-
tions with KPN, the sale of Customer Contact Center
activities to SNT Group and the expansion of Atos
Euronext services in Belgium and the Netherlands.

The Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Committee is comprised of Messrs.
Henri Pascaud, Dominique Bazy and Jan Hommen.

It meets at least once a year.

The Committee is responsible for making recommen-
dations to the Supervisory Board concerning the com-
pensation, pension benefits, benefits in kinds and stock
subscription or purchase options to be awarded to the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board, members of the
Management Board and the allocation of stock sub-
scription or purchase options to Company employees.
During the year the Committee examined, in particular,
the proposed employee share ownership plan
(AOwner), the allotment of stock subscription options
to employees in respect of 2001 and the 2001 bonus
scorecards payable to members of the Management
Board and the review of their 2002 objectives.
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The Nogmiralion GCommities

The Non%ination Committee is comprised of Messrs.
Henri Pa:scaud, Dominique Bazy and Jan Hommen.

The Committee is responsible for recommending suitable
candidates for appointment to the Supervisory Board
should any vacancy arise. It met once during fiscal year
2001 fol[owing the resignation of Mr. Hervé Couffin.

Code ¢f Elhics

Atos Oring is committed to conducting its business
inan etﬁical manner and asks its employees to adhere
to the Séme rules.

For this purpose, employees must disclose to the
Comparjuy any positions held or other activities
conducﬁed outside the Group, as well as any financial
interests in competitors.

The aim%of this policy is to avoid any conflicts of interest
and to protect the Group and its management.

A Code of Ethics detailing a number of general princi-
ples relaiing to conflicts of interest, insider trading

and busjness ethics was drawn-up and adopted by
the Management Board. This code is signed by the
principal managers of the Company.

l
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RESOLUTIONS
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5. Resclutions

5.1

74

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS TO BE
SUBMITTED TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF MAY 30™, 2002

Agzroval of the Fiscal Vear 2001
Firancial Statements

The first three resolutions deal with the approval of

the fiscaljyear 2001 parent company and consolidated
financial statements and related-party agreements.

A portion] of net income for the year will be appropri-
ated to the legal reserve, following share issues which
were performed during the year, and the remainder

to retained earnings. The Company's results for the last
5 years are presented in the section on the parent com-
pany accounts on page 50 of this document,

Avthorization to Trade in the Company’s
Shares:

The 4" resolution authorizes the Management Board

to trade in the Company’s shares on the stock market
in acceordance with the terms and conditions set forth

in Articles L 225-209 et seq. of the Commercial Code.
Shares ﬁay be purchased up to a maximum aggregate
amount of EUR 578,868,840, Shares may be purchased
ata maxifnum purchase price of EUR 132 per share

and sold ét a minimum selling price of EUR 44 per share.
The maximum number of shares, which can be held

by the Cofmpany pursuant to this authorization, will be
limited to: 10% of the common stock as of the date of
the current Annual General Meeting.

The purpose of this authorization is to enable the
Management Board to stabilize the stock market price
of the Company's share and to optimize cash flow

and equity management. This authorization replaces
the previous one granted on June 22, 2001 for a
period of 18 months.

ﬁaﬁfﬁ@aﬁlim of the Appointment of 2 Member
to the Supervisory Board

The 5" reéolution confirms the appointment of

Mr. Gérar-:d Bauvin, decided by the Supervisory Board
meeting of November 15", 2001, to replace Mr. Hervé
Couffin who resigned.

i
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Renewszl of the Terms of Offics of
e Statutery Auditer and the Deputy Auditor

The 67 and 7" resolutions renew the offices of Cabinet
Amyot Exco, Member of Grant Thornten International and
Cabinet IGEC, as Statutory Auditor and Deputy Auditor
respectively for a term of six years.

Amendment of the Bylaws in Accordancs
With the New Commersial Code

The 8" resolution seeks to bring the Company bylaws
into line with the new Commercial Code and,

as such, amends all article references relating

to the original text.

Amendment of the Bylaws in
Accordance with the New Economic
Regulations (NER) Law

Resolutions 9 to 17 seek to bring the Company bylaws
into line with the New Economic Regulations Law and, in
particular, with respect to limits on the accumulation of
offices, the organization and operation of the Supervisory
Board, prevention of conflicts of interest,

calculating quorum at shareholder meetings, shareholder
rights and presentation of the consolidated financial state-
ments to shareholder meetings.

Amount Alveve Which the Marzgement
Beard Must Seelk the Authorizaiicn
of the Sunsrviscry Beard

The 18" resolution sets at EUR 30,000,000

the amount above which the Management Board must
obtain the autharization of the Supervisory Board for
the purpose of certain transactions detailed in the
bylaws, including inter alia, the acquisition or divest-
ment of interests in existing or future companies,

the acquisition or disposal of buildings, receivables, etc.

Other Amendments e the Bylaws
The 19", 20", 21%and 22 resolutions seek to update the

bylaws and make a number of minor amendments enabling
them to better reflect the Company’s current position.




5.2 MANAGEMENT BOARD’S REPORT TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(PURSUANT TO ARTICLE L225-184 PARAGRAPH 1 OF THE COMMERCIAL CODE)

Dear Shareholders,

We hereby inform you that:
1. no stock subscription options were granted during the fiscal year to executive officers by the Company or its associates;

2. executive officers subscribed to the following shares during the fiscal year following the exercise of one or more
subscription options:

Name Mumber of options exercisad Strike price
Daominique llien 16,800 EUR 20.96 ——

3. the total number and weighted average price of stock subscription options granted during the fiscal year by the Company '
to the ten employees of all associated companies and groupings, as defined by Article L225-180, who received the greatest —
number of stock subscription options, are as follows: ‘ 5

Number of stock subscription options granted Weiglted average price
48,200 7915

4., the total number and weighted average price of options in the Company’s stock exercised during the year by the ten
employees of all associated companies and groupings, as defined by Article L225-180, who exercised the greatest number
of stock subscription options, are as follows:

SNOILNTOSIH

Number of stoclt subscription options exercised Weighted average price
48,320 28.33
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PERSdN RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE REFERENCE DOCUMENT

Bernard! Bourigeaud
Chairman of the Management Board

PERSON RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE ACCURACY
OF THE REFERENCE DOCUMENT

To the best of our knowledge, the information
presented in this reference document fairty reflects

the currént situation and includes all information required
by investors to assess the net asset position, activities,
financial solvency, results and future prospects of

the Combany. We confirm that no information likely to
have a miaterial impact on the interpretation of these
documerhts has been omitted.

Bernardi Bourigeaud
Chairman of the Management Board

PERSdNS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statutory Auditors

Amyot EXco, Member of Grant Thornton International
Daniel Kirkdjian and Gilles Hengoat

* Appacinted on: Cctober 24", 1995,

for a terrh of 6 years

* Term of office expires: at the end of the AGM held
to adoptithe 2001 financial statements.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001

Docurmeaen:

1

R

AUd
tatements

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu :

Jean-Paul Picard et Jean-Marc Lumet
* Appointed on: Februa’ry 24", 2000
for a term of 6 years
¢ Term of office expires] at the end of the AGM held
to adopt the 2005 financial statements.

Deputy Auditors

Cabinet IGEC, 2, rue Washington, 76008 Paris
¢ Appointed on: February 24", 2000

for a term of 2 years
¢ Term of office expires; at the end of the AGM held
to adopt the 2001 financial statements.

Cabinet B.E.A.S., 7/9, Villa Houssay,

92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine

¢ Appointed on: February 24", 2000

for a term of 6 years

¢ Term of office expires: at the end of the AGM held
to adopt the 2005 financial statements.




6.4 STATUTORY AUDITORS’ OPINION ON THE REFERENCE DOCUMENT

As statutory auditors of Atos Origin and in accordance with regulation 98-01 of the Commission des Opérations de Bourse
(COB) and professional standards applicable in France, we have performed procedures on the information contained
in the “reference document” relating to the financial position and historical financial statements of the company.

Mr Bernard Bourigeaud, the Chairman of the Management Board, is responsible for the preparation of the “reference
document”. Our responsibility is to report on the fairness of the information presented in the “reference document” relating
to the financial statements.

We have performed our work in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require that
we assess the fairness of the information presented relating to the financial statements and its consistency with the financial
statements on which we issued a report. Our procedures also include reading the other information contained in the
“reference document” in order to identify material inconsistencies with the information relating to the financial statements

and to report any apparent misstatement of facts that we may have uncovered in reading the other information based on
our general knowledge of the company obtained during the course of our engagement.

As this "reference document” does not include any selected prospective data, our procedures did not consist of a reading of
management's assumptions and resuiting figures”.

5

We have audited in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the parent Company and consolidated
financial statements for each of the years ended September 30™ 1998, and December 31 2000 and 2001, approved by the
Management Board, in accordance with French accounting principles. We expressed an unqualified opinion on such finan-
cial statements.

O

Based on the procedures performed, we have no matters to report regarding the fairness of the information relating to
the financial statements presented in the “reference document”.

Paris and Neuilly-sur-Seine, April 5" 2002

DTLISNOISIY SNOSHI /

Amyot Exco Grant Thornton Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Member of Grant Thornton International
Daniel Kurkdjian Jean-Paul Picard
Gilles Hengoat Jean-Marc Lumet

(This is a free translation of the original French text for information purposes only.)
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PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

6.5. COB CROSS-REFERENCE TABLE

80

Pursuant to regulation 98-01, the Commission des Opérations de Bourse (COB) registered this reference document on April 5%,
2000, under the number D0O2-190.

This document may only be used in connection with a financial operation where accompanied by a prospectus approved by
the COB. iThis reference document was prepared by the issuers and is the responsibility of its signatories. Registration
performed after review of the relevance and consistency of the financial information presented on the Company’s position,
does not imply authentication of the financial and accounting information presented.

Saglicn ! Hezding BA%cs Criginin 2007% “Annual repsrt 2001F

; pages ragss
11 Name and position of persons responsible for the document 78
1.2 ; Attestation of persons respansible 78
1.3 | Name and address of auditors 78
1.4 } information policy 63
341 ' General information on the Company ‘ 66-68
32 . General information on the common stock 57
3.3 . Current breakdown of common stock and voting rights 58
3.4 j Market in the common stock of the Company 54-56
35 . Dividends 63
4.1 ~ Overview of the Company and the Group 7-29 417,66
4.2 } Information on the dependency of the Carnpany 27
4.3 ; Exceptional events and litigation 43
44 Employees 15
4.5 * Investment policy 15
4.6 Risks for the Company 41-44
5.1 ; Financial statements of the Company

,j Consolidated financial statements — Parent company financial statements 20-51
52 ’ Specific information + tahle of subsidiaries and investments 49
5.3 k Scope of consolidation and consolidation methods 44-46
5.4 ! Financial forecasts, if not representative of previous years
6.1 '1 Name and position of executive manageiment members 34-37 68-70
6.2 Executive management interest in the cornmon stock 17,30,51,60,75
6.3 Employee profit-sharing plan 17,60
7.1 : Recent developments 3-5 4-6

7.2 ‘j Outlook for the future 5 10

The "referjence document” contains two sections: "Atos Origin in 2001" and "Annual report 2001",

Atos Origin Annual Report 20071




© Atos Origin 2002 Corporate Communications — Designed by Interbrand and produced by Publicis Consultants.Ecocom.










fivolyeagievenueldiaph

Geegiaphicibieakdeynlcilicventie

EXTERNAL REVENUE

Miltion 3,100
Euros

FYO1

FY00 FYO1
Million Euros 2,830 3,038

26% y
S~ [__/

EMEA The Netherlands

Million Euros 3,038

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS AND % MARGIN

Million 300

Million Euros




]
)
0
5
().
0
1
©
O
F:L“Fj
D

B
|
|
|
|

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE YEAR 2001

|

'!

Million Euros FY2001 o w‘FY2000 @ % Change
REVENUE 3,038 2,830 +/3%
[GONIE FROW: GPERATIONS 261.2 1752 +49.1%
OPERATIVE MAREN % 8.6% 6.2% +2.4pts
NET [BOWIE AFTER EO0DULL 123.0 70.5 +74.5%

| 7S BEFORE BOODWILL (FUZ0S) 334 2.06 +61.5%
[EPS AIFTTER GOODWALL .28 161 +737%
ENMPLOVEES (AT 30 0E6) 7 26278 26,916  2.4%

(&) Pro formea fgures




Susiness —ighignts

> erger compleied in resere Wme

> [Financial periormanes en wack

Index

Chief Executive’s Review 2
Business i\/!odel 6
Consultin(j & Systems Integration 12
Managed EServices 18
On-Ling Services 24
People ( 30
Financial Besults 32
Managerﬁent Board 34
Supervisojry Board 37
|nvestorsé 38




Atos Origin:

Integrating business and technology.
Implementing end-to-end solutions, giobally.
Understanding our clients’ vision.

Matching our clients’ expectations...

and then exceeding them.

Turning Client Vision into Results
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Chief Executive’s Review

Ayear of expansion

Y
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2001 was a milestone year for the company, during which the merger
between Atos and Origin was completed in record time. Our main financial
focus has been, and continues to be, the profitability of the business. In 2001
we surpassed the target that we set curselves at the time of the merger by
achieving an operating profit of EUR 261 million, which was nearly 50% higher
than a year ago. The operating margin was 8.6%, compared with 6.2% in
2000. Net income after goodwill amortization was EUR 123 million, compared
with EUR 70.5 million, an increase of 74%.

The new company’s operations have been radically reorganized and the financial
results for 2001 demonstrate the substantial benefits that have been achieved.
Immediately following the merger we acted swiftly to stem operating losses

in several countries and to dispose of low-margin businesses. Corporate costs
were halved and indirect costs reduced substantially, cutting our workforce by
nearly 1,500 staff and delivering better utilization and productivity across all of
our businesses. By the end of 2001, we had closed more than 40 premises
including 4 data center operations. We have also exploited the enhanced
purchasing power of the new group to reduce costs in 2001 and negotiated
significant follow-on savings that will take effect in 2002.

Success in a Tough Environment

Total group revenues increased to EUR 3,038 million, compared with EUR
2,830 million in 2000, which was an increase of 7.3%. This result was achieved
in spite of the fact that trading conditions in North America and Asia Pacific
were tough throughout the year, and became more difficult in Europe during
the second half. Revenue growth in our Managed Services business was
strong but activity in Consulting & Systems Integration and On-Line Services
was comparatively flat, in line with experience throughout the sector. The main
exception was enterprise resource planning (ERP), where there was solid
demand for the company’s substantial SAP implementation capabilities.

Considerable time and attention has been devoted to strengthening cur
global client relationships and account management program, and to building
up our International Competence Center (ICA), which supports the roll-out

of major contracts. The Global Account Program, which now focuses on the
top 42 clients and contributes more than 55% of total group revenues, had
tremendous success. Excluding our largest client, Philips, revenue growth
among this key group was more than 25% in 2001. Since the merger, we
have appointed specialist managers to act as a focal point for consolidating
our experience and knowledge in the industry sectors in which we operate.
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They also support global client bid teams across all countries and regions.
Similarly, we have appointed solution managers to capture leading-edge
expertise in such areas as customer relationship and supply chain
management, and in enterprise resource planning. Again, these key
specialists provide consistent cross-border support to our global clients.

Significant Commercial Wins

During 2001 the company won a major contract with KPN, the Dutch
telecommunications provider, to take over its Datacenter operations.

The 6-year contract will generate revenues of EUR 220 million in 2002, with

a guarantee of not less than EUR 1.1 billion during the first six years. This win
is of enormous strategic importance. As a result, Atos Origin has become

the No.1 IT services provider in The Netherlands. We have also gained an
excellent core of knowledge and expertise in the Telecommunications sector
that will be of widespread importance in supporting our activities elsewhere in
Europe and globally. In recent months we have been negotiating for additional
business with KPN, which is now our second largest customer after Philips.
We signed a letter of intent to manage desktop support operations for KPN,
an operation that is known as End User Services. | expect to be able to
announce full financial details for this contract at completion, which should
take place before the end of April 2002.

S\

\ We continue to promote a policy of forming joint venture alliances with key

‘t\\\\ \ customers, under which risks and rewards are shared. This ensures that

W both parties have convergent objectives. Our joint venture with Euronext —

: AtosEuronext —had an active and successful year, which saw the creation of

a single trading platform across the Paris, Brussels and Amsterdam stock
exchanges. Atcs Origin also began operating the Amsterdam Stock Exchange
systems under & long-term contract.

Concentrating on Gore Activities

During 2001 we sold our customer contact center business in France to SNT.
This activity generated just under EUR 100 million of revenues on an annual
basis but with low profitability, due to a difficult telecommunications market.
Following completion of the sale last December, more than 2,600 staff left the
business to join SNT. We will in future partner with SNT in providing CRM
services to our major European clients.

At the time of the merger | said that we intended to dispose of businesses
with annual revenuss of approximately EUR 200 million. So far we have
completed the disposal of operations generating revenues up to a value of
EUR 130 milliort per annum and there are several other activities that we
intend to divest during 2002.

A Continuing Focus on the Bottom Line

In 2002 we expect that there will be further opportunities in the outsourcing

market, but that trading conditions in Consulting & Systems Integration will

continue to be difficult. It is for that reason that we reduced our indication for
|
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overall revenue growth this year to between 7-9%. At the same time, however,
we are maintaining a tight rein on the company’s cost base and a strong focus
on raising the operating profit margin to 10%, which is our principal financial
target in 2002.

We are rigorously managing recruitment, staff turnover and utilization levels, and

are currently in the process of reducing significantly the number of subcontractors. f
In a business such as ours, effective human resource management lies at the heart
of future success. It is equally important to retain, motivate and reward our core :
staff properly and we will be announcing a scheme to encourage staff to become
long-term shareholders in the company.

Finally, we have taken steps to reduce cost still further through the effective use
of central purchasing. We expect these and the other actions above to have a j.
positive impact on operating margins early in 2002. |

Strategy - A Client-Centric Company with Global Operations

The IT services industry is undergoing a period of consolidation in response to the
increasingly global nature of business activity. In Atos Qrigin our strategy is directly
derived from that of our clients. We already have a large base of global clients and it |
is important that we extend our business so that we are able to provide end-to-end }
solutions in the key geographies and industry sectors where we operate. i

Because we believe it will provide competitive advantage, we want to retain a
balance between Managed Services — with its long-term recurring revenues and
gocd order book visibility — and the Consutting & Systems Integration business, ‘
with its potential for rapid growth. In crder to improve the knowledge we have of ‘
our clients’ business, we want to build a strong and focussed consulting capability
to help us leverage our [T activities.

The most important strategic priority is to increase our size in Germany and the UK.
Together with our existing strengths in France and The Netherlands this will create
aleading European IT service company with significant presence in the four main
European markets. The USA and Asia Pacific are key areas for expansion in the
future, once we have consolidated our position in Europe.

i Finally, | would like to thank our staff for their creative energy and dedication in what
' hasbeenan exciting, but at times a very challenging, year in the company's history.
I would also like to thank our clients, shareholders and many business associates
for their continuing loyalty and support.

Bernard Bourigeaud
Chairman of the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer.
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Atos Originis a
leading bhusiness and
technology integrator.
Our business is about
turning client vision
into results.
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Susiness Model

‘Inmany instances,
we believe that
joint ventures

and other forms
of long-term

asso Ci ati on with Atos Origin provides integrated consulting, build and run solutions to a base

of large global clients in carefully targeted industry sectors. By adopting this

clientsare a strategy, we aim to produce above-average revenue and earnings growth
prod uctive Way and to maximize earnings per share in the medium-long term, for the mutual
Of developing benefit of our clients, our shareholders and staff.

bbusiness. We aim to develop long-term relationships with our clients, and to
become closely involved in their strategic planning and implementation
processes. By doing so, we will be better able to provide those clients
with effective IT solutions.

Our 42 large global clients contribute just over 55% of our revenues. Those
clients are served by a Global Account Program in which we provide
intense support, under the overall direction of the Group Chief Executive.
Global Account Managers ensure that services are provided consistently
to cur clients across different geographies and service lines.

The company provides services to clients

through three main lines of service:
Service Lines

Half of the company’s revenue is derived from Consufting & Systems
Integration activities. We provide services ranging from design and

consultancy, to building and implementing new systems for our clients.

The activities in this area are described in more detail on pages 12 and 13.

Managed Services
On-Line Services

_—F

Many of those systems are run or operated under long-term outsourcing
contracts, using our Managed Services infrastructure and experience.

In the current favorable market conditions for outsourcing, this service line
expanded from 33% of group revenue last year to nearly 37% of group
revenues in 2001 (see pages 18 and 19).

Atos Origin provides specialist skills and services in Internet and Payment
Processing, which are reported under On-Line Services. Two-thirds of
this business is connected with providing payment processing services
in France and Germany (see pages 24 and 25),

Consulting & Systems Integration

Million Euros 3,038
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. Public Sector & Others

-

Telecom i 7 -

Retail & CPG Financial Services

High Tech Process Industries

Million Euros 3,038 £

EXTERNAL REVENUE FY01 PER GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Netherlands

Million Euros 3,038
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Industry Sector Focus

The company is moving towards a more industry- based structure.

We have appointed senior managers to act as focal points for

gathering and expleiting our skills and experience |n each of the vertical
market sectors in which we operate — Financial Services, High Tech,
Telecommunications, Retail & CPG, Process Indusfries and the Public
Sector. These resources are increasingly centered W|th|n our consulting
groups, where knowledge and experience can most effeotlvely be applied
across geographies and service lines.

Solution Offerings

We have appointed domain or ‘solution’ managers as experts in each of
our offerings. The task of these managers is to focus our expertise in these
respective fields, and to identify and package specmc solutions sets for
efficient use across the business.

Country/Regional Responsibilities

The company's activities are based in Europe, with operatlons inThe
Americas and Asia Pacific that provide extended suppor‘c coverage for
our global clients in those regions. France and The Netherlands currently
generate just over 60% of total sales and the compény expects revenues
in each of those countries to exceed EUR 1 billion in 2002. It is the
company’s strategic aim to achieve critical mass in iall the principal IT
spending countries of Western Europe, and in parti:cu\ar in Germany

and the UK. In the medium-long term we will establjish a larger presence
in North America and the major markets of Asia Pajcifio.

Management Responsibilities

In spite of the increase in global activity, the eﬁec‘nve delivery of IT services
remains heavily dependent on effective local suppor‘t, experience and
relationships. For this reason, and to ensure carefulfcontrol of our cost
base, profit responsibility resides at a region level, but with strong

. . ., . |
coordination by service line and across Industry sectors.

|
Apart from the Chief Financial Officer and the head bf Human Resources,
each of the other four members of the Management Board has regional
responsibility for a number of countries.
Three members of the Management Board have resoonsibility for
coordinating a service line activity across all geographies, ensuring that
there is consistency in the provision of services to clients, and that experience
in one geography is shared and exploited in all othersf.

Each member of the Management Board sponsors client relationships
in a specific Industry sector.




JointVentures

In many instances, we believe that joint
~ ventures and other forms of long-term
~ association with clients are a
productive way of developing business,
- with hoth parties sharing the risks and
rewards of the association.

- Examples of joint venture relationships
include Euronext and BNP Paribas.
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ALOS-
Furonext

1 Success story |

THE CHALLENGE To bring together}three stock exchanges, three
cultures and three separate IT departments in a way that would
reduce costs, improve efficiencies énd ensure total reliability.

THE BACKGROUND Whan the Ams{erdam, Brussels and Paris
stock exchanges merged, their separate [T functions also had to
unite — quickly, seamlessly and witl? minimal business disruption.
Ajoint venture between the Paris Bourse and Atos Origin created
AtosEuronext as the ideal partnership organization.

THE METHOD To establish comman ground, AtosEuronext
examined the different systems ujsed in each of the three
exchanges for each aspect of trade including derivatives,
clearing and surveillance. Independent arbiters selected the
most appropriate unified systems?. Regular meetings in each
of the locations identified best préctices that would form the
basis for the new uniform po\icieé and procedures.

THE RESULTS AtosEuronext delivered unified IT services for all
three locations — on time and witﬁin budget. Equally important,
was the integration of 1,000 people into the new company
from each of the three exchangeé, providing continuity as well
as diversity of experience and knowledge. More than 85% of
AtosEuronext’s business is recurrbnt.

THE WAY FORWARD As the clear world leader in providing IT
sclutions to major exchanges, and a premier European player
delivering IT solutions for Financial Services such as banking
and insurance, AtosEuronext is continuously seeking to expand
and leverage the synergies betwéen these areas.
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Jl | Thisjoint
1Y venture has
A brought us the

Y best of both
~ @» ‘ worlds. We've
. & Mmanagedto
, reduce IT
i costs through
economies of
scale while, at
the same time,
shifting the IT
function from
a cost center
to a rapidly
growing asset.

Dominigue Brutin,
President & Chief Executive Oificer
AtosEuronext
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CQnsultmg &
Systems Integ rahem

RiRSIPRIGING
EGESISERTIGEINE:

Working with our clients to
develop fong-term IT plans that
will support and enhance their
overall business strategy.

implementing their [T strategies.
Developing specialist solutions

and integrating ‘best of breed’
technologies and packaged systems
as part of an end-to-end solution
offering with specific sector focus.

Implementing core enterprise
resource planning (ERP) systems and
integrating these with other client
systems to obtain maximum benefit.
One-third of Atos Origin’s activities
in Consulting & Systems integration
are directly associated with the
implementation of SAP, Oracle and
other leading ERP products.

Developing partnerships and
alliances with other leading
software vendors that create new
opportunities for our clients.

Providing Application Lifecycle
Management services and support.

12 Atos Origin Annual Report 20071
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Results ?

2001 was a challenging year in Consulting & Systems Integration
worldwide, Clients came under tight internal budgetary constraints

and as a result postponed the launch of many nevx[ initiatives. There has
instead been a focus on maximizing the benefits fr(;)m existing core

IT investments. The emphasis in 2001 was therefore on integrating front
and back office systems and standardizing implementation across
different geographies, in order to reap maximum cbmmercial benefit.
Total group revenues in Consulting & Systems Integration amounted to
EUR 1,490 million in 2001, which was flat compare;d with the previous
year. After modest growth in the first half, there was an actual decline in
revenues in this service line towards the end of 2OQ1 and we expect that
trend to continue in the early part of 2002, |

There were marked variations between different regic};ns. Activity in
France and The Netherlands was strong for much of?the year. However,
a combination of weak markets in the Americas and iAsia Pacific and
pro-active post-merger restructuring, led to a net year on year reduction
in revenue in those regions. The restructuring tr|ggered by the merger
resulted in a lsaner and more efficient organization, p}rowdrng a distinct
competitive edge. The overall operating margin in ansulting & Systems
Integration irmproved from 7.8% to nearly 9.0%, in spite of the impact of
the 35-hour week legislation on the first half resuits |n France.

‘The restructuring
triggered by the
previous year’s
merger resulted in
aleaner and more |
efficient organization, |
providing a distinct
competitive edge’




‘We recognize the
need for consulting
resources to guide
our clients through
the increasingly
complex process
of determining IT
strategy and
implementing it
effectively.

| RTRIS 5755 PR R A

Asia-Pacific

France

I_The Netherlands

Million Euros 1,480

Consulting & Systems Integration

Million Euros FYO1 FY00 %Change
Revenue 1,490 1,484 +0.4%
Income from

operations 1337 116.1 +15.1%
Operating margin =~ 9.0% 78% +1.2pts
Employees

at 31 Dec 14,931 14,767 +1.1%

Business Development

Atos Origin has substantial capability in enterprise resource planning (ERP).
The company has one of the largest SAP implementation groups in Europe
and also has strong capabilities in Oracle, Pecplesoft and Baan. in 2001,
demand remained solid with the emphasis in ERP on the integration and
standardization of core systems. Extension modules in customer relationship
and supply chain management are providing new market impetus.

In our substantial Consulting & Systems Integration practice in France,
demand for custom-built solutions, particularly in the financial services
sector, remained strong during the first half of 2001, but weakened during
the second half, in line with the broad economic trend. Atos Origin was
extensively engaged in work to standardize the Euronext operating
platform across the Paris, Brussels and Amsterdam stock exchanges
and we expect the expansion of Euronext's influence to be positive for
our joint venture — AtosEuronext - in the medium term.

Elsewhere in Europe, the company is providing system design and
development services and integrating leading-edge technologies
across a wide range of industry sectors. In France, The Netherlands,
Germany and ltaly we are active in the manufacturing sector, especially
in the Automotive and Process industries. In France, Spain and now
also in The Netherlands we are closely involved in developments in

the telecommunication sector and our depth of experience will bring
considerable benefit to the new relationship with KPN, We are also
strong in the retail sector in France and have won a number of new
contracts in both the retail and manufacturing sectors in the UK.

Consulting remains a small part of our activities, but we have had success
in building our presence in both the French financial services market,
through Atos Qdyssée, and in The Netherlands. We recognize the need
for consulting resources to guide our clients through the increasingly
complex process of determining IT strategy and implementing it effectively.
We remain committed to growing this part of our business substantially,
with the emphasis on acquiring high quality and in-depth [T knowledge
and experience in our chosen industry sectors.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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Philips
Nedical
Systems

Success story

THE CHALLENGE Within the context ;of the client's steady
expansion, to integrate the diverse processes and systems of
newly acquired companies into a sirllgle entity as speedily and
effectively as possible - all while maintaining current operations
and profitability, |

THE BACKGROUND Leveraging the jsuccessful integration
project conducted for Philips Medic;al Systems in Australia,
Atos Origin was ideally placed to take on a much larger task.
This encompassed project managefment and staffing to start
integrating the regional sales and §ervice information systems
of three newly acquired companiesiinto the client’s existing
SAP systems. \

THE METHOD Working to tight deadlines, the Atos Origin
team exploited the company's SAP ;’expertise across a wide
geographic area. During the course; of the project, the scope
of work expanded to global proportions. The project now
encompasses development, foouss:ing on finalization of the
SAP kernel, and integration, with erhphasis on the integration
of the sales and service informatior‘a systems.

THE RESULTS Despite the expansiop and complexity of the
project as it evolved, Atos Origin is currently coordinating

the delivery of the desired systems limegration in a coheslve,

unified way. This requires a high Ievlel of management
responsiveness and flexibility, particularly in the allocation

of staff resources on a global scalel

THE WAY FORWARD Atos Origin is nbw ranked as a preferred
supplier of IT infrastructure and ser}vices for Philips Medical
Systems. The company is also invol}ved in the development
stream, helping the client’s own sta;ﬁ to finalize the SAP kernel

and facllitating further integration. '

i
I
I
I
|
i
|
|
!
I
|




Atos Originhas
been instrumental
iN several areas,
putting the right
people inthe

right place at the
right time, when-
ever needed.
What’s more, we
were impressed by
their professional
approach and
enthusiasm.

A good rapport
developed
between the
people at

Philips Medical
Systems and the
Atos Originteam.

Jan Peter Zotiner, Chief Information Officer
Chris fManners, IT integration Leader
Johan de Groote, Programme Management
Integrated Client
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‘Successful commer-
cial development of
solar energy relies

{ onpartnerships -

with governments,
universities and
multi-lateral agencies.
Atos Origin has
provedtobea
valuable partner too.

= They've immersed

themselves in our
business. They under-

| stand our needs

and constraints

anc!j offer the
ﬂe>;<ibnity we need.
With their help,
we're on our way

to becoming one of
‘thé world's top three

i . .
solar companies. .
|
Wir. Pei;'er Yit
Yice ??esmem Stell Solar




Success story

THE CHALLENGE To meet the growing, and increasingly global,
SAP requirements of the world’s fourth-largest provider of solar
photo photovoltaic cells and panels.

THE BACKGROUND In line with the Royal Dutch/Shell Group's
commitment to new, sustainable and commercially viable
sources of energy, Shell Solar, active since the 1970’s, formed
a JV with Siemens Solar in 2001 and acquired 100% of the
shares in 2002. The solar business services customers in
Europe, the Americas, Africa and Asia. The company’s focus is
on growth in both grid-connected solar systems and rural
slectrifications. Current market share is around 15%.

THE METHOD Atos Origin's work with Shell Solar began in 1999,
with the implementation of six SAP modules in six months.
Building on this experience, in 2000 Shell Solar migrated

seven SAP modules from Germany to Shell Solar’s operations
in The Netherlands. More recently, in 2001 the company
completed the switch to its expanding SAP environment.

THE RESULTS Atos Origin is now providing Shell Solar with ERP
service in three key areas. One team is respansible for delivery of
technical support work, another team is charged with giving Shell
Solar all the user support it requires and a third team supports
Shell Solar to further enhance the SAP system where necessary.
THE WAY FORWARD As Shell Solar’s global operations expand, Atos
Origin support is geared to grow in tandem. That means maintaining
continuity while meeting the increasingly complex demands of a
business that aspires to have a leading role in its field.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001




NVanaged services

THE BEDROCK OF ATOS
ORIGIN’S OUTSOURCING
BUSINESS:

Managing core IT infrastructure
for our globat clients, including
datacenters, server farms and

network communication systems.

This forms a crucialpart of the
company’s end-to-end solution
offerings to its clients.

Providing ‘follow the sun’
infrastructure support through
our global network of support
operations in Europe,

North America and Asia Pacific.

Managing value-added desktop
support operations for our global
clients in regions and industry
sectors where we are able to do
so effectively. The company has
unrivalled experience in major
roll-out programs for global
clients such as Philips.

QOutsourcing the management of
ERP and other applications on
either a direct or remote basis.

Providing eBusiness hosting
services.

18 Atos Or‘\g‘\r;w Annual Report 2001

Results

In contrast to Consulting & Systems Integration, activity in Managed
Services and Qutsourcing was strong, with revenues growing by nearly
19% in 2001 to EUR 1,120 million, including an initial contribution from
the KPN Datacenter contract in the last quarter. The 2001 operating
margin bounced back to a healthy 11.4%.

Within the market broadly there has been a strong and continuing trend
among our clients towards outsourcing, driven by their need to reduce
costs, achieve better cost visibility and shift the nature of those costs from
fixed to variable. There is also the growing desire among clients to engage
the in-depth expertise of companies such as Atos Origin to help them
through the increasingly complex challenge of managing their information

technology infrastructure and transforming their operational processes.

Following the capture of several major new outsourcing contracts last
year, we expect a further substantial rise in revenue from this service line
in 2002. Managed Services represented approximately 33% of group
revenues at the time of the merger, but this rose to 37% in 2001 and is
likely to reach 40% by the end of 2002.

‘Following the capture
of several major

new outsourcing
contracts last year,
we expect a further
substantial rise in
revenue from this
service line in 2002!




‘Through the

geographic expansion

of our business we
intend to maintain a
strong balance of
Managed Services
activities to support

our Consult,
run moael!

build and

Asia-Pacific

38%
I_The Netherlands

Million Euros 1,120

Managed Services

Million Euros FYO1 FY00 %Change
Revenue 1,120 942 +18.9%
Income from

operations 1279 996  +285%
Operating margin =~ 11.4% 106%  +0.8pts
Employees

at 31 Dec 8,185 6,630  +23.4%

Business Development

Atos Origin's Managed Services operations provide an integral extension
to our overall service offering, enabling the systems that we design and
build for our clients to be run using our global infrastructure. A network of
‘follow the sun’ support facilities in The Netherlands, Singapore and the
USA, forms an important part of the company’s package, offering scale
economies for network, server and storage management. At a time when
there is a clear desire among clients for fiexible ‘on demand’ services, the
opportunities for growth in this area are encouraging.

At alocal level, the company provides cost-effective and high value-add
desktop support for clients, with standardization across muitiple regions
to enable our global clients to benefit from rapid and effective information
communication. Atos Origin has been responsible for some of the largest
support roll-outs worldwide, for clients such as Philips.

KPN Datacenter was the largest single contract won by the company to
date. Together with a further potential desktop support contract, this new
business alone will increase the size of the company’s Managed Services
activity by well over 20% on an annualized basis. During the first year of
operation, we expect to add considerable value to KPN'’s activities in the
form of shared and enhanced process methodologies. Benefits will also
derive from synergy plans aimed at driving new savings and efficiencies,
as well as considerable cross-fertilization in such areas as UNIX and
mainframe operations.

Atos Origin's strategy is to strengthen its Managed Services leadership in
both France and The Netherlands — two of the biggest markets in Europe.
Through the geographic expansion of our business we intend to maintain
a strong balance of Managed Services activities to support our consult,
build and run model.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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Alos Oﬁgm S
top manage-
ment displayed
unswerving
commitment
to this deal.
They were at
every meeting;
building rela-
tiocnships and
encouraging
the sort of swift
decision-taking
that ma@]e

all happen so
quickly end
sowell’

P Buils i
Senior Vice Prasident (T-Operations KPN
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KPN

Success story

THE CHALLENGE To allow Dutch telecom giant KPN to
concentrate on its core business by taking over the provision
of high performance IT operations through a comprehensive
agreement that delivers attractive (market conform)

conditions in the future.

THE BACKGROUND In a strategic partnership arrangement,
Atos Crigin took over KPN Datacenter as well as an exclusive
right to negotiate the outsourcing of KPN's end user services
and software house. This involved a commitment from

Atos Origin to deliver on all of KPN's operational and technical
service level agreements in terms of both continuity and quality.
THE METHOD Having finalized the contract, which is worth at
ieast EUR 1.1 billion over the next six years, both Atos Origin
and KPN were eager to reap the benefits of the close cultural
fit between the two organizations. This involved the seamless
transfer of 1040 staff while maintaining continuity of current
services. Atos Origin will be developing a range of new offerings
for KPN and the external market via the new Telco services
center in a partnership with KPN.

THE RESULTS Without any break in service, the new operation
run by Atos Origin provided sustainabie client management to
each of KPN's business units. Benefits included an immediate
reduction in overheads along with an expansion of external
market offerings.

THE WAY FORWARD In the short term, Atos Origin is aiming

10 be involved in KPN's billing, web hosting and CRM functions.
Eventually, the relationship between the two companies could
move to an even higher level, adding new functionality while
simplifying the legacy applications.

Atos Qrigin Annual Report. 2001
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\/I \/a t {formerly Groupe André)

Success story

THE CHALLENGE To run the European T systems for one of
France's largest and most important retailers, with 2,500 stores,
14,000 employees and such leading brands as Kookai and Caroll.
THE BACKGROUND Given the range of its two core businesses
(textile and shoes) and extensive brand portfolio, Vivarte
wanted implementation and execution of a cost competitive
and more autonomous IT system, capable of coping with its
aggressive growth plan. The brief to Atos Origin encompassed
the management of centralized and distributed servers,
workstations and a hotline for system users in stores,
warehouses and head office.

THE METHOD During the course of a seven-year contract,

Atos Origin is taking on 39 members of Vivarte's information
services team. Their knowledge of the client’s operation
together with Atos Origin's expertise is helping to achieve
Vivarte's pan-European (T objectives.

THE RESULTS Working across a business portfolio divided into
five categories, the Atos Origin team has started implementing
major changes in Vivarte's system architecture. Benefits of
scale are already apparent, as is @ more concentrated and
pro-active approach to service delivery.

THE WAY FORWARD During the course of the agreement,

Atos Origin's involvement with Vivarte is likely to evolve and
expand. This is in keeping with the client’s forecast for growth
and change — much of which is facilitated by the existing
relationship between the two companies.




| ‘We chose
Atos Origin
because we
knew they
would listento
what we wanted

with a ‘hands

8 on’ approach.
B \What's more,
we wanted our
| IT systems
3 delivered with
—_— solid craftsman-
shipaswellas
innovation. With
Atos Originwe
are getting both!

iy Padovani
Executive Vice President Strategy, Crganization,
Systems, internaticnal, Vivarte
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On-Line Services

BROCESSINGISERVIGES:!

> Providing payment processing
systems and services in the
European payments market.
Atos Origin has a leading position
in a number of major markets in
Europe for card transactions.

v

Providing value-added internet
processing services in such areas
as on-line broking and freight
exchange information systems.

> Providing CRM systems,
inciuding loyalty program
management systems for the
retail and oil industries.

> Developing Secure Internet
Payment systems and creating
electronic market places.
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Results

Revenues in On-Line Services increased by 6% in 2001, to EUR 428 million.
The card payrnent processing businesses continued to grow at a steady
pace in both France and Germany, reflecting a steady long-term shift from
cash payment. However, revenue growth in the Internet Services business
was lower than in 2000 in a more constrained cost environment. A number
of contracts are volume-based and there was reduced demand in such
areas as on-line broking.

The operating margin in On-Line Services fell back to 10.5%, notably due
to the difficult trading conditions experienced in our French customer
contact center business. At the beginning of December 2001, the company
completed the sale of those centers to SNT group of The Netherlands.

This business generated revenues of EUR 82 million for the 11 months to
November 3011, 2001 but the operating margin was very low due to difficult
circumstances in the Telecom market. At the same time, Atos Origin intends
to partner SNT in providing high-end design and development of CRM
systems for clients through our systems integration division.

Business Development

The On-Line Service capabilities of Atos Origin provide unique differentiation
on a global basis. None of our competitors are able to match the range of
services and solutions developed in this service line and shared throughout
the company. Kay technologies include multi channel interactive systems,
voice recognition, web-based CRM, N tier architecture, portals, market
places, securitization and transaction certification, virtual card concepts and
the integration of telecom services.

‘The card payment
processing businesses
continued to grow

in both France &
Germany, reflecting a
steady long-term shift
from cash payment!




‘L. ooking beyond
Europe, we intend
to expand our
activities in Internet
processing
sServices across

all countries in
which Atos Origin
currently operates!

| BT CEVEIE F00 O DUSTRY SEBTaR

Process Industries
Retait & EEG—'J_‘

Public Sector
& Others

High Tech & Te!ecomJ

Miltion Euros 428

Financial Services

On-Line Services

Million Euros FYO01 FY0OO %Change

Revenue 428 404 +6.0%
Income from

operations 44 8 48.7 -8.1%
Operating margin =~ 10.5% 12.1% -16pts
Employees

at 31 Dec 3,052 5,358 -43.0%

On-Line Services is also a market leader in eBanking and eTrading,
encompassing bank, brokerage and insurance company clients in eight
countries. Projects such as developing and hosting the mobile music
distribution channet to GSMs for Universal Music, developing SMS
messaging system for Société Générale and implementing a voice portal
with France Telecom positioned Atos Origin as the number two eBusiness
service provider in France (Source: Pierre Audoin Conseil).

There are new and encouraging prospects in banking. Recent sector
successes include payback card processing for LBBW Bank, full service
for Sachsen LB Bank's Visa picture credit card, banking card processing
for Daimler Chrysler, outsourcing of credit and loyalty cards for Cetelem
Bank and a joint offering by Atos Origin and Credit Lyonnais. Our offerings
in securitised internet payment and ePurse place us in a leading position
in both France and Germany.

In Customer Relationship Management processing, On-Line Services
gained significant market share in developing internet-based fleet car
management services, loyalty card solutions and other services across the
oil, automotive and retail sectors. Atos Origin is now the leader in the sector
in France and number two in CRM Services across Europe as a whole.

Looking beyond Europe, we intend to expand our activities in
Internet processing services across all countries in which Atos Origin
currently operates.

We also believe that there will be increasing opportunities to capitalize

on our experience and dorminant market position in payment processing
in France and Germany. The merger provides a much broader geographic
base of support operations throughout Europe and the group intends

to exploit the medium term opportunity that exists to take over a number
of in-house processing operations, providing significant cost savings.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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“The outcome has
been exactly as

we had hoped.
From the beginning,
Atos Origin under-
stood our needs
and adapted to fit
them. Thatmeant
we were able 1o
resolve, quickly

and amicably, any
oroblems that came
up without holding
the terms of our
contract over one
another. That'sa
good way to work!

Bernard Le Bihan

|
Directeur des Yechmi&gie; &-COMIMErce,
DTSI, Rerault ‘
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Success story

THE CHALLENGE To transform Renault’s disparate, brochure-
orlented Internet sites into brand-boosting, cohesive e-commerce
sites linked to the OEM Information Systems as well as to its
dealer network.

THE BACKGROUND Renautt wanted to develop a new generation
of e-commerce websites to give customers in France, Germany
and the UK online access to its full range of products and services,
as well as direct access to the dealer network. Previously, Renault
had operated 30-40 separate sites with no direct links either to the
Renault Information System or the dealerships.

THE METHOD Work began by advising Renault’s prime
contractors on suitable architecture systems, including precise
specifications. Following this came the implementation of

a secure technical platform including redundancy, and pilot
programs to integrate comprehensive benchmarking studies.
THE RESULTS Hosted by Atos Origin Multimedia, the three
Renauit sites benefit from a single international platform.

Fully integrated with the Renautt back office as well as the
dealer network, the site provides instant information for
potential Renault customers on real-time inventory and a
facllity for on-line financing information. Visits to the sites

were 20% higher than anticipated, generating some 10,000
leads in the first months of operation.

THE WAY FORWARD During the course of a highly complex and
sensitive project — delivered on time and within budget - the
teams from Atos Origin and Renault developed a close and
complementary relationship. This is expected to provide the
basis for management of other Renault sites, beginning with
Renault.com.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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VVolters
Kluwer

Success story

THE CHALLENGE To develop and host the European technology
platform for a leading multinational information services
company operating in the legal, tax and business, internationat
health and science and education sectors.

THE BACKGROUND Wolters Kluwer wanted an internet platform
that would create and deploy business-to-business sites,
primarily focussed on content, across Europe. This involved the
integration of country-specific needs for use hy professionals
in each of the sectors.

THE METHOD Using Atos Origin’s On-Line Services, already
the technical partner for a number of Wolters Kluwer online
initiatives, Atos Origin brought the client’s strategy to life,
extending existing content, services and software on the
internet platform to include new web-specific products,
services and productivity tools.

THE RESULTS With EIP (Eurcpean Internet Platform), Wolters
Kluwer offers competitive online services to the broad range
of professional communities that make up its clientele.

THE WAY FORWARD Atos Origin will continue to work closely
with Wolters Kluwer's European Internet Service Center in
Brussels to help establish technical standardization between
all of Wolter Kluwer’s operating companies and reduce the
company’s time-to-market cycle.




This partnershio
with Atos Origin
is acne-time
opportunity

to further
strengthen our
iNnternet position.
With Atos Origin
we have elready
developed some
very successiul

- on-line initiatives.
T This agreement
will enalble us

to combine the
est of both
companies.
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Creative yet disciplined
Pragmatic

Entrepreneuria’ and passionate
about service

Diverse in origin, skills and
outlook, but un’ted in purpose
to achieve outstanding results

T Aws §2
Origin
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Though officially, 20 teams were nominated and eleven people actually
collected awards on their behalf, the message was clear and consistent —
the successes being celebrated belonged to all.

This sense of ownership was a major theme for Atos Origin during the first
full year of operations following the merger of 2000. From the start, teams
from what had previously been Atos and Origin sought each other out for

ideas, insights and inspiration to drive the new company forward.

From somewhere, and at some point in this informal process of enquiry
and cooperation, a phrase was coined to describe the people who
work here — Atos Originals. The name has stuck, and for good reason.
It encapsulates people’s spirit of innovation and determination to create
and build new products and services and achieve ever-higher levels of
customer care.

Atos Criginafs are already giving a shape to the organization in their own
way. To harness some of this positive energy and help give coherence
and direction to the effort, the company has put in place a set of human
resource policies and actions designed to help position the company as a
leader in IT solutions. These policies cover every aspect of the company’s
commitment to Atos Originals: attraction, motivation, development,
reward, communication and retention.

In 2001, extra emphasis was given to the following three programs:

A glebal recruitment campaign Using a cartoon adaptation of the Atos
Origin fish logo, a series of press advertisements employed humor to
highlight the very human core values that help differentiate the company.
The campaign, which appeared in over 20 global publications including
the Wall Street Journal and the International Herald Tribune, achieved its
aim of attracting the right people. It was equally successful in conveying
the right messages abeut the new company to important secondary
audiences - existing and potential clients as well as current employees ~
and so had additional impact.
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EMEA J The Netherlands

Employees 26,278

AOwner The year 2001 also saw the groundwork for an employee ownership
plan. Called AOwner, this program was designed during the course of the
year 10 enable as many Afos Originals as possible to become co-owners of
the business. This will have a posttive impact on recruitment, retention,
motivation and entrepreneurial behavior.

To encourage participation from as many employees as possible, AOwner
offers a 20% discount on the share price, with the added incentive of an
option on a fifth share for every four purchased. Due to be launched in the
second quarter of 2002, AOwner will be available in its first year of operation
to the majority of employees worldwide.

AO University A third program that was launched in 2001 for implementation
in 2002 is AQ University. It consists of formal training courses with links to
major business schools, eLearning, project secondments and networking
with colleagues who could be in the next office or on the other side of the
world. AO University is due for a company-wide launch in the second
quarter of 2002.

It will serve several purposes. First, AQ University has been designed to
develop people in their current positions, enhancing both effectiveness and
job satisfaction. Just as important is AO University’s role as a springboard,
empowering Atos Originals to enhance their skill sets and knowiledge as a
means of developing their own careers. And, as Atos Origin continues to
expand through acquisitions and partnerships, the program will also serve as
a platform for growth. A dedicated portal on the employee intranet ‘Source’
will enable employees to learn about every facet of the company instantly.

The benefits of development are not confined within the company. They have
a widerimpact as well. In Mumbal, India, for example, where the company
operates a highly successful software facility, employees are consistently
recruited from local and regional schools and universities. Their structured
career development within Atos Origin generates the potential for capacity
building and technology transfer to the wider community.

During the year 2001, local initiatives in ather parts of the world — both
developed and developing — focused on programs to support public health,
disaster relief, poverty and children’s welfare.

In acknowledgement of Atos Crigin's efforts, in 2001 the company was
accorded a place on the list of 'Sustainability Leaders’. Compiled by SAM
Research, a member of Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes, the list is regarded
as a significant reference point for ethical investment.
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—iNnancilal results

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

{Million Euros) Period ended Period ended
December 31st, 2001 December 31st, 2000 @

e

Revenue 3,037.6 2,829.8

Total operating expenses (2,776.4) (2,654.6)

Income from operations 261.2 175.2
% of revenue 8.6% 6.2%

Net financial expense 9.6) (10.1)

Net income on ordinary activities 251.6 165.1

Non-recurring items 2.9) (10.1)
Carporate income tax (84.0) (55.8)
Net income before affiliates,

minority interests and amortization of goodwill 164.7 99.2

Share in income of equity affiliates 0.1) 0.3)
Minority interests (18.3) 8.7)
Net income before amortization of goodwill 146.3 90.2

Amartization of goodwill (23.3) (19.7)
Net income for the period — Group Share 123.0 70.5
% of revenue 4.0% 2.5%

Net earnings per share
(hased on weighted average number of shares outstanding)

Weighted average number of shares 43,806,925 43,697,291
Earnings per share before amortization of goodwill (in EUR} 3.34 2.06
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 2.81 1.61

Diluted average number of shares 53,801,424 52,195,508
Earnings per share before amortization of goodwill (in EUR) 2.93 1.87
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) 2.49 1.49

@ Pro forma figures
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CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET

{Million Euros)

December 318, 2001

December 31st, 2000

Goodwill 405.4 310.0
Other intangible fixed assets 229 413
Tangible fixed assets 303.9 194.8
investments 39.5 26.5
Total fixed assets 771.7 572.6
Accounts and notes receivable, trade 970.9 856.3
Other Receivables, Prepayments and accrued income 260.1 244 4
Transferable securities 83.2 495
Cash at bank and in hand 93.3 80.8
Total Current Assets 1,407.5 1,231.0
Total Assets 2,179.2 1,803.6

(Million Euros)

December 31st, 2001

December 31st, 2000

Common stock 43.9 43.8
Additional paid-in capital 352 329
Consolidated reserves 226.0 180.3
Translation adjusiments 71 5.0
Net income for the period 123.0 485
Shareholders’ Equity - Group Share 435.2 3105
Minority interests 43.5 194
Totat Sharetolders’ Equity 478.7 3299
Provisions for contingencies and losses 2511 405.0
Borrowings 4117 243.8
Accounts payable - trade 423.2 3351
Other Liabilities, Accruals and deferred income 614.5 4898
Total Liabilities 1,449.4 1,068.7
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity 2179.2 1,803.6

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(Million Euros)

December 318, 2001

December 318!, 2000 @

Working capital/revenue
Return on capital employed
Net debt on total shareholder's equity

Average employees

6.4%
14.4%
49%

27,440

9.8%
10.4%
34%

26,442

@ Pro forma figures
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BERMARD BOURIGEAUD

Chairman of the Management Board and

Chief Executive Officer. Responsible far Central Europe

and co-ordinating Managed Services.

Bernard Bourigeaud joined the group in 1981,
conducting the merger which led to the creation

of Axime, of which he became chairman. In 1896
Axime acquired Sligos, forming Atos, of which he
was CEQ. In November 2000 Atos merged with the
Dutch company Origin to form Atos Origin.
Previously, Bernard had headed the management
consulting group at Deloitte Haskins and Sells
France, run Continental Grain in the UK, and worked
in the French bank, CIC, and for Price Waterhouse.

ERIC GUILHOU

Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial Officer.
Eric Guilhou joined Axime in 1990 to help with the
restructuring that led to the formation of Atos. In
1892, he was appointed executive director,
reporting to the chairman, Bernard Bourigeaud,
and assuming responsibility for divestments,
acquisitions and development projects. In 1995,
he was named CFO. Previous experience includes
Amyot Auditeurs et Conseils, participating in the
formation of the Télémarket company in 1986, and
Etudes et'Communications, part of the Compagnie
Générale des Eaux Group.

DOMINIQUE ILLIEN

Member of the Management Board, Responsible for

France, ltaly and Iberia/Latin America and co-ordinating
Global On-Line Services.

Dominique lllien has been with the group for eight
years. He began his career with Deloitte & Touche,
before spending 11 years with Cap Gemini. He then
joined Axime, (subsequently Atos), as CFO. In
Novermber 1995, he was appointed Chief Operating
Officer of Sligos, and subsequently of Atos.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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WILBERT KIEBOOM

Member of the Management Board, Responsible for

the Netherlands, Belgium, Luxembourg and the UK and
co-ordinating Global Consutting and Systems Integration.
Wilbert Kieboom joined Origin (subsequently Atos
Criginy in May 2000. Prior to joining Atos Origin,
he was managing director of Syntegra NL, part

of British Telecom. His career began at Heineken
Nederland B.V. in 1382 and he then held Managing
Director positions with Lotus Development, Apple
Computer and was Vice President Sales and
Marketing Europe for Tandem/Compag.

TIROTHY LOMAX

Member of the Management Board, Responsible for Asia
Pacific, North America, Middle East and Nordic Region.
Tim Lomax has worked within the Philips group
since 1965, beginning his career there as

vice president and general manager of Philips
Information. He was vice president and CFO

of Laser Magnetic Storage International for

five years, before joining Signetics, now Philips
Semiconductors, as vice president and CFO. He
was appointed executive vice president and CFO
of Origin in October 1997 and CEQ in early 2000.

JANS TIELMAN

Member of the Management Board, Responsible for Human
Resources, Corporate Communications and Public Affairs,
Jans Tielman joined Origin in December 1997

as Executive VP Human Resources Management.
His previous experience includes Procter and
Gamble, Océ, General Electric and ABB. He has
held management positions in Human Resources
and Public Affairs in Europe, the USA and Asia
where he was based in Japan. Before creating

his executive search business in Zurich, he was
responsible for human resources for ABB’s Power
Generation Company.




SuUpervisory boarc

HENRIRPASCAUD)

Henr Pescaud is Chalrmen of the Supsrvisory
He wes elected to the Board in 1697 following
e merger betwesn Axime and Sligos. of which
e was formerly Chelrman.

CORIEQUNSIIRA

Cor Boonsira is Vics Chelrmen of the Supervisory
Boeard anc & memiber of s Investment Commities,
heving joined! in 2000, following the merger
letween Ates end Origin. Hi refired ae Prasidient
ane Chisf Exacutive Officer of Royel Phifips
Elsctronics in April 2001. Cor Boonstra is currently
& memiver of the Supervisory Bioards of & numiber
of intermetionel companiss incuding Armstelend
and Hunter Dougles intemationel.

EERARD BAUIY

Gérard Beuvin creefied Cegos-Informelicue

in 1883, Following e merger between Cegos-
Infermmeticue end SLIGA (a Crécit Lyonnals
subsidiery). he loecarme chelrmen and CEO of
SLIGOS untll refiing I 1994. After the merger
of Sligos and Asdme, he becams a Memioer of
the Supervisory Beeard of ATOS until 2000, and
was gppointed ageln in 2002,

BAZY

Dominigus Bezy fihe Supsrvisory Boerd of
Alesin 1697 and Is @ member of its Remunaration
arid! Norrinetion commitiess. He is currantly
Ghelrman end Chiel Execuiive of UBS Werlburg

In France and 2 clirector of Grand Vision and Ving.

Dorminigue Ferrers becams & mambsr of (e

Supenvisory Beerd in 2000 end is & memiber of
s Investiment Commiitas. He s currantly Chief
Bwecutive of Crech Lyonnels and & Dirsctor of

MANIHOMMEN

Jan Hemmien became & memicer of ihe Suparvisory

Board in 2000, fellowing ths mengsr oetwesn
Aos end Origiin, and (s & memier of fis Invesinent,
Remuneretion and Neminetion Commitiess.

He is currently Becutive Vice-Pregident end

& rmember of the Supervisory Boeard of TNT Post
Giroup end & Director of Medguist end the Franch
Assodletion for the Menetery Unien of Eurcps.

Jeen-Francols Theodors wes elscted @ meniber of
e Supervisery Beerd in 2000 end 's & memiser of
s Investiment Committee. He is curmently Chalimean
of Eurone, Chalrmnen of the Supervisory Boerd
Compsnesiton, e Eurcpean Power Bxchangs,
SBF Technologles endl Merche de Thrss-Francs.
He glso holds & numiaer of ether clreciorsihips

in Eurcpe.

ARIE WESTERLATEY

Artie Weesterlelen was elested fo the Supsrvisory
Boerd in 2000, following the merger between
Alos and Origin, and 18 & mermber of s Audit
Commities. He is Senlor Viee-President end chief
legel Ofieer of Royel Dutch Phifips endl & memiber
ol the Supendsory Boerd of ASM Lithograpihy.
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nvestors

‘OCur policyisto
reinvest profits
in the business
with the
objective of
maximising
long-term
capital growth!
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History
Atos Origin was formed from the merger on October 31st, 2000 of
Atos and Origin.

At the time of that merger, Atos had approximately 11,000 employees
with revenues of EUR 1.1 billion per annum, nearly two-thirds of which
were generated in France. Atos had been created from the merger of
Axime and Sligos on January 18t, 1997. Axime was previously formed
through a merger between Sodinforg, Segin and SITB in 1991 and was
listed on the Paris Euronext Premier market in December 1995. Sligos
was originally formed in 1970 from the merger of Cegos Informatique
and Sliga, the payment processing subsidiary of Crédit Lyonnais.

At the time of the merger with Atos, Origin was generating revenues

of approximately EUR 1.7 billion per annum, with 16,000 employees

in 30 countries worldwide. Origin was 98% owned by Royal Philips
Electronics, which created Origin in 1996 through the merger of Philips
Communication and Processing Services (Philips C&P) and BSO/Origin.
Philips C&P was originally established in 1991 to consolidate Philips’
in-house IT services. BSO was founded in 1976 and operated as an
independent IT services company prior to its merger with Philips C&P.
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OWNERSHIPISTRUCTURE]

Employees
Philips

T

/
/
/ 4.9%</ /

BWMP Paribas

Common stock

Dec 31,2001  Dec 31,2000

Existing shares 43,853,704 43,764,396
Potential Dilution

Dec 31,2001  Dec 31,2000
Employee stock
subscription options 3,779,172 2,282,890
Convertible bonds
{redemption date:
October 2004) 1,440,501 1,440,501
Philips stock
subscription warrants 4,774,826 4,774,826
‘Atos Origin shares
are traded onthe
Paris Euronext
Premier Marche
and form part of
the SBF 120 index
and the Euronext
100 index!

Atos Origin Sharehoider Structure

Atos Crigin shares are traded on the Paris Euronext Premier Marché and form
part of the SBF 120 index and the Euronext 100 index. The shares are not
listed on any other stock exchange and Atos Crigin SA is the only company in
the group whose shares are listed. Following the merger between Atos and
Origin in October 2000, Royal Philips Electronics received 21,323,766 shares
in Atos Origin, representing 48.6% of the issued share capital. At December
31st, 2001, there were 43,853,704 Atos Crigin shares in issue. There was no
change in the Philips holding and the structure of the Company’s total issued
share capital at that date is shown in the adjoining table.

In August 2000, Royal Dutch Philips stated an intention to reduce its stake
totess than 35% within 18 to 24 months following the conclusion of the
transaction. There is no timetable by which Philips is required to sell any

of its shares, other than in connection with the exercise of warrants,

Philips received two tranches of warrants (‘A’ and ‘B’ warrants), the exercise
of which is linked to movements in the Atos Origin share price. The issue of
these warrants may be regarded as additional incentive consideration

since the consideration payable for each tranche is a nominal EUR 1. Each
tranche consists of 2,387,413 stock subscription warrants. Philips may
exercise the ‘A warrants if the Atos Origin share price exceeds EUR 156 on
12 consecutive days before June 30t 2002. Philips may exercise the ‘B’
warrants if the Atos Origin share price exceeds EUR 208 on 12 consecutive
days before June 30th 2003. Immediately after exercising warrants, Philips
may not hold more than 35% of the total issued share capital of Atos Origin.

In June 1992 Atos issued convertible bonds in the amount of EUR 172.5
million {traded under Euroclear, code 180810). A total of 1,440,501 bonds
with a face value of EUR 119.8 were issued and the bonds pay interest at
1% per annum, They are redesmable on October 18!, 2004 at a price of
EUR 131.4, representing a yield to maturity of 2.75%, or at any time from
October 18t, 2002 at the issuer’s initiative, with a premium. The bonds may
be converted at any time from July 61 1999 onwards on the basis of one
share per bond.

There were 3,779,172 share options and stock subscription warrants ('C', ‘D),

and ‘E’ warrants) outstanding at December 313t, 2001 at prices ranging
between EUR 23 and EUR 160, at various times between now and 2011.

Atos Origin Annual Report 2001
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In total, the exercise in full of the ‘A’ and ‘B’ warrants, the ‘C’, 'D’, and ‘E’
stock option warrants, the convertible bonds and outstanding share
options would result in the issuance of a further 9,994,499 new common
shares, representing 18.6% of the common stock after dilution, or 10.6%
of the common stock excluding the Philips stock subscription warrants.
No other type of security giving access to the common stock exists.
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Dividends

The Company does not intend to declare dividends in the immediate
future. Qur policy is to reinvest profits in the business with the objective
of maximizing long-term capital growth.

Announcement Dates Investor Relations Contact
1st Quarter Results for 2002 Director, investor Relations
Wednesday, May 15th, 2002 John White

Annual Shareholder Meeting +33 (0)1 49 00 96 64

Thursday, May 30th, 2002 Assistant

Hotel Bristol in Paris Bernadette Legout

Half-Year Resuits for 2002 bernadette.legout@atosorigin.com

Thursday, September 12th, 2002
3rd Quarter Results for 2002
Wednesday, November 13th, 2002
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Ceompany Headguarters

Framse

Immeuble lle de France

8, ge la Pyramide

02087 Paris La Défense Caslex
Tel: +33 @)1 49
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2182 JH Hoefddom
Tel: +31 (0)28 7000
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